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MELTON CiTY COUNCIL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE MELTON CITY COUNCIL HELD
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MELTON Civic CENTRE, 232 HIGH
STREET MELTON ON 21 OCTOBER 2024 AT 7.00PM

Present: Cr K Majdlik (Mayor)
Cr S Abboushi (Deputy Mayor)
Cr L Carli
Cr S Ramsey
Cr J Shannon
Cr B Turner
Cr A Vandenberg

R Wai, Chief Executive Officer

P Leersen, Director Organisational Performance
S Romaszko, Director City Futures

T Scoble, Director City Life

N Whiteside, Director City Delivery

E Keogh, Head of Governance

R Hodgson, Senior Governance Coordinator

1. OPENING PRAYER AND RECONCILIATION STATEMENT

The Mayor, Cr Majdlik opened the meeting at 7.01pm with the opening prayer and
reconciliation statement.

2. APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Cr J Farrugia
C G Kesic

3. CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF BUSINESS
Nil.
4, DEPUTATIONS

Nil.

5. DECLARATION OF ANY PECUNIARY INTEREST, OTHER
INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF INTEREST OF ANY COUNCILLOR

Nil.
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6. ADOPTION AND CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS
MEETINGS

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Minutes of the Meeting of Council held on 16 September 2024 be confirmed as a true and
correct record.

Motion
Crs Carli/Ramsey.

That the Minutes of the Meeting of Council held on 16 September 2024 be confirmed as a true and
correct record.

For: Crs Abboushi, Carli, Majdlik, Ramsey, Shannon, Turner and Vandenberg
Against: Nil
Abstained: Nil
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
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7. SUMMARY OF INFORMAL MEETING OF COUNCILLORS

71 SUMMARY OF INFORMAL MEETINGS OF COUNCILLORS

o Monday 9 September 2024 Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors
o Monday 16 September 2024 Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors
o Monday 23 September 2024 Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Summaries of Informal Meetings of Councillors dated 9 September, 16 September 2024
and 23 September 2024 provided as Appendices 1 - 3 respectively to this report, be received and
noted.

Motion
Crs Abboushi/Carli.

That the Summaries of Informal Meetings of Councillors dated 9 September, 16 September 2024
and 23 September 2024 provided as Appendices 1 - 3 respectively to this report, be received and
noted.

For: Crs Abboushi, Carli, Majdlik, Ramsey, Shannon, Turner and Vandenberg
Against: Nil
Abstain: Nil
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

LiST OF APPENDICES
1. Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors - 9 September 2024
2. Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors - 16 September 2024

3. Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors - 23 September 2024
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21 OCTOBER 2024

Appendix 1 Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors - 9 September 2024

o F

—

MELTON

INFORMAL MEETING OF COUNCILLORS

MEETING DETAILS:

Meeting Name:

Meeting Date:

Councillors
present:

Officers present:

Guests

Apologies

Matters discussed:

Briefing of Councillors

Monday 9 September 2024 Time 6.20pm
Opened:
Time
Closed: 9.26pm

Cr K Majdlik (Mayor)

Cr S Abboushi (Deputy Mayor) (departed 9.27pm)
Cr L Carli (online)

Cr G Kesic (departed 9.32pm)

Cr S Ramsey

Cr J Shannon

Cr B Turner

R Wai Chief Executive Officer

T Scoble Director City Life

P Leersen Director Organisational Performance (CFO)

S Romaszko Director City Futures

R Hodgson Acting Head of Governance

C Ciciulla Acting Director City Delivery

S Beniston Coordinator Economic Development & Tourism (Online) — Item 3
T Conway Manager City Strategy (Online) — ltem 4

J Simson Coordinator Open Space Planning (Online) — Item 5

M Hutchinson  Design and investigations Coordinator (Online) — ltem 5
A Ravindran Head of Technology (Online) — ltem 6

N Marino Manager Finance (Online) — Item 7

A Biscan Manager Recreation & Facility Activation (Online) — Item 9
D Blandford Manager Operations (Online) — Item 10

Stephen Webb Director Design Inc (Online) — ltem 1

Tammy Beck
Kate Maddock
Anna Petrou

Director, Williams Ross Architects — Item 2
Managing Director, Otium Planning Group — Item 2
Williams Ross Architects — Item 2

Cr J Farrugia (Leave of Absence)

Cr A Vandenberg

N Whiteside (On Leave)
Emily Keogh (On Leave)

. Cobblebank Community Services Hub Project Update
Plumpton Aquatic & Leisure Centre Project Update

1
2.
3.
4

5.

~No

Response to NoM 768 — Workplace Policy guidance for local employers
Response to NoM 779 Update on the implementation of the Cobblebank
Metropolitan Activity Centre Urban Design Framework

Response to NoM 925 — Lighting Assessment in Stead Circuit, Burnside (Park &
BBQ Areas)

Delivery Partner Technology Change Program Tender Award

Draft Financial Statements 2023/24 & Performance Report 2023/24

Response to NoM 850 — Update on the contract governance arrangements that
will be implemented under Council’s new organisational structure which incl. the
creation of a Contract Management team.

Informal Meeting of Councillors
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ltem 7.1 Summary of Informal Meetings of Councillors
Appendix 1 Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors - 9 September 2024

9. Allocation of Sports & Recreation Facilities
10. Draft Reports
11. General update from Officers

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES:

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by No
Councillors?

REPORT PRODUCED BY:

Officer name: Renee Hodgson, Acting Head of Governance Date: Monday 9 September 2024

Informal Meeting of Councillors
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Appendix 2 Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors - 16 September 2024

o F

P—— INFORMAL MEETING OF COUNCILLORS

MELTON

MEETING DETAILS:
Meeting Name: Briefing of Councillors
Meeting Date: Monday 16 September 2024 Time 6.18pm
Opened:
Time
Closed: 6.57pm
Councillors present: Cr K Majdlik (Mayor)
Cr S Abboushi (Deputy Mayor)
Cr L Carli (arrived 6.22pm)
Cr G Kesic
Cr S Ramsey
Cr J Shannon
Cr B Turner
Cr A Vandenberg (arrived 6.36pm)
Officers present: R Wai Chief Executive Officer
T Scoble Director City Life
P Leersen Director Organisational Performance (CFO)
S Romaszko Director City Futures
N Whiteside Director City Delivery
Emily Keogh Head of Governance
R Hodgson Senior Coordinator Governance
Guests Nil
Apologies Cr Farrugia (Leave of Absence)

Matters discussed: 1. Council Meeting Agenda
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES:

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

REPORT PRODUCED BY:

Renee Hodgson
Senior Coordinator Governance

Officer name: Date: Monday 16 September 2024

Informal Meeting of Councillors
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Appendix 3 Summary of Informal Meeting of Councillors - 23 September 2024

o F

[ e

MELTON

MEETING DETAILS:

INFORMAL MEETING OF COUNCILLORS

Meeting Name:

Meeting Date:

Councillors present:

Officers present:

Guests

Apologies

Matters discussed:

Briefing of Councillors

Monday 23 September 2024
Online via Microsoft Teams

Time
Opened:

6.20pm

Time

Closed: 7.36pm

Cr K Majdlik

Cr S Abboushi
Cr L Carli

Cr J Farrugia

Cr G Kesic

Cr S Ramsey

Cr J Shannon

Cr B Turner

Cr A Vandenberg

R Wai

P Leersen

S Romaszko
E Keogh

Chief Executive Officer

Director Organisational Performance (CFO)
Director City Futures

Head of Governance

Nil

T Scoble
N Whiteside

1. General Updates from Officers
2. Questions from Councillors

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES:

Were there any conflict of interest disclosures by Councillors? No

REPORT PRODUCED BY:

Officer name:

Emily Keogh — Head of Governance Date: Monday 23 September 2024

Informal Meeting of Councillors
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8. CORRESPONDENCE INWARD

Nil.
9. PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS
Nil.

10. RESUMPTION OF DEBATE OR OTHER BUSINESS CARRIED
OVER FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING

Nil.

11. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Nil.
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12. PRESENTATION OF STAFF REPORTS

12.1 MELTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Author: Bob Baker - Corporate Planning and Performance Coordinator
Presenter: Peter Leersen - Director Organisational Performance

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present the Melton City Council Annual Report 2023/24, pursuant to Sections 98, 99 and 100 of
the Local Government Act 2020.

RECOMMENDATION:

That Council note the Melton City Council Annual Report 2023/24 as presented at Appendix 1.
Motion

Crs Shannon/Ramsey.

That Council note the Melton City Council Annual Report 2023/24 as presented at Appendix 1.

For: Crs Abboushi, Carli, Majdlik, Ramsey, Shannon, Turner and Vandenberg
Against: Nil
Abstained: Nil
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

REPORT

1. Executive Summary
Council is required to consider the Annual Report at a meeting of the Council.

Section 98(1) of the Local Government Act 2020, (‘the Act’) requires Council to prepare an
Annual Report in respect of each financial year.

The Annual Report is appended to this report Appendix 1.

2. Background/lssues

Section 98(2) of the Act requires Council to prepare an Annual Report in respect of each
financial year, and specifies that the report must contain:

. a report of operations of the Council

. an audited performance statement

. audited financial statements

. a copy of the auditor’s report on the performance statement

. a copy of the auditor’s report on the financial statements under Part 3 of the Audit Act

1994, any other matters prescribed by the regulations.
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Section 100(1) of the Act — for the purposes of section 18(1)(d), the Mayor must report on the
implementation of the Council Plan by presenting the annual report at a Council meeting
open to the public.

Further Section 100(2) of the Act requires:
a. In the year of a general election, on a day not later than the day before election day; and

b. In any other year, within 4 months of the end of the financial year.

The following section provides an overview of highlights from the Annual Report grouped by
Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025:

Theme 1 — a safe City that is socially and culturally connected

. Completed the pavilion upgrades at Blackwood Drive Recreation Reserve.

. Delivered the Cultural Diversity Week Festival, bringing together more than 1000
attendees.

. Delivered over 21,000 meals to residents, older adults, and people living with disability

and their carers.

. Opened the Atherstone Traffic School, incorporating initiatives to increase road safety,
online safety, and digital literacy.

Theme 2 — a vibrant and healthy natural and built environment

. The Lake Caroline Masterplan and Activation Strategy was adopted.
. Review of the Environmental Enhancement Program was completed.
. The Western Plains South Green Management Plan was adopted.

. The Environmentally Sustainable Design Guidelines were completed.

Theme 3 — a fast growing, innovative and well-planned City
. The Melton Town Centre Revitalisation Plan was adopted.

. Acquired land, undertook community engagement, and completed the masterplan for
Plumpton Aquatic and Leisure Centre.

. The Sport and Recreation Facility Development Policy was adopted.

. Completed the Roads Upgrade Strategy.

Theme 4 — a City that promotes greater education and employment

. The Melton Employment and Industrial Land Strategy was adopted.
. Delivered over 22,000 literacy programs to children and parents.
. Delivered the BIG Summer Read Program.

Theme 5 — a community that is actively engaged in the City

. 19 Freeza Meetings were held with young people and included the planning and
delivery of events by young people.

. A number of online service improvements were delivered to improve the customer
experience for the City of Melton community.
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Theme 6 — a high performing organisation that demonstrates civic leadership and
organisational excellence

. The Customer Care program was expanded to provide additional support to ratepayers
experiencing hardship.

. Delivered training sessions to staff centred around Free from Violence and violence
against women education.

. The Risk Compliance Framework was endorsed.

The 2023/24 Annual Report is the third annual report as it relates to the Council and
Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025.

Council and Wellbeing Plan Reference and Policy Reference
The Melton City Council 2021-2025 Council and Wellbeing Plan references:

6. A high performing organisation that demonstrates civic leadership and organisational
excellence

6.3 An organisation that demonstrates excellence in civic leadership and governance.

Financial Considerations

Preparation of the Annual Report is provided for in Council’s recurrent expenditure Budget.

Consultation/Public Submissions

The Local Government Act 2020 Section 100 — Meeting to consider the annual report
provides that:

1. For the purposes of section 18(1)(d), the Mayor must report on the implementation of
the Council Plan by presenting the annual report at a Council meeting open to the

public.
2. The Council meeting must be held—
a. In the year of a general election, on a day not later than the day before election
day; and
b.  In any other year, within 4 months of the end of the financial year.
Risk Analysis

Not applicable.

Options

Council has a statutory obligation to consider the Annual Report at a formal meeting of
Council.

LIST OF APPENDICES

1.

Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24
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Appendix 1 Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24

Melton City Council
ANNUAL REPORT

2023/24

MELTON
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of Country
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Melton City Council acknowledges the Kulin Nations as the
Traditional Owners and custodians of this land and pays
respect to their Elders past and present.
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Introduction

Welcome to Melton City Council's 2023/24 Annual Report.
Councilis committed to transparent reporting and
accountability to the community.

This Annual Report provides information about Council's operations and
performance during the financial year and meets all obligations under
Sections 89 and 90 of the Local Gavernment Act 2020 (Vic) (‘Act’), Local
Government Regulations 2020, Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008
and Public Health and Wellbeing Regulations 2019.
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2
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:  Contents
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Operations Report 12-111

The Year in Review | 12

Provides an overview of our operations in 2023/24. It includes a summary of how we spent rates
revenue, a financial summary for the year and information about our challenges and the future,
our community satisfaction survey, and our major events.

Our City and our Councillors | 18
Provides information about the City of Melton, our Councillors and the warkings of Council.

Our People | 31

Provides information about the organisation, our leaders, our employees and our organisational
culture. It also includes information about our volunteers.

Our Performance | 36

Provides detail on how we have delivered on the themes, objectives and strategies in the Council
and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025.

Governance and Management Information | 94

Provides information on our organisational governance including audit and statutory information.

Financial Report 111-189

Performance Statement | 112

Includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance and financial
performance indicators and measures and an explanation of material variations in the results.

This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020
and Lecal Gavernment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020

Performance Statement 112
Certification of Performance Statement 114
Independent Auditor's Report 125

Annual Financial Report | 127
Contains the audited financial statements we are required by law to provide.

Certification of the Financial Statement 128
Victorian Auditor-General's Office Report 129
Notes to the Financial Statements 137
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Contactus

Melton Civic Centre
232 High Street, Melton

Melton Library and Learning Hub
31 McKenzie Street, Melton

Caroline Springs Library and Learning Hub
193 Caroline Springs Boulevard, Caroline Springs

PO Box 21 Melton Victoria 3337
Phone number: 03 9747 7200
csu@melton.vic.gov.au

melton.vic.gov.au

ABN 22 862 073 889
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AIRPORT
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City of Melton Snapshot

Population The City of Melton population
. forecast for 2024 is

206070 §-¥ S5 ELTRTY

Last updated population estimate by S i it -
Australian Bureau of Statistics - <

1¥0d3y SNOILYYIdO

. and is forecast to grow to

. : 51 470,596

by 2046

The top five countries of birth
(other than Australia)

India, Philippines,
New Zealand, United
Kingdom, Vietnam

The top five languages spoken The City of Melton was the

at hOfT.lE {(itherthan English) fﬂl.ll'th fastest
Punjabi,

Filinino/Tagal growing municipality
ripinoftagatog, in Australia,
Vietnamese, :
< and the second fastest growing
Arabic, Local Government Area in
Hindi Victoria in 2023/24.

In 2023/24 the City of Melton's
population increased by

12,785

with a growth rate of

6.61 per cent
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As of 30 June 2024,
Melton City Council had

88,598

rateable properties

Business / Employment

More than More than

There are an average of

79 families

moving in, and

64 habies

born in the City of Melton
every week

|
i Rockbank - Mount Cottrell was the fastest growing area in Australia.

Increase of 4,299 people

*Latest data available March 2024.

More than

, 1 101,700

employed residents

local workers were

born overseas

per cent of the local
= workers are male

per cent of the local
workers are female
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Where do rates go:
For every $100

40D §31VYH 04 F¥IHM

We delivered a broad range of services to our diverse community
of residents, business owners and visitors. This list shows how
rates revenue was spent across these services for every $100
spentin 2023/24.

$22.08 o $15.88

Road Improvements / \ Waste
Management

Parks, Open Space and
Environmental Reserves

§1.53

Recreation
and Youth
Services

@ | $Z/EC0C | LHOdIY TYNNNY | TIDNNOD ALID NOLTIW
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ﬂ"f\ [ Services

= 2.51
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§5.73

=" Community and
Y. Aged Care Services

=y

N
i/
Local Business Growth, Engineering [ﬂ_lEﬂ

Economic Development Services

$2.09 K '. 5089 W

Library Artsand 3 '_ Community
Services Cultureand P Planning
Festivals
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S Bt Gl Environment and
Sustainability
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2023/24
Financial Summary

AUVWWNS TVIDNYNIL

Melton City Councilis in a sustainable financial position guided by
the adopted 10-year Financial Plan and expectations under the Local
Government Act 2020. The Financial Plan and subsequent Budget
adopted in 2024 outlines how Council will responsibly manage
community funds and ensure financial sustainability.

6557m  $263.5m $7.7m  $1147m

Totalincome Total expenditure Adjusted operating Capital works
(including non-monetary surplus expenditure
contributions)

The City of Melton's population is forecast to reach Income

470,596 by 2046, This additional growth requires a
proactive and disciplined approach to ensuring the
organisation balances what is impartant today with
the decision making that supports infrastructure and
services for future generations.

Council's revenue stream comprises of rates and
charges, land sales, grants and contributions,
statutory fees and fines, user fees and other income.
Rates form a significant part of Council's revenue
stream, representing 57 per cent of income (excluding

A summary of financial performance is outlined below, non-monetary contributions). Councilis focused
and further details can be found in the Financial and on maximising income from other sources such as
Performance Statements at the end of the report. investment income and government grants in its attempt

to reduce the dependence on rates revenue.
Operating Position

Council achieved an operating result of $293.5 million
forthe 2023/24 reporting period. It should be noted that Sources of Income 2023/24

the surplus is reported in line with Australian Accounting Excluding Contributions - Non-Monetary
Standards and includes many non-cash items including
$246 million in "income” for assets brought to account 13%
upon the finalisation of subdivisions by developers. ’

The result was predominantly driven by the recognition o ’
of subdivision works completed which had not been 1%

budgeted as non-monetary contributions. Council's
prudent financial management continued to contain

0
costs which assisted in generating an increase in the 57%
operating surplus. 12%
Furtherinfarmation is available in the Financial '
Statements. 3%
5%
M Ratesand charges M Statutory fees
M User fees M Government grants

M Contributions - monetary M Otherincome

PC/CC0T  LUOdIY TVNNNY | TIDNNOD ALID NOLTIW
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Expenses

Council's total expenditure, including depreciation for
2023/24, was $263.5 million to deliver services that
benefit the community. Total operational expenditure
increased from the prior year and reflects expenditure
on salaries, materials, contracts and services. Council
has a strong track record of sound fiscal management.

Categories of Operating Expenditure 2023/24

3%

22%
28°%

47%

M Employee costs M Depreciaton and amortisation
M Materials and services [ Others costs

Financial sustainability

Council aims to ensure it is able to maintain its
infrastructure assets at expected levels while continuing
to deliver essential services and new infrastructure
required for a growing community.

In 2023/24, Council's budget was based on 3.25 per
cent which was under the State Government's rate

cap amount for the year. Council continues to absorb
increasing costs and steady revenue. Each year this
becomes more of a challenge, and the drive to find
efficiencies within operations is ongoing to ensure there
are no significant impacts on service delivery.

Council relies on support from the Victorian and Federal
governments to deliver key infrastructure projects and
provide support for other important programs in the
region. Overall, Council received $36.4 million in grant
funding from the State and Federal governments during
the 2023/24 financial year

Key Financial Sustainability Indicators

Indicator Result  Risk Rating*
Net result % 52.69% Low
Adjusted underlying

result % 14.22% Low
Liquidity (ratio) 337.00% Low
Internal financing (%) 110.26% Low
Indebtedness (%) 10.00% Low

Capital replacement

(ratio) 2.04 Medium
Renewal gap % 31.00% Low

*Rating per VAGO's risk matrix
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2023/24 Major Capital Works

-
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Plumpton Children’s and Melton Recreation Reserve
Commumty Centre Melton Recreation Reserve has been

The Plumpton Children’s and Community rejuvenated. The new pavilion features female
Centre is under construction and will feature friendly changerooms,.umpires' fOOTT\Sf social
four kindergarten rooms and associated and meeting space, a kitchen and a kiosk. The
licensed play spaces alang with starage, office upgrade also included a new coaches’ box,
and meeting spaces. shelter for players and a new timekeepers’

box. The existing tennis and netball courts
are scheduled to be upgraded as part of the
2024/25 capital works program.

The Centre will also accommodate Maternal
and Child Health consulting rcoms, an
associated waiting area and two community
rooms supported by a community activation
office, community kitchen and storage. The
centre is expected to openin early 2025.

Diggers Rest Recreation Reserve
upgrade

Upgrades at Diggers Rest Recreation Reserve
have delivered a new multipurpose community
pavilion, news sports pavilion, a redeveloped
oval, new cricket nets, electronic scoreboard,
mare car parking and new access road.

The new pavilion is a hub for the Diggers Rest
community and fast-growing local sporting
clubs andisin full use by the community.
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Plumpton Aquatic and
Leisure Centre

In2023/24 work continued on the design
and masterplan for Plumpton Aquatic and
Leisure Centre.

The new aquatic and leisure centre will be
constructed on Beattys Road in Fraser Rise.

It will feature indoor pools, splash play areas,
water slides, spas, a sauna, sensory aquatic
space, health and fitness areas, allied health
spaces, an outdoor beach pool, change
facilities and a café. It will also include a
multipurpose events space, rooftop deck
and parking

The Centre will offerinclusive and accessible
facilities which support a healthy, connected
community and is expected to open in

late 2028.

Cobblebank Community
Services Hub

Located in the heart of the Cobblebank
Metropolitan Activity Centre, Cobblebank
Community Services Hub will provide space
currently lacking in the City of Melton to
accommodate a range of community services
and commercial providers to meet the needs
of our growing community and the broader
region.

The Hub will provide an accessible space

to deliver a range of important services like
mental health, disability, refugee and family
support services, as well as culturally specific
services for our Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander communities and culturally diverse
communities.

In2023/24 work continued on the design and
masterplan for the Cobblebank Community
Services Hub. Construction will commence in
2025 and is expected to be complete in

late 2026.

Black Knight Way Park
revitalisation

Revitalising the popular Black Knight Way
Park, in Kurunjang has resulted in improved
amenities including playground equipment,
seating, shade structure, an improved
pedestrian path network and turf
kick-about spaces.
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Economic Factors

The City of Melton's economy has continued to grow. From 2022 to 2023 Gross Regional Product
increased from $7.304 billion to $7.961 billion (+9%).

Over the past 12 months, Council has continued to attract new business investment and support
existing local businesses across the City of Melton to continue to grow our economy and create local
jobs for our rapidly growing population.

YT/ETOT MIIATY NI 8VIA JHL

With current forecasts predicting our population willreach 232,721 in 2024 and increase to 470,596
by 2046, the City of Melton will continue to attract investors looking to benefit from our City's
demographic and geographic advantages.

Major Changes

A new organisational structure has been finalised over the past 12 months to better position
our workplace to meet the ongoing challenges of growth, changes in government direction and
policy, and better align with our Counciland Wellbeing Plan.

In 2023/24 we continued work on a workplace Transformation Plan focusing on our key opportunity areas to
sustainably create the change we need to be a future-focused, customer-centric city council that can deliver on our
community needs. Our pillars of focus are:

Customer - we use the voices of our customers in everything we do.

People - we are a great place to work and an 'employer of choice’.

Technology - we have integrated technology solutions that enable excellence.

Growth - we invest sustainably in our workforce growth to deliver excellence.
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Challenges and the Future

$T/E20C MIIATY NI ¥VIA JHL

1¥Od3Y TYNHNNY | TIDNNOCD ALID NOLTIW

Challenges and performance impacts:

* Delivery of a growing capital program to keep
up with the pace of growth and community
needs, including community facilities

* Unpredictable environmental impacts
and increased weather events impacting
infrastructure and timely delivery of our
projects.

* Supply chainissues leading to increased cost
of materials and workforce shortages.

+ Sustainably growing our organisation
within aur means to have the right skills
and capability to deliver across our core
operations and our 100 services.

* Increasing efficiency of our operations to
maximise productivity while meeting key
community service expectations.

+ Controlling expenditure to achieve a balanced
budget surplus in a rate cap constrained
environment.

Community Satisfaction

Future considerations:

* Planning for long term financial sustainability challenges
due to funding shortfall and rate cap constrained operating
environment

* Adding to alternative revenue streams other than rates
revenue to support financial sustainability.

* Investingin the development of hardship programs to
support our community through current cost of living
challenges and ongoing financial hardship.

* Continuing to leverage partnerships to help enhance service
provision, infrastructure delivery and funding opportunities.

* Maintaining the pace of strategic decision making with a new
Councilin 2024

* Implementation of our workplace Transformation Plan with
a focus on People, Customer, Technology and Growth whilst
maintaining business as usual operations. Majar focus on
Council's Technology Change Program

* Progress work on best practice complaints handling to be
more responsive and customer focussed.

* Continue to advance maturity in good governance practices
and transparent decision making into Council's everyday
processes and procedures.

Every year Council commissions an annual Community Satisfaction Survey.

Atotal of 800 residents are randomly surveyed
from a sample drawn proportionally from
across the municipality. In 2024, the survey was

conducted as a door-to-door, in-person interview

survey. The surveying was completed between
May and June 2024, consistent with the timing of
previous years.

The following core components are included in
the survey each year:

v Satisfaction with Council's overall
perfarmance and change in performance

v Satisfaction with aspects of governance
and leadership

+ Importance of, and satisfaction with, a range
of Council services and facilities

+ Current issues of importance for Council
to address

v Satisfaction with aspects of planning and
housing development

~ Community perception of safety in public
areas of Melton and

v Satisfaction with Council's customer service.
In addition to these core companents, the survey

also explores current issues of importance to the
community and Council service delivery.

The 2024 survey included questionsrelated to the following issues:

v Sense of community

v Personal wellbeing

v Localemployment and educational opportunities

v Food security

~ Average commuting time

+ Physicalactivity

v Walking or cycling to local shops and facilities

v Volunteering

This infarmation is used for Council's performance reporting

purposes and plays an integral role in Council's annual strategic
planning activities.

Satisfaction with most aspects of Council performance was
relatively stable in 2024 including overall performance of 7 out
of 10 (up 1%), average satisfaction with services and facilities
7.6 out of 10 (up 1%), the five core aspects of governance and
leadership (stable), planning and development outcomes
(stable) and planning for population growth (down 1%).

The top three issues identified by the community in 2024 were:
- Traffic management (18% down from 25%)
- Street trees (9% up from 5%)

= Roads including roadworks (8% down from 13%)

PC/C20e

More information about the annual Community Satisfaction Survey is available on Council's website.
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Events Calendar

Our Major Events Program for 2023/24 commenced with
Melton's signature event, the Djerriwarrh Festival, in
November 2023. The festival featured a new event layout and
drew a crowd of 25,000. Attendees enjoyed a day filled with
activities, culminating in an evening performance headlined
by Regurgitator, supported by Pseudo Echo.

As the year ended, Carols by Candlelight was cancelled due to
inclement weather with other small-scale events delivered to
replace the event.

In February 2024, Lakeside Alive in Caroline Springs attracted
mare than 10,000 attendees with a day of festivities, concluding
with a spectacular fireworks display over Lake Caroline.

March 2024 wrapped up the event season with the second
instalment of Flavour Fest in Aintree, in partnership with
Woodlea. The event attracted more than 22,000 visitors who
indulged in a diverse array of food and enjoyed a vibrant main
stage in a fitting end to the 2023/24 event season.

Citizenship and Australia Day
Community Event

More than 3,000 new citizens were
welcomed to the City of Melton during
the 2023/24 year.

The City of Melton welcomed 400 new
citizens during its annual Citizenship
Ceremony on Australia Day on

26 January 2024,

The event was held at Cobblebank
Stadium where conferees and guests
were treated to activities that celebrated
all things Australian with reptiles, dingos
and a barbeque on offer

for attendees.
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Our City and
our Councillors
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About the City of Melton

The City of Melton is a key part of Melbourne's
western growth corridor. Itis directly
connected by the Western Ring Road and
Deer Park bypass to Melbourne's major
freeways, main airport, major industrial hub
and the Port of Melbourne,

The Western Highway, an important national freight
route, runs through the City.

The Melton township is about 35 kilometres northwest
of the Melbourne CBD and comprises the suburbs

of Melton, Melton West, Harkness, Melton South,
Kurunjang and Brookfield and is centred on the Melton
major activity centre. The township continues to grow
while preserving features of its rural heritage.

The City of Melton's eastern corridoris centred an the
major activity centre of Caroline Springs, approximately
19 kilometres northwest of the Melbourne CBD. The
eastern corridorincludes the suburbs of Burnside,
Burnside Heights, Caroline Springs, Hillside and
Taylors Hill.

Increasingly, the focus of development is on growth
suburbs including Diggers Rest, Aintree, Bonnie
Brook, Cobblebank, Deanside, Fieldstone, Fraser
Rise, Grangefields, Ravenhall, Rockbank, Strathtulloh,
Thornhill Park, Truganina and Weir Views

The City of Melton also has several significant rural
areas including Parwan, Plumpton, Mount Cottrell,
Exford, parts of Diggers Rest, Toolern Vale

and Eyneshbury.

Our History

The City of Melton has a rich Indigenous heritage dating
back more than 40,000 years. Three different but related
language groups, each made up of several individual
clans, lived on the land now covered by the Melton Local
Government Area. They are the Wurundjeri
Woi-Wurrung, Wada-Wurrung and Bunurong peaples.

These three Traditional Owner groups form three of

the five tribes that make up the Kulin Nations. The
inheritance of cultural practices for future generations is
as important today as it was historically and encourages
connection to people and place. The City of Melton's
diverse Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community
comes from the three Traditional Owner groups and from
the many Aboriginal nations and clans around Australia.

Aboriginal stone tools and camp sites have been found
along local water courses along with several scarred
trees where bark had been excised out of the tree without
causing harm its ongoing health. This bark was used

for making canoes, carrying containers, shields and
shelters. There are several Aboriginal cultural heritage
sites in the City of Melton including the Melton Valley
Golf Course canoe scar tree, the Bullum Bullum camp
site in Burnside and the site of the area's last known
corroboree in 1863 in Hannah Watts Park, Melton.

The first European settlers arrived in the late 1830s and
by 1862 Melton was a district that was developing a rich
pastoral and farming heritage. That era is still evident
with numerous remaining pastoral homesteads, dry
stone walls and dams.

In 1974 Melton became Melbourne's first satellite city.
Extensive suburban development led to a major increase
in population through the 1980s. In acknowledgement
of our rapid growth, Melton Shire Council was granted
City status by the Victorian Government in September
2012 and changed its name to Melton City Council. Over
the past decade the City has continued to experience
unprecedented population growth and is recognised as
one of the fastest-growing municipalities in Australia.
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The Role of Council

The Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) sets out the purpose and objectives of
Melton City Council and defines its functions and powers. Council is a statutory
body incorporated under the Act. Its role is to provide leadership for the City of
Melton in service of the community.

Sections 8 and % of the Local Government Act 2020 sets out the role and powers
of a Council.

SHOTTIDONNOD N0 ANV ALID ¥NO

Governance

Melton City Councilis constituted under the Act to provide good governance in
its municipal district for the benefit and wellbeing of the municipal community.
Council has several roles including:

v Giving priority to achieving the best outcomes for the community, including
future generations

v Promoting the economic, social and environmental sustainahility of the
municipal district

Engaging the community in strategic planning and decision-making
Pursuing innovation and continuous improvement

Seeking collaboration with other Councils and Governments

A N SN

Ensuring Council's angoing financial viability.

Council is committed to effective and sustainable forms of democratic and
corporate governance as the key to ensuring Council and its administration
meet the community's priarities. The community has many opportunities to
provide inputinto Council's decision-making processes including community
consultation and the ability to make submissions to address Council at
Submissions Hearings that may be scheduled from time to time for specific
matters (such as planning matters or the adoption of key documents).

Council's formal decision-making processes are conducted through Council
meetings and delegated committees of Council. Council delegates most of its
decision-making to Council staff. These delegations are exercised in accordance
with legislation and adopted Council policies.
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Ward Map
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Toolern Vale
Watts Ward
Diggers Rest
Harkness o
Kurunjang
Melton West
Melton Bonnie Brook

Brookfield

Grangefields
Aintree

: R, Thornhill Park

e L RN T T I T e

- B
- .....
Strathtulloh .
L4

Watts Ward

CrLaraCarli
First elected October 2012

Chei

Cr Justine Farrugia
First elected January 2023

Hillside

FraserRise

Taylors
Hill
Burnside Heights

Caroline Springs

. : Deanside
Exford Rockbank"‘
Parwan 4 .
-
Fieldstone
Coburn Ward
Mount Cottrell {igening
Cambridge Ward
Eynesbury
Coburn Ward
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Cr Sophie Ramsey Cr Julie Shannon CrBob Turner Cr Ashleigh Vandenberg
First elected October 2001 First elected October 2020 First elected November 2008 First elected October 2020
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Cambridge Ward

Cr Kathy Majdlik,
Mayor
First elected November 2008

‘@,

Cr Steve Abboushi,
Deputy Mayor
Firstelected Novernber 2016

Cr Goran Kesic
First elected November 2016

Council Meetings

Council Meetings are held each month except January.

Meeting agendas and minutes are available on Council's website. Council
Meetings are live streamed and a video recording of the meeting is

available on Council's website approximately two days after each meeting.

Each item on the agenda is 'bookmarked’ so the public can easily find any
item they are interested in.

Council meetings in 2023/24 were held on:
= Monday 31 July 2023

= Monday 28 August 2023

= Monday 25 September 2023

= Monday 30 October 2023

* Maonday 2 November 2023
(Meeting to elect the Mayor and Deputy Mayor)

¢ Monday 27 Novemnber 2023
* Monday 18 December 2023
= Monday 26 February 2024
* Monday 25 March 2024

* Monday 22 April 2024

= Monday 27 May 2024

= Monday 24 June 2024

Councillor Vacancies and Appointments

Our Councillors: 2020-2024 term

= Steven Abboushi Kathy Majdlik (Mayor)
(Deputy Mayor) Sophie Ramsey
= LaraCarli

Julie Shannon

4

Justine Farrugia Bob Turner

L A

= Goran Kesic Ashleigh Vandenberg

The City of Melton will move to a single-councillor ward structure
from the 2024 local government election onwards.

From this election, the City of Melton will move from three wards to 10.
Each of these 10 wards will have one elected Councillor. These new
wards will be:

Bullum Bullum Ward Lake Caroline Ward
Mount Atkinson Ward

Stringybark Ward

Cambrian Ward
Coolibah Ward
Hilltop Ward
Jackwood Ward

. Sugar Gum Ward
0. Watts Ward

N
- w0 ® ~N o
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Committees

Committee

Councillor Representative

Arts and Culture Advisory Committee

Audit and Risk Committee

CEO Employment and Remuneration Committee
Community Achievement Awards Assessment Panel
Councillor Representations Nominations Advisory Committee

Disability Advisory Committee

Heritage Advisory Committee

Intercultural Advisory Committee

Interface Councils

LeadWest Committee

Recreation and Leisure Advisory Committee

Mayoral Charity Fund Advisory Committee

Melbourne Regional Landfill Community Reference Group

Melton Weir Development Advisory Committee

December 2022 to
November 2023

CrVandenberg
Cr Majdlik
Cr Turner

CrCarli
Cr Kesic

All Councillors
All Councillors
All Councillors

CrCarli

Cr Majdlik
CrRamsey
(CrVandenberg -
Reserve)

Cr Ramsey
Cr Turner

CrShannon
Cr Abboushi
Cr Kesic

Cr Turner

CrCarli

Cr Ramsey
(Cr Kesic - Reserve)

Cr Turner
CrAbboushi
CrVandenberg

CrCarli
CrShannon

Officer to represent

CrCarli

Cr Shannon

Cr Ramsey

Cr Turner
CrVandenberg

(up to 9 Councillors)

November 2023 to
October 2024

Cr Carli
Cr Turner

Cr Majdlik
Cr Shannon

All Councillors
All Councillors
All Councillors

Cr Majdlik

Cr Carli

Cr Ramsey

(Cr Shannan - Reserve)

Cr Turner
Cr Ramsey
(Cr Abboushi - Reserve)

Cr Abboushi
Cr Kesic

Cr Shannon
CrTurner

Cr Majdlik

Cr Ramsey
(Cr Kesic - Reserve)

CrCarli
Cr Farrugia
Cr Turner

Cr Majdlik
Cr Abboushi

Cr Turner

Cr Shannon

Cr Ramsey
CrTurner
CrVandenberg
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Committee

Councillor Representative

Metropolitan Transport Forum

Municipal Association of Victoria

National Growth Areas Alliance (NGAA)

Policy Review Panel

Preventing Family Violence Advisory Committee

Reconciliation Advisory Committee

Road Safe Westgate

Safe City Advisory Committee

Victorian Local Governance Assaciation
Western Highway Action Committee (WHAC)
Western Melbourne Tourism Board

Western Region Mayors Forum

Youth Advisory Committee

December 2022 to
November 2023

Cr Turner

Cr Majdlik
(CrCarli - Reserve)

CrCarli
Cr Kesic
CrTurner

CrCarli
CrShannaon

Cr Majdlik
CrVandenberg

CrCarli

Cr Shannon
CrRamsey

{up to 9 Councillors)

CrCarli
CrVandenberg

Cr Ramsey
(Cr Abboushi - Reserve)

Cr Carli
CrShannon
CrAbboushi
Cr Ramsey

Cr Majdlik
Cr Kesic

Cr Shannon
CrCarli
CrAbboushi
Cr Kesic

Cr Turner
CrVandenberg

November 2023 to
October 2024

Cr Turner

Cr Majdlik
(Cr Kesic - Reserve)

Cr Majdlik
Cr Kesic
Cr Turner

Cr Majdlik
Cr Carli

Cr Ramsey
Cr Shannon

Cr Ramsey
Cr Shannon

CrVandenberg
(Cr Ramsey - Reserve)

Cr Ramsey
(Cr Abboushi - Reserve)

Cr Abboushi

Cr Ramsey
Cr Shannon

Cr Majdlik
Cr Kesic

Cr Shannon
Cr Majdlik

Cr Abboushi
Cr Kesic
CrTurner
CrVandenberg
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Councillor Code of Conduct

The Councillor Code of Conduct was adopted by Council
on 8 February 2021 as required by the Local Government
Act 2020.

The Code of Conduct contains certain things, chiefly, the
prescribed standards of conduct.

Section 139 of the Act requires every council to review
and adopt a Councillor Code of Conduct which includes:

* Thestandards of conduct prescribed by the
regulations

* Any provisions prescribed by the regulations

¢ Provisions addressing any matters prescribed by the
regulations

= Any other matters which the Council considers
appropriate, other than any other standards of
conduct;

within four months aftera general election [s139(3), (4)].

Outside of an election, a Council may review and amend
its Councillor Code of Conduct at any time [s140(1)].

Part 3 of the Code sets out the Key Statutory Provisions
covering:

* The Municipal Community

* Qverarching Governance Principles

* Role of Council

* Role of a Councillor

* Role of the Mayor.

Part 4 of the Code sets out the Standards of Conduct
covering:

* Treatment of others

* Performing the role of Councillor

* Compliance with good governance measures

+ Discrediting or misleading Council or public

* Robust political debate.

Part 5 of the Code covers Breaches of Prescribed
Standards of Conduct.

* Failure by a Councillor to comply with the prescribed
standards of conduct constitutes misconduct for the
purposes of the Act, The Act provides for a range of
sanctions that may be imposed by an arbiter upon
councillors for misconduct

« Failure to comply with the Council's internal
arbitration process or failure to comply with a
sanction directed by an arbiter amount to serious
miscanduct

« Continued or repeated misconduct after an initial
finding will also amount to serious misconduct.

Parts 6 and 7 of the Code relate to Councillor Conduct
Qutside of the Prescribed Standards of Conduct

and Breaches of Councillor Conduct Outside of the
Prescribed Standards of Conduct respectively.

A Councillor Code of Conduct can relate only to
complaints by Council or Councillors against another or
other Councillor(s). A complaint made by a member of
the publicin relation to a breach of the Councillor Code
of Conduct has no effect unless the matteris 'taken up’
by the Council or a Councillor ar group of Councillors
on behalf of the complainant. A complaint by a member
of the public can otherwise be made to the Minister for
Local Government or the Chief Municipal Inspector.

The Code of Conduct can be viewed on Council's
website: melton.vic.gov.au.

Conflict of Interest

Councils are entrusted with a range of decision-
making powers to govern in the best interests of local
communities. These powers must only be exercised
impartially, with integrity, and must not seek to
deliberately confer an advantage or disadvantage on
any persan. It must be clear that the private interests
of Councillors are not affecting public duties, and the
position of Councillor is not being used for persanal
benefit.

The Local Gavernment Act 2020 sets out the
circumstances that give rise to a conflict of interest and
describes the actions Councillors must take to disclose a
conflict of interest where one arises.

This is supported by Chapter 5 of the Governance Rules,
which sets out how disclosures of interest are made to
meet statutory obligations.
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Delegations of Authority

With few exceptions, the powers granted to Melton City
Council under the Local Government Act 2020 and other
legislation may be delegated to a delegated committee
aof Council, to the Chief Executive Officer or to a Council
officer through a properly authorised Instrument of
Delegation.

The delegation of powers is a mechanism to ensure
the effective day-to-day functioning of Council where
resolutions of Council would prove impractical.

Council periodically revises and updates instruments
of delegation to ensure appropriate authorisation. The
Council updated its instruments of delegation on the
following dates:

* S5Instrument of Delegation from the Council to the
Chief Executive Officer - 27 March 2023

* SéInstrument of Delegation - Members of Staff -
8 November 2021

¢ S7Instrument of Sub-delegation by CEQ to Council
Staff - 20 August 2021

* S13 Instrument of Delegation of CEOs powers,
duties, and functions - 20 August 2021

* Sl4Instrument of Delegation by the CEO for
VicSmart Applications under the Planning &
Environment Act 1987 - 20 August 2021

* S18 Instrument of Sub-Delegation under the
Environment Protection Act 2017 - 8 November 2021

* Instrument of Sub-Delegation from CEO to Council
staff - Toolern Development - 3 August 2023.

Governance Charter

Council represents the broad interests of the
community and willimplement decisions and follow
processes that are informed by good information and
data, and stakeholder views. Council is committed

to the principles of good governance and adopted a
Governance Charter at the Meeting of Councilon 18
September 2017. Specifically, the Charter is aimed at
providing:

* Clearinformation on decision-making processes
* Advice on the authorising environment of Council

* Guidelines for Councillors, Executive and Managers
in relation to roles and responsibilities

« Areference point for disputes and clarifies the
relationship between the law and internal rules/
policies/documents.

The Governance Charter can be viewed on Council's
website melton.vic.gov.au.

Councillor Allowances

Councillors are paid an allowance in recognition of their
voluntary Councillor roles in carrying out their civic

and statutory duties as representatives of Melton City
Council. The Local Government Act 2020 deems that
allowances for the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors
are set by the Victorian Independent Remuneration
Tribunal (the Remuneration Tribunal) (s39(1)(2)).

On 7 March 2022, the Victorian Independent
Remuneration Tribunal passed the "Allowance payable
to Mayors, Deputy Mayors and Councillors (Victoria)
Determination No. 01/2022". This Determination took
effect from 18 December 2021 and provides for further
scheduled annual increases to allowance values until
18 December 2025. The Determination sets a base
allowance for each Council member. The value of the
base allowance payable varies depending on the role
(Mayar, Deputy Mayor, or Councillor) and the Council
allowance category assigned to the Council as specified
in the Determination. Meltan has been classified as a
Category 3 Council under the Determination.

The Remuneration Tribunal is required to make annual
adjustments to the values of the allowances for Mayors,
Deputy Mayors, and Councillors. On 30 June 2023, the
Remuneration Tribunal made the Allowance payable

to Mayors, Deputy Mayors, and Councillors (Victoria)
Annual Adjustment Determination 2023, increasing the
values of the base allowances by 2%, effective from 1
July 2023. A 2% increase was also applied to the base
allowance values which took effect on 18 December
2023.

Mayor and Councillors’ allowances for 2023/24

Councillor Allowance $§
Steven Abboushi

(Deputy Mayor from 2 Navember 2023) 56,044
Lara Carli

(Mayor until 2 November 2023) 67,106
Justine Farrugia 38,647
Goran Kesic 38,776
Kathy Majdlik

(Mayor from 2 November 2023) 99,954
Sophie Ramsey 38,647
Julie Shannon

(Deputy Mayor until 2 November 2023) 46,632
Bob Turner 38,746
Ashleigh Vandenberg 37,185
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Councillor Expenses

Councillors are entitled to be reimbursed for necessary
out-of-pocket expenses incurred while performing their

duties as a Councillor,

To ensure Council policy in relation to the appropriate

provision of resources and support provided to

Councillors meet contemporary standards of probity
and community expectations, Council adopted its
latest Councillors and Delegated Committee Members

Resources and Expenses Policy at its 15 March 2021

Council meeting.

The policy governs the appropriate provision of motor
vehicles, office equipment, secretarial support, travel
expenses, training and seminar expenses, hospitality,
and caring allowances. The policy applies to the Mayor,
Councillors and appointed members of delegated
committees of Council.

Conferences, Functions
Seminars and Local External to Childcare Councillor
Training Travel Communications  Civic Centre Expenses  Allowances TOTAL

Cr Steven Abboushi
[Deputy Mayor from 3 g= 5= $2,004.29 $270.50 &= 656,044 $58,318.79
November 2023)
CrLara Carl $513.50 §- $822.46 $581.82 $- 567,106  $69,023.78
(Mayar until 2 November 2023) : : : ! e
Cr Justine Farrugia $- $- $1,066.72 §- §- $38,647 $39,713.72
Cr Goran Kesic $10,956.80 5= $822.46 $61.82 5~ 538,776 $50,617.08
Cr Kathy Majdlik _
(Mayor fram 2 November 2023) $630.28  $122.73 $2,285.81 $155.45 $ $99956  $103,150.27
Cr Sophie Ramsey g - $2449.76 $156.82 = $38,647 $41,253.58
Cr Julie Shannon
{Deputy Mayor until 2 Hovember - 5= $2,127.80 $472.73 §= 546,632 $49,232.53
2023)
Cr Bob Turner $2,690.65 $2,353.75* &= §742.66 $- $38,746 $44,533.06
Cr Ashleigh _ _ _
Vandenberg 3 $ $2,004.29 $64.09 $ $37,185 $39,253.38

*Representing Melton Council at the Australian Local Gavernment Association's National General Assembly.
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Community Grants

Council recognises and values the important Council provides financial support to cammunity groups
contribution residents and local community groups and residents through the Community Grants and Funds
make to create a vibrant, safe and liveable City that Program. During the 2023/24 financial year the program
is accessible to all. Local community groups are underwent a formal review and the revised offerings
ideally placed to understand local needs and, through were made available to the community on 1 March 2024.

programs and projects, can encourage individual
participation resulting in significant benefit for the
whole community.

2023/24 Council Grant Program Categories
Council directly provided community funding through the following program categories:

Community Grants & Funds Programs

Grant/Fund Category Purpose

Available to the community from 1 July 2023 - 31 January 2024

Responsive Grants Financial assistance for projects that provide a timely response to emerging
community needs/issues.

Establishment Grants Supporting establishment costs of new groups.

Semi-Annual Grants Access to community grants across 2 categories:
= Community Project Grants - up to $10,000
*  Entry-Level Grants - up to $2,000

Resident Achievement ~ Recognises achievements and financial sacrifices made by residents
Contributions participating in leisure and cultural activities at a higher level.

Available to the community from 1 March 2024

Community Grants Access to community grants across five categories:
Program *  TheArts

= Sports and Hobbies

= Healthy and Safe Living

*  Festivals, Events and Culture

* Environment and Nature

Resident Achievement ~ Recognises achievements and financial sacrifices made by residents
Fund participating in activities at a higher level. This replaces the previous “Resident
Achievement Contributions” Fund, with increases to funding limits.

New Groups Fund Supporting establishment costs of new groups for specified items.

FairGo 4 Youth Fund Providing opportunities for disadvantaged young people to participate in local
extracurricular activities

Amount Available

Up to $2,000

Up to $1,500

Up o $10,000

International $750
Interstate $500
State $250

Up to 85,000

International $2,000
Interstate 51,000
State $500

Up to 1,500

Up to $400 (with

an additional $200
available for people
with a disability)
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The table below provides a summary of the successful allocation of funds
across all program areas for the 2023/24 financial year:

Community Grants & Fund Programs

SHOTTIDONNOD N0 ANV ALID ¥NO

Number of
Grant & Fund Category applications funded  Amount Funded
Semi-Annual Grants 13 §71,306
Responsive Grants 29 $56,051
Establishment Grants 5 §7,390
Resident Achievement Contributions 32 $17,000
Community Grants Program 9 §30,272
New Groups Fund 3 $4,500
Resident Achievement Fund 35 §33,256
FairGo 4 Youth Fund 173 $66,720
FairGo 4 Youth Fund (applications being processed) 57 $§29,650
TOTAL COMMUNITY GRANT & FUND PROGRAMS . 356 . $316,145
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Dffice of the CED Directorate

Head of

Governance

— Integrity

— Risk

— Governance

— Legal

Relations
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Emily Keogh
Head of
Governance

Organisational Structure

Council’'s organisational structure is represented in the diagram below and led by the Executive Leadership Team
members pictured.

Roslyn Wai

Chief Executive
Officer

Head of People
and Customer

—
;;9
Angela Hays

Head of Peaple
and Customer

*Commenced 20 July 2024

__ Peopleand
Safety

Customer
Experience

Communications

Advocacy and
- Government

Transformation

Organisational
Performance

Directorate

Peter Leersen

Director
Organisational
Performance
(Chief Financial
Officer)

— Finance

— Procurement

— EPMO

— Technology

Organisational
Performance

City Life
Directorate

Troy Scoble

Director
City Life

Libraries and
Learning

Community
— Careand Active
Living

Recreation
— and Facility
Activation

Healthy
i— Connected
Communities

Child, Family
and Youth

Maternal and

Child Health

City Futures
Directorate

Sam Romaszko

Director
City Futures

— City Strategy

City
— Environment and
Sustainability

City Growth and
Development

City
i— Infrastructure
Planning

Economy and
Place

City Delivery
Directorate

Neil Whiteside

Director
City Delivery

— Operations

— Capital Delivery

Community
Safety

Engineering
— and Asset
Services

L Major Projects
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Employee Information

Employee Breakdown
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Officeof  Organisational City City City
the CEO Performance Life Futures Delivery TOTAL
Full-Time Female A4 50 129 38 62 323
Male 9 37 43 51 72 212
Part-Time Female 19 6 146 6 69 246
Male 1 0 14 1 20 36
Casual Female 4 0 53 0 15 72
Male 0 0 7 0 11 18
907
Senior
Band 1 Band 2 Band 3 Band 4 Band 5 Band 6 Band 7 Band8  Nurses Officers
Female 76 13 61 134 109 90 47 26 67 18
Male 27 5 17 19 39 46 L 30 0 19

In 2023/24, Council employed 907 people in full-time, part-time and casual capacities.

Workforce Diversity and Inclusion

Council aims to continually develop a high-performing
workforce. Diversity in our workforce means a broad
range of perspectives for better decision making, with
improved outcomes for our community. Our Enterprise
Agreement includes initiatives that will support the
attraction and retention of a diverse workforce.

Council's new employee program sets a foundation

of expectations starting with our Values: Motivate,
Empower, Lead, Trust, Opennessand Nurture (MELTON),
awareness of anti-discrimination, and prevention of
bullying and harassment. The employment relationship
is further supported by crganisational policies to foster
an inclusive, welcoming and respectful workplace.

Recruitment practices are continually reviewed

to include adjusting and introducing more flexible
selection processes, including suitable adjustments
for people with diverse needs. This was enhanced this
year through the review and implementation of a new
Recruitment and Selection Policy aimed at achieving
greater fairness and equity.

Enterprise Bargaining Agreement

The Fair Work Cormission approved the Melton City

Council Enterprise Bargaining Agreement No 10, 2022
and became operational on 14 July 2023. Since then the
Enterprise Agreement has been fully implemented with
the following changes:

- Introduction of the Employee Consultative
Committee

Increased leave entitlements including:

* Five weeks annual leave

¢ Emergency services leave

+ Donor leave

¢ |IVF and pre-natal leave

= Affirmation and transition of gender leave

* Additional compassionate leave for ATSI staff
= Salaryincreasesincluding an additional banding

level for Maternal Child Health Nurses

The Employee Consultative Committee meets quarterly
and provides a forum in which general employee
representatives, employee union members and
management representatives discuss matters that
contribute to cooperative workplace relations and

work practices.
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Professional Development Reward and Recognition Program
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Asuite of professional development opportunities are
offered to staff via the Carporate Training Calendar. The
developmentand program framework is delivered by
People and Safety and provides access to a range of
workshops in areas such as business, communication,
systems training and personal development. In 2023/24
focus programs included diversity and inclusion,
community engagement, health and wellbeing, and
leadership development. During the financial year, 26
professional development courses were offered.

Leadership Development Program

Council offers comprehensive training opportunities to
all leaders and staff who aspire to be people leaders.
Councilintroduced the People Leaders Forum which
brings leaders together to build knowledge, capability
and team leadership culture. Five sessions will be held
in the calendar year, with the 2024 sessions focusing on
Council's workplace Transformation Plan

Council's Senior Leadership Team, Executive and
Managers, participated in workshops with a focus on
leading the workplace together.

Council partnered with the Juno Institute to deliver

an Adaptive Leaders Program. Over 12 weeks, 16
participants completed the program and strengthened
their leadership skills by coaching and mentoring

a 'protege’ or member of the community to gain
employment or education. The program concluded with
a graduation ceremany in November.

The Reward and Recognition framewaork forms part of
our employee value proposition and has a focus on both
staff and leadership driven recognition. The annual Star
Awards were held in December 2023, This included
length of service awards and 83 staff were recognised
for their contribution to Council.

The Star Awards program saw 102 staff and teams
nominated for five different categories with seven teams
and 12 individual staff members receiving a Star Award.

Prevention of violence against women/
gender equity strategy

Council recognises genderinequality as the root cause
of violence against women and has committed to
working towards a gender equitable, safe and inclusive
community and workplace. Council demonstrates its
commitment to prevention of violence against women
and gender equity through the provision of a family
violence policy and procedure to support staff who have
experienced family violence. Council recognises the
benefits of gender equality for increased organisational
performance, diversity, inclusion and the attraction and
retention of employees.

Council also focuses on preventing family violence
through its Equality and Respect 2030: A Strategy to
preventviolence against women by promoting gender
equity in the City of Melton. This year Council continued
to deliver against the actions within the Gender Equality
Action Plan (GEAP). Our GEAP focused on equity in
employment processes including recruitment and
promaotion, language and building employee awareness
around the effects of violence and unconscious

hias. Initiatives in the Enterprise Agreement provide
enhanced entitlements for employees including
superannuation payments on Parental Leave, additional
superannuation for women over 45 and strengthened
individual flexibility for staff.
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Occupational Health and Safety, Workplace Health and Wellbeing,
Injury Management/Return to Work and Enterprise Risk Management

Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)

Council is committed to a safe and healthy workplace
forits employees and aims to have safe practices and
preventative measures in place and embedded within
the culture. In addition to enhanced commitments in our
Enterprise Agreement, Council cantinued to review and
monitor its health and safety obligations, implement
changes to ensure its safety frameworks contributed

to managing risks, improving health and wellbeing,
organisational performance and productivity.

Council undertook a significant project to review the
designated workgroups and OHS governance structure
in 2023. This resulted in a new governance structure
within Council that provides a clearer framework for
consultation, reporting accountability, decision-making
and issue escalation. With increased health and safety
representatives and consultative processes across the
organisation, there will be increased awareness and
participation for employees in health and safety matters.

Through an internal audit all employees were invited

to participate in a survey that focussed on workplace
safety, including psychosocial safety. This also consisted
of a thorough review of Council's safety framework
which included policies, procedures, incidents/hazards,
and communication. The results from the audit will be
developed into an updated and improved safety strategy
and action plan designed to strengthen Council's

safety culture.

Workplace Health and Wellbeing

We recognise that our employees are our most
important asset and we work to promote and improve
our employee's safety, health and wellbeing. Employees
and their families have access to an extensive range

of support services through our employee assistance
program. Employees can confidentially and discretely
access a range of emational, physical and social support
services including:

* 24/7 face-to-face and telephone counselling
* Health and wellbeing services

« Extensive online resources e.g. health risk
assessment, mortgage assist, finance assist and
legal assist.

Through flexible work and remaote working
arrangements, Council supports employees' ability
to achieve a healthy level of work-life balance

and wellbeing.

Injury Management/Return to Work

Implementation of early return-to-work strategies,
working closely with injured employees, treating
practitioners and people managers assists Council
insupporting our employees in their recovery and
sustainable warking outcomes.

Child Safety

Council is committed to being a child safe organisation.
We recognise our responsibility to keep children and
young people safe from harm and have established
policies, procedures, and training to achieve these
commitments. Councilis actively implementing
Council's Child Safe compliance requirements under
the Victarian Child Safe Standards. A newly established
cross-organisational governance structure oversees
Council delivering its responsibilities regarding child
safeguards, monitoring outcomes and reporting to both
Council and State government authorities.

Enterprise Risk Management

Council has continued to implement its Risk
Management Framewaork (plan) and online Risk
Managementtool across numerous business units. The
tool has the capability to manage and record strategic,
corporate and operational risks. During the period
between November 2023 and March 2024, 144 leaders
from across the organisation received training on
Council's Risk Management framework and online Risk
Management tool. Council has continued to facilitate
risk workshops across the business units to conduct risk
assessments and establish operational risk registers.
Council has developed a roadmap with an overview

of actions and projects to be prioritised over the next
two years. This roadmap is largely focused on uplifting
maturity through establishing the risk profile on all
levels including strategic, corporate and operational
risks as well as embedding a positive and proactive risk
aware culture, Thisincludes facilitating risk-related
activities across the business to cantinue to build
organisational resilience, consistency and continuity.

37d03d 4no

LHOdIY TYNNNY | TIDONNOD ALID NOLTIW

te/ee0t

=1
[

Page 51



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL 21 OCTOBER 2024
ltem 12.1  Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24
Appendix 1 Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24

Our Performance
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Council is committed to transparent reporting and accountability to the community and the
Report of Operations 2023/24 is the primary means of informing the City of Melton community
about Council's operations and performance during the financial year.

Integrated Strategic Planning and Reporting Framework

Part 4 of the Local Gavernment Act 2020 requires councils to prepare the following:
A Community Vision (for at least the next 10 financial years)

A Council Plan (for at least the next four financial years)

A Financial Plan (for at least the next 10 financial years)

An Asset Plan (for at least the next 10 financial years)

A Revenue and Rating Plan (for at least the next four financial years)

An Annual Budget (far the next financial year)

A Quarterly Budget Report

An Annual Report (for each financial year); and

L T R I

Financial policies.

The Act also requires councils to prepare:

- AWorkforce Plan (including projected staffing requirements for at least four years).
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Accountability Framework

The following diagram shows the relationships between the key planning and reporting documents that make up the
planning and accountability framework for local government. It also shows that there are opportunities for community

and stakeholder input and feedback at each stage of the planning and reporting cycle

10+ years

4+ years

Vision, strategy and policy

Budget
1+3 years

}

Financial Plan

{ e

Municipal Public Health
and Wellbeing Plan
(MPHWP)

Municipal Planning

Strategy (MPS)
Other Strategic Plans

Resource allocation and management

Workforce Plan

Revenue and Ilatlng Plan

Cyclic and ongoing processes

Policy and Strategy Review

Business / Service Planning, Service Review and Continuous Improvement

Long-term Financial Modelling and Asset Planning

Description of Operations

Melton City Councilis responsible for more than 100
services. These include family and children's services,
traffic regulation, open space, youth services, waste
management and community planning. Other matters
concerning business development, planning for
appropriate development and ensuring accountability
for Council's budget are also part of day-to-day
operations at Melton City Council.

y

Performance
monitoring and
accountability

Reporting on
Community Vision

Council Plan
Reporting

v

Quarterly Finance and
Project Reporting

Financial Audit

Annual Report

A 4

Local Government
Perfarmance
Reporting Framework
(LGPRF)

Council's broad range of community services and
infrastructure support the wellbeing and prosperity

of its community. Council's vision, strategic objectives
and strategies to furtherimprove services and facilities
are described in the Council and Wellbeing Plan, the
Budget, and this Annual Report.

The delivery of services, facilities, support and advocacy

to achieve strategic objectives is measured by a set of
service performance indicators and measures. Council
also has a wide range of responsibilities under Victorian
legislation.
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Themes

Strategic Outcome

Objectives

Strategies

Strategic Performance
Indicators

Melton City Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025

The Council and Wellbeing Plan guides all Council activities over the four-year term of the elected Council. The key
elements of the Council and Wellbeing Plan are:

Used to focus a Council's strategic planning into common subject matter and are usually a few key words

followed by a short statement of explanation.

Theme One

A safe City that is socially
and culturally connected.

Adiverse, equitable, safe and
connected City that people are
proud to be part of

Theme Three

A fast growing, innovative
and well-planned City.

A City where growth and
development occur in a strategic,
fair and sustainable way

Theme Five

A community that is actively
engaged in the City.

A community that embraces
volunteering and is encouraged
and able to engage with Council

Describes the desired future condition upon the achievement of the stated objectives.

The strategic purpose statements that set the direction to manage underlying issues or take advantage
of presenting opportunities.

Set of approaches directed at achieving the objectives in the Council and Wellbeing Plan.

What is measured to assess performance against Council and Wellbeing Plan strategic objectives?

The Melton City Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 themes and strategic outcomes are:

Theme Two

Avibrant and healthy natural
and built environment.

ACity that protects and enhances
its natural environment for future
generations

Theme Four

A City that promotes greater
education and employment.

ACity richin local employment
and education opportunities

Theme Six

Ahigh-performing organisation that
demonstrates civic leadership and
organisational excellence.

An innovative, transparent,
accountable and sustainable
organisation
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Performance

Council's performance for 2023/24 has been reported against each Council and Wellbeing Plan
theme, desired outcome and objective to demonstrate how Councilis performing in achieving the
Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025.

IDNVWHO4Y¥3Id N0

Performance has been measured as follows:
* Results achieved in relation to the strategic indicators in the Council and Wellbeing Plan
* Progressinrelation to the major initiatives identified in the budget

* Services fundedin the budget and the persons or sections of the community who are providing
those services

* Results against the Local Government Victoria prescribed service performance indicators
and measures.

Council Annual Action Plan

The Melton City Council Action Plan is an annual plan that documents key activities and initiatives.
Progress reports are prepared on a quarterly basis and published on Council's website.

The 2023/24 Council Annual Action Plan End of Year Performance Report was presented to Council
at the 26 August 2024 meeting. The report provides commentary on achievements, progress and
explanations for delays and postponements.

The table below details progress against the actions in 2023/24.
A copy of this report can be found on Council's website.

The 2023/24 year represents the third year of the Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025.

Status Description Number of actions
Completed The Action has been completed 61
On track At least 90% of the action target has been achieved 0
Off Track Between 75% and 90% of the action target has been achieved 0
Monitor Less than 75% of the action target has been achieved 1
TOTALACTIONS 62

Detailed Performance Analysis

The following outlines Council's performance by theme:

= Against the Strategic Indicators in the Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025

* Progress reports against initiatives in the 2023/24 budget

» Significant achievements for the year

= Information in relation to services funded in the 2023/24 budget.

Italso provides results for the prescribed service performance indicators and measures as set outin
the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework and a look at what the future holds.

Objectives and strategic indicators with a strong health and wellbeing focus have been identified
with a health and wellbeing icon
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Theme One

A safe City that is socially
and culturally connected
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Strategic Outcome: A diverse, equitable, safe and connected
City that people are proud to be part of.
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= OBJECTIVE: 1.1
<
; A community that celebrates diversity and is inclusive of all ¥
z
L RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community agreement that the City of Melton 7.3 7.8 1.8 The 2024 result is the same as last year and continues the
is an age-friendly community % upward trend since 2022,

Council will continue to review its programs, services and

Source: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Surve: X A ) N X
! / events to ensure it provides a high-quality service to all ages.

Community agreement that the City of Melton 7.4 1.1 1.8 Results have continued to improve over the course of the

is accessible and inclusive for people living Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025.

with a disability @ Council will continue to review its programs, services and

Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey PZV?MS "_D enSL,"E Il_ medes ahigh-quality service ta people
living with a disability.

Community agreement that the City of Melton 7.7 8 1.9 The 2024 result shows a very marginal decrease compared

community is welcoming and supportive of to last year but is higher than in 2022. It indicates the

people from diverse cultures and backgrounds community still agrees that the City of Melton welcomes and

v supports everyone.

Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey

Community agreement that the City of Melton 7.5 1.1 1.7 The 2024 result shows a continuation of last year's level

is welcoming and supportive of the LGBTIQA+ and an upwards trend since 2022. The result indicates the

community community agrees with the statement.

Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey

Community satisfaction with culture and 14 1.9 8 There has been anincrease in the level of agreement with

diversity representation in community events this indicator compared to previous years. The resultis in the

very good range and indicates the community are satisfied

with culture and diversity representation in community
Source: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey events
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Community agreement that the City of Melton is an
"age-friendly" community

o N O~ oo o

2021122 2022/23 2023124

Community agreement that the City of Melton
community is welcoming and supportive of people
from diverse cultures and backgrounds

= - =

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Community satisfaction with culture and diversity
representation in community events

(= B R L= - - B = |

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Community agreement that the City of Melton is
accessible and inclusive for people with a disability

(= F R SR N - R —1

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Community agreement that the City of Melton
community is welcoming and supportive of the
LGBTIQA+ community

o N B o0 m O

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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OBJECTIVE: 1.2

A safe community where people feel proud to live ¥

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community agreement that the City of Melton 7.2 1.1 1.7 The 2024 result is the same as the previous year, which was
community is proud of, connected to and an increase in satisfaction from 2022. This indicates that
enjoys its neighbourhoods % the City of Melton community is generally proud of, feels
_ _ connected to and enjoys its local neighbourhoods.
Source: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey
Personal level of safety in public areas of the 7.4 8 7.7 The 2024 shows a marginal decrease compared to 2023,
City of Melton during the day % although it is still higher than in 2022. The result indicates
that generally, the community feels safe during the day.
Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey
Personal level of safety in public areas of the 5.5 6.6 b The 2024 result is slightly lower compared to last year but is
City of Melton at night % still higher than in 2022 The result indicates that generally
‘ o the community feels safe during the night. However, itis
Source: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey noted that this rating is lower than the perceptions of safety
indicators during the day, which provides an opportunity for
ongoing improvement in safety at night.
Community agreement that the City of Melton 7.1 1.6 1.1 The 2024 result shows an improvement since the beginning

is vibrant, accessible and engaging %

Source: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey

Community agreement that the City of Melton
community is proud of, connected to and enjoys its

neighbourhoods

"

o RN o o8 o O

2021/22 2022/23

2023/24

Personal level of safety in public areas of the

City at night

—_

L= AT == B =]

2021/22 2022/23

2023/24

of the Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025.

The result continues the high level of agreement that Melton
Is vibrant, accessible and engaging.

Personal level of safety in public areas of the City

during the day
10
8
6
4
2
0
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Community agreement that the City of Melton is
vibrant, accessible, and engaging

S M B o0 @ O

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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0BJECTIVE: 1.3 =
<
Local neighbourhoods are socially and culturally connected % g
z
RESULT RESULT RESULT m
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community agreement that there are 7 1.6 16 The 2024 result is the same as the previous year, which was
adequate opportunities to socialise and asignificant increase from 2022, indicating the community
meet people in the local area % strongly agrees that there are adequate opportunities to

socialise and meet people in the local area.
Source: Metrapolis Community Satisfaclion Survey

Community satisfaction with the provisionof 7.3 19 8.0 The 2024 result is a slight increase on the previous year, but
cultural and community events % a significantimprovement on 2022. The results continue to
be in the very good range for community satisfaction with the
Source: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey provision of events.
Community agreement that there are adequate Community satisfaction with the provision of cultural
opportunities to socialise and meet people in the and community events
localarea
10 10
8 8
6 (]
& 4
2 2
0 0
2021122 2022/23 2023124 2021/22 2022123 2023724
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OBJECTIVE: 1.4

A City that promotes positive public health and wellbeing outcomes to our community %

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30JUNE  30JUNE 30 JUNE

STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community agreement that family violence is  28.6% Noresult  13% The result is notably lower than in 2022 (no data was
prevalent in our community % available collected in 2023). The City of Melton experiences the

third highest rate of family violence in the Metro-West,
exceeding the Victorian average. These findings suggest a
need for enhanced community education and awareness
efforts on family violence. This data aligns with the national
community attitudes survey and fulfills our reporting
obligations under the Gender Equality Act 2020.

Source: Metropolis Community Satistaction Survey

Persanal level of satisfaction with support 6.6 7.1 1.6 The 2024 result sees another increase in the personal
services W level of satisfaction with support services since the

_ commencement of the Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-
Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey 2025.
Community agreement that there are 14 73 1.7 The 2024 result has improved compared to previous years.
opportunities to participate in recreational and Itindicates community agreement that the opportunities to
leisure activities ¥ participate in recreational and leisure activities are “very

good”.

Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey

Community agreement that family violence is Personal level of satisfaction with support services
prevalent in our community

40% 8

30% 6

20% 4

10% . 2

0% 0
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022123 2023/24

NB: “Community agreement that family violence is prevalent in our community" was not
COmmunity agreement that there are opportunities to asked in the annual Community Satisfaction Survey in 2022/23

participate in recreational and leisure activities

o N N o0 0 O

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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OBJECTIVE: 1.5 =
<
A City that celebrates Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander cultures, knowledge and right to self-determination % g
z
RESULT RESULT RESULT m
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Number of Council supported activities led 10 18 12 Initiatives included the NAIDOC Ball and Cultural Yarn
by Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander at the Learning Festivalin July 2023, the Welcome Baby
community members to Country eventin August 2023, Kirrip's participation at

the Djerriwarrh Festival in November 2023 and hosting a
Christmas party for local First Nations families in December
2023. Activities in 2024 included cultural awareness

(The number af Council supparted activities led by
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community

members}
sessions during Reconciliation Week in May 2024. These
events and initiatives underscore Council’'s commitment to
fostering cultural awareness and community engagement.
Consultations completed with Aboriginal 7 21 26 Consultations this year included the Melton Cemetery
Traditional Owners Reflection Space and proposing a Wurundjeri name for

Lake Darlingsford. Council has actively developed six
Cultural Heritage Management Plans (CHMPs), engaged
with three Traditional Owner groups and involved
Traditional Owners in three planning scheme amendments.
Council consultations extended to collaborating with the
Wurundjeri community for a First Nations exhibition and
contributing to the design processes of the Plumpton
Aqguatic Centre and Cobblebank Cammunity Services

Hub. Council successfully activated or completed eight
CHMPs from January to June 2024, with two engagements
specifically involving Traditional Owners related to ongoing

[The number of consultations between Council and
Aboriginal Traditional Owners)

CHMP projects.
Number of Council supported activities Consultations completed with
led by Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander Aboriginal Traditional Owners
community members
20 30
25
1
. 20
10 15
- 10
5
: . 1R
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The following table outlines Council's progress in 2023/24 an initiatives identified in the 2023/24 budget.

-
X
m
<
m
o]
=z
m

INITIATIVES PROGRESS COMMENTS

Increased airconditioning, internet and repair of flooring The design stage has commenced and is due to be completed by

(courts 4/5) - Cobblebank Basketball Stadium In progress December 2024. Floor repairs have been completed.
Upgradgtn LED lighting on main soccer pitches - Springside Completed
Recreational Reserve Caroline Springs
The design stage has been completed and the grease trap
Kitchen upgrade - Blackwood Drive Reserve, Reynolds Place, N progress installation and power upgrades are scheduled for completion by
Melton prog September 2024. The project is scheduled for completion by the
end of 2024.
Pavilion upgrades - Blackwood Orive Recreation Reserve Completed
Coaches' Box - Reserve Rd Melton In progress This project is scheduled to commence in January 2025, with an

anticipated construction timeframe of eight weeks,

Work to replace the two synthetic cricket pitches has been
In progress completed. The extension of the cricket nets has commenced and
is due for completion in August 2024.

Extend the cricket practice nets and replace the synthetic pitch -
Blackwood Drive Reserve Melton South

The design stage has commenced and is due for completion by

Upgrade toilets and kitchen - Melton Bowling Club In progress October 2024,

The Request for Tender for the construction stage will commence
In progress July 2024, The delivery timeframe is to be confirmed and
contractor appointed.

Resurfacing of the tennis courts and installing perimeter fencing
around the tennis club - Hillside Tennis Club

Car park extension - City Vista Sports Precinct Completed
Concept planning for a local community space and other needed

s ! . - Completed
facilities - Kurunjang Recreation Reserve and pavilion
Electronic scoreboard upgrade - Diggers Rest Recreation Completed

Reserve

Initial benchmarking has been undertaken. Officers continue to
Special Housing Project - City of Melton In progress wait for further direction from the State Government and Plan
Victoria before proceeding.

Car park asphalting, lighting and line marking of parking bays -

West Melton Tennis Centre Completed

Carols by Candlelight - Caroline Springs Completed

Improvement of the practice net areas - Hillside Recreation

Reserve In progress Delivery of this project is scheduled to commence in March 2025.

Outdoor undercover viewing area -Diggers Rest Bowling Club ~ Completed

E Adraft Repair Café Feasibility Study report has been received and
5 Repair Service Facility - Possible location Melton Recycling or will be considered through the Circular Economy and Resource
o o o In progress - ]

=z similar facility Recovery Strategy that is underway. In the community survey, a
2] majority of survey participants expressed interest in repair cafe.
o}

=<

a Diggers Rest Community Carols Completed

= Combined Churches Caring Contribution Completed

z

z Upgrade Melton South Community Centre -

S Exford Road, Melton Completed

=

L2 Aconservation specialist has been appointed to undertake the
g . . - .

% Willows Homestead - Reserve Road, Melton In progress development of a furniture, t_urnlshmgs and historical arllwlacts
A management plan. The plan is expected to be completed in

- 2024/25.

N

IFLJ Six-manth trial to extend hours of Taylors Hill Men's Shed -

vl . Completed

N Taylors Hill

s
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Significant Achievements for the Year

INO IW3HL

+ Delivered Council’s Cultural Diversity Week Festival + Held three community activation days celebrating the

in March 2024 bringing together more than 1,000
residents from the City of Melton from diverse
backgrounds, identities, ages and abilities

opening of new community centres, attracting more
than 1,500 residents collectively

~ Delivered the assertive outreach response initiative
Housing services supported 95 households which resulted in 109 notifications through the rough
(96 children & 98 adults) who are experiencing sleeping notification tool on Council's webpage
homelessness v Held the Women in Sport breakfast with 60 attendees
Deuvere.dlz 1 ,Uq&; mgals‘lp resmientsi, older adults and v The first year of the Equality and Respect
people living with disability and their carers Implementation Plan 2023-2025 was delivered, with
Opened the Atherstone Traffic School, incorporating tailored staff training on preventing family violence
initiatives to increase online safety, digital literacy and capacity building
and road safety ~ NAIDOC was celebrated with the first annual Western

NAIDOC ball hosted within the City of Melton
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of the community who are provided the service.

INO IWIHL

The following table outlines information in relation to the services funded in the 2023/24 budget and the persons or sections

NET (COST)/SURPLUS ACTUALS
NET (COST)/SURPLUS BUDGET
(UNFAVOURABLE)/FAVOURABLE
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VARIANCE

SERVICE DESCRIPTION $000
Community Community Safety is responsible for the implementation of Council's General ($176)
Safety Local Laws including amenity protection, local laws, parking, litter prevention, (51,162)

fire prevention and management of the school crossings program. Community

Safety is also responsible for building services, environmental health, and animal $986

management, including ranger services and management of Council's Pound.
Child, Family Provision of services for children 0-25 years and their families. Programs include ($2,799)
and Youth childcare services, kindergarten enrolment, playgroup and children's programs, ($3,465)

family parenting programs, preschool field officer programs and the best start

program. The service also facilitates Council's Early Years Partnership committee $666

delivering the City of Meltons Municipal Early Years Plan and the provision of all

programs and services related to young people aged 12-25 through the Young

Communities portfolio.
Community and Provision of services and programs for older people, people living with a disability ($1,904)
Active Living and their carers including delivered and centre-based meals, personal care, domestic ($2,809)

assistance, community transport property maintenance, community and centre-

based respite, and Men's Shed. It also includes provision of Integrated Family Support $905

Services and Housing Services that provide homelessness support services and

manage Council's affordable housing properties. The service area also facilitates

Council's Disability Advisory and Youth Advisory Committees.
Recreation and Plans and manages the provision of all community sport, recreation and leisure- ($1,098)
Community based (including aquatics) infrastructure across the municipality. The service also (81.143)
Activation provides advice to Council on open space planning, sport development, leisure !

needs and access to recreation activities. The Business unit provides Council's cafe $45

services and manages the activation and bookings of all community facilities and

infrastructure.
Healthy Plans, promotes and supports a more inclusive, engaged, healthy and safe ($7,193)
Connected community through a range of community capacity initiatives and programs. This is (56,996)
Communities delivered through the provision of community centre and neighbourhood facilities

and programs, social and health policy planning and research, health promotion, ($197)

community safety, the prevention of violence against women, reconciliation and

First Nations community engagement, and culturally and linguistically diverse

communities’ engagement along with community grants and awards programs. Plans

and delivers Council's major events (civic and community) program. Development,

delivery and support of a diverse range of events including Council's major event

program and the curation of public art activation and programs.
Maternal and Provision of all Maternal Child Health Services and programs including Universal and ($2,597)
Child Health Enhanced MCH services, parental education support services and programs. ($4,178)

$1,581
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The following table outlines the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including =
explanation of material variations. (No material variation means the result is within the permissible range figure provided by z
Local Government Victoria). g
z
RESULT RESULT RESULT RESULT m
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
SERVICE/INDICATOR/MEASURE 2021 2022 2023 2024 MATERIAL VARIATIONS
Animal Management
Timeliness 4.1 days 59days  8.3days  5.5days  Theaverage number of days to action Animal
AM1 Time taken to action animal Management requests has slightly decreased from
management requests 5.9in2022t05.5 days in 2[]2&: This slight decrease
has occurred due to improved internal processes
[Number of days between receipt and first response and resources to eliminate any backlog.
action for all animal management requests/Number
of animal management requests] x100
Service standard 36.6% 40.9% 35% 26.8% The number of animals reclaimed has decreased
AM2 Animals reclaimed by 9.8% since 2021. This can be attributed to some
people considering the current costs of owning
[Humber of animals reclaimed/Number of animals animals and not collecting them after they have
collected] x100 been impounded.
Service standard 39% 49.3% 49.3% 56.3% Anincrease from 49.3% in the 2022 and 2023
AM5 Animals rehomed reporting periods to 56.3% for the current reporting
period is related to more animals being suitable for
[Number of animals rehomed/Mumber of animals rehoming. Suitability for rehoming is based upon the
callected] x100 animal's health, behaviour/nature and temperament
testing relating to other animals, people, food etc.
Service cost $6.85 56.96 $8.22 $9.17 The increase from $6.96in 2022 t0 $9.17 in 2024
AM6 Cost of animal management service is due to an increase in staff, costs associated with
per population our Snake Relocation Program, Pound Facility
redevelopment and the cost of supplies.
[Direct cost of the animal management service/
Municipal population]
Health and safety 100% 100% 100% 100% There were 23 animal matters heard. Itis Council's

AM7 Animal management prosecutions

[Number of successful animal management
presecutions/Number of animal management
prosecutions)

highest number of prosecutions ina 12-manth
period. All 23 prosecutions were successful.
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RESULT RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30JUNE  30JUNE 30 JUNE
SERVICE/INDICATOR/MEASURE 2021 2022 2023 2024 MATERIAL VARIATIONS

INO IWIHL

Food Safety

Timeliness 2 days 1.7days  2.1days  1.5days  Theaverage number of days to action food
complaints has reduced by 0.6 days from 2.1 days

FS1 Time taken to action food complaints
in 2023 to 1.5 days in 2024. This has been achieved

[Mumber of days between receipt and first response through improvements in the process and a shift in
actian for all faod complaints/Number of food the prioritisation of these tasks when received.
complaints]

Service standard 63.8% 54% 50.7% 51.9% The slight increase of annual inspections from

50.7%in 2023 to 51.9% in 2024 is due to a more

FS2 Food safety assessments
targeted focus on Food Safety Assessments.

[Mumber of registered class 1 food premises and
class 2 food premises thaf receive an annual food
safety assessment in accordance with the Faod Act
1984/Number of registered class 1 food premises
and class 2 food premises that require an annual
food safety assessment in accordance with the Food
Act 1984] x100

Service cost $353.86 $326.61 $257.44 $316.18 The employment of an Environmental Health

FS3 Cost of food safety service Ufficep pnpulatinn gruwth,. rising cqsts of
analytical services and an increase in the number

[Direct cost of the food safety service/Mumber of of registered premises has contributed to the

food premises registered or notified in accordance increase in the cost of the service compared to

with the Food Act 1984]

2023. Despite the increase since 2023, it is still
lower than previous years.

Health and safety 0 1 0 0 No notifications received as of the end of the

FS4 Critical and major non-compliance 2023/24 financial year.

outcome natifications

[Number of critical nan-compliance outcome
natifications and major non-compliance
notifications about a food premises followed up/
Mumber of critical non-compliance outcome
natifications and major non-compliance
notifications about a food premises) x100

Health and Safety - - - 100% This is a new indicator for the 2023/24 financial
FS5 Food Safety Samples year so there is no historical data for comparison.
All samples for the 2023/24 financial year have

[Number of food samples obtained/Required
number of food samples] x 100 been collected.

Aquatic Facilities

Service standard 0 0 0 0 No inspections were carried out during the

AF2 Health inspections of aquatic financial year, in line with previous years.
facilities
[Number of authorised officer inspections of

Council aquatic facilities/Number of Council aquatic
facilities)

Utilisation 0.4 1 1.6 1.8 Attendances have increased marginally compared
to previous years. The increase can be attributed

AF6 Utilisation of aquatic facilities :
to more "Learn to Swim" programs and more

[Number of visits to aguatic facilities/Municipal wellness programs conducted during the year.
population]
Service cost §14.12 $1.38 $3.84 $3.88 Contract payments have marginally increased

this year and an increase in gas charges has
contributed to a smallincrease in operating costs

[Direct cost of aguatic facilities less income compared to the previous year.
received/Number of visits to aquatic facilities]

AFT Cost of aquatic facilities
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RESULT RESULT RESULT RESULT
30JUNE 30 JUNE 30JUNE  30JUNE

SERVICE/INDICATOR/MEASURE 20 2022 2023 2024 MATERIAL VARIATIONS

Maternal and Child Health

Service standard 101.2% 101.4% 101.1% 100.9% The 2024 result is comparable to results from the

MC2 Infant enralments in the MCH previous three years. The result is what would

service be expected from this indicator as it relates to
newborn enrolments.

[Number of infants enralled in the MCH service

{from birth notifications received)/Number of birth

notifications received] x 100

Service Cost $84.22 $82.87 $82.31 582.95 The slight increase in the cost of service is within

MC3 Cost of MCH Service expected levels.

[Cost of the MCH service/Hours worked by MCH

nurses|

Participation 62.7% 56% 52.8% 53.2% This result is consistent with the previous year and

MC4 Participation in the MCH service reflects the service operating a prioritised MCH
service model and rapid population increases.

[Mumber of children who attend the MCH service at

least ance in the year/Number of children enrolled

inthe MCH service] x100

Participation M.1% 64°% 80% 67.3% This result is within expected parameters. The

MC5 Participation in the MCH service by reduction from 2023 is reflective of staffing levels

Aboriginal children and is consistent with the three previous years.
Due to a relatively small cohort, these results will

[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the vary each year.

MCH service at least once in the year/Number of

Abariginal children enrolled in the MCH service]

%100

Participation 93.5% 97.6% 94.5% 94.5% Consistent with previous years which is within the

MCé Participation in 4-week Key Age
and Stage visit

[Number of 4-week key age and stage visits/
Number of birth notifications received] x 100

designated materiality threshold.

INO IWIHL
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Theme Two

A vibrant and healthy natural
and built environment

Strategic Outcome: A City that protects and enhances
its natural environment for future generations.
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OBJECTIVE: 2.1 =
=
A City with healthy waterways, biodiversity and ecosystems % 5
RESULT RESULT RESULT o
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with Council 7.1 1.5 1.4 The 2024 result is a small decrease from 2023. Community
responsibilities towards the environment engagement and education initiatives as well as campaigns

to promote the work Council is doing in the environment

Saource: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey space will hopefully improve this result for 2025.

Number of Reserve Management and 0% 0% 100% Maonitoring reports have been submitted to the Federal
Monitoring Plans Government for Mt Cottrell Recreation Reserve and Bush's

. Paddock to ensure compliance with offset reporting.
[Mumerator - Council managed canservation reserves

with Reserve Management and Monitoring Plans

Oenominator - Tatal number of Council managed
conservation reserves X 100)

Community satisfaction with Council responsibilities Number of Reserve Management and
towards the environment Manitering Plans

120%
100%
80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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OBJECTIVE: 2.2

The community and infrastructure are resilient to the impacts of a changing environment ¥

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Resource efficiency of Council buildings Data Data Data Utility data is not available.
(Total ton (M) " " was not was not was not
atal energy consumption persgm floar area
m2) (total Council buildings inm2]) I:a'ptLIFEd ca‘plured Ea.PturEd
thisyear  thisyear  thisyear
Number of trees planted in the City @ 3,500 6,000 12,431 Atotal of 12,431 trees were planted in 2024. This includes
trees planted as part of the Greening the West project.
(Only covers existing locations where trees have been
planted as replacements for dead, dying or damaged
frees.
Does not include trees planted in new developments)
Resource efficiency of Council buildings Number of trees planted in the City
100% 14,000
12,000
80% !
’ 10,000
60% 8000
40% 6,000
4,000
g ;
" m [l
0% 0
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

NB: Utility data for "Resource efficiency of Council buildings” has not yet been
received to date
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OBJECTIVE: 2.3 =
=
A City growing and developing sustainably ¥ 5
RESULT RESULT RESULT o
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Street trees with passive irrigation 6,792 9,874 11,694 New plantings in residential developments include the

provision of passive irrigation as standard. As a result,

The number of street Irees wilh passive iigation 11,694 inlets were provided by the end of the financial year.

Irrigatian that comes from the street kerb and channel. Only applies to
slrest trees that are supparted by the passive irrigation system)

Number of actions completed through the 1 5 2 The two actions for this period include addressing the
Climate Change Adaptation Plan % urban heat island in new builds such as the Green Terrace
) ) that was designed for the Plumpton Aquatic Centre; and
{The number f actians for 2023/24 fram the Climate the consideration of climate change adaptation such as
Change Adaptation Plan that have been completed X
divided by the number planned for completian x 100} the background repnrlsprepa red for Meltan East Precinct
Structure Plan. Both actions are ongoing.

Community satisfaction with Council's 6.9 1.5 15 The 2024 result is consistent with the previous year's
performance in the protection of local heritage results and reflects Council's work to promote and protect
and sites of significance local heritage sites of significance.

Saurce: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey

Street trees with passive irrigation Number of actions completed through the Climate
Change Adaptation Plan

12,000 1
10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

I - - - ="

Community satisfaction with Council's
performance in the protection of local heritage
and sites of significance
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2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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OBJECTIVE: 2.4

A City that mitigates and adapts to climate change and is environmentally aware ¥

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30JUNE  30JUNE 30 JUNE

STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Number of Council-led or supported 1 2 10 There has been a significant increase in the number of
environmental sustainability events events in 2024 compared to the previous two years,

which is a return to pre-Covid-19 levels. Events included
Sustainability Lane at DJ festival, the Love Local Market at
Fraser Rise, Harmony Day Festival and FOGO information
sessions at community centres/libraries targeting CALD
community groups.

(Number af community sustainability events coordinated
or supported by Council)

Waste diverted from landfill * 43.4% 43.4% 39.73% The kerbside collection landfill diversion rate is 39.73%
which s a decrease on previous years. The decrease

in the diversion rate can be attributed to Council and
State Government initiatives resulting in a higher uptake
of other waste disposal options including the Melton
Recycling Facility free green waste disposal, hard waste
collection services, and the Container Deposit Scheme
with households choosing to return their own bottles and
cans instead of placing these items in kerbside bins. These
initiatives will likely impact on future results, therefore
Melton will review the target for this indicator in light of
these initiatives.

(Numerator - Weight of recyclables and green organics
callected from kerbside bins

Denaminator - Weight of garbage, recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside bins as a percentage)

Potable water as a percentage of total water ~ 90% 79% Datais not Data is not currently available.
currently

(Numerator = tolal amount of potable waler available

Denaminator = total amount of all water
Multiplied by 100 to give a percentage result)

* Denates perfarmance indicator is required under the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework

Number of Council led or supported environmental Waste diverted from landfill
sustainability events

12 50%
10 40%
2 30%
z, 20%
9 10%
0 — I 0%

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

NB: Data was not available for "Potable water as a percentage of total waler” for 2023/24,

Potable water as a percentage of total water

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%
2021/22 2022/23 2023124
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Significant Achievements for the Year
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v Lake Caroline Masterplan & Activation Strategy was adopted
+ Review of the Environmental Enhancement Proagram completed

v The Western Plains South Green Wedge Management Plan was adopted

v The Environmentally Sustainable Design Guidelines have been completed.
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The following table outlines Council's progress in this financial year on initiatives identified in the 2023/24 Budget.

INITIATIVES PROGRESS COMMENTS
Local Park improvements (trees) at St Genevieve “Central Park" c
T, ompleted
on Kipling Circuit Diggers Rest
. . Consultation with the Friends of the Melton Botanic Garden is
D(’Tvmpme"tand mamt?nance of the Metton Botanic Garden by In progress scheduled for September 2024. Asummary of findings will be
Friends of Melton Botanic Garden .
presented to Council.
Path safety lighting at Norm Raven Reserve, Glitter Road | The contractor for this work has been selected and is scheduled
) nprogress .
Diggers Rest to commence work in September 2024,
Upgrade to Stage 1 park in Eynesbury Completed

The following table outlines information in relation to the services funded in the 2023/24 budget and the persons or sections
of the community who are provided the service.

NET (COST)/SURPLUS ACTUALS
NET (COST)/SURPLUS BUDGET
(UNFAVOURABLE)/FAVOURABLE

VARIANCE
SERVICE DESCRIPTION $000
Operations Operations are responsible for the maintenance of the City's assets including (572,861)
Council's roads, footpaths, drainage, parks, open spaces, sportsgrounds and trees (870.639)
and are responsible for Council's waste and recycling services. Operations also '
coordinates Council's municipal emergency management arrangements (planning, ($2,222)
preparedness, and recavery) and organisational business continuity planning.
City Environment  Provision of environmental planning and administering Council's Environmental ($1,393)
and Sustainability Enhancement Program. Creating, maintaining and implementing Council's ($2,021)
environment, climate change, sustainability and integrated water management
policies and plans. Delivery of Council's environmental outreach activities to the $628

community.
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RESULT RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE

SERVICE/INDICATOR/MEASURE 2021 2022 2023 2024 MATERIAL VARIATIONS

Waste

Service standard 0.9 0.6 1.2 0.6 Several factors caused a significant increase in

WC2 Kerbside collection bins missed 2023 compared to 2022. In collaboration with the
collection contractor, Council completed a review

[Number of kerbside garbage and recycling of the collection process before the 2023/24

collection bins missed/ Number of scheduled financial year. This has created operational

k%h[?[ildﬂe garbaga and recycling collection bin lfts] efficiencies and a more balanced workload for

o the collections contractor which has delivered a
reduction in the number of missed bins in 2024,

Service cost $119.75  §122 $152.40  $143.02  Council's kerbside garbage collection has

. . increased from 2021/22 in line with population

gfé&?j:loslt:ir:slde garbage bin growth in the past 12 months. The 2023 direct cost
figure was incorrect as it included $800,000 for bin

[Direct cost of the kerbside garbage bin replacements in error. After removing these costs,

callection service/Number of kerbside garbage the adjusted cost is $141.17. Annual disposal costs

collection bins|] continue to grow with an increase cost per tonne
this financial year. This is the overarching reason
for the small cost increases over the previous
years, after adjusting the 2023 figures.

Service cost $49.93 S48.44 $56.45 $48.57 Overall recycling volumes have decreased

WCL Cost of kerbsid labl compared to last financial year due to the

collecl?osn(‘]ser:irc: © recyclables introduction of the Container Deposit Scheme as
households choose to return their own bottles and

[Direct cost of the kerbside recyclables bin cans instead of placing these items in kerbside

collection service/Mumber of kerbside recyclables bins for collection.

collection bins]

Waste diversion 43.5% 43.4% 43.4% 39.73% The kerbside collection landfill diversion rate is

WC5 Kerbside collection waste diverted
from landfill

[Weight of recyclables and green organics collected
from kerbside bins/Weight of garbage, recyclables
and green organics collected from kerbside bins]
x100

39.73% which is a decrease on previous years.

The decrease in the diversion rate can be
attributed to Council and State Government
initiatives resulting in a higher uptake of other
waste disposal options including the Melton
Recycling Facility free green waste disposal,
hard waste collection services, and the Container
Deposit Scheme with households choosing to
return their own bottles and cans instead of
placing these items in kerbside bins. These
initiatives will likely impact on future results,
therefore Melton will review the target for this
indicator in light of these initiatives.
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Theme Three

A fast growing, innovative and
well-planned City

IDNVWHO4¥3Id dNO

Strategic Outcome: A City where growth and development
occur in a strategic, fair and sustainable way.
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OBJECTIVE: 3.1

A City of 20-minute neighbourhoods ¥

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with the provisionof 7.2 1.2 13 The 2024 result indicates a minor increase in satisfaction
parks and gardens % from the previous year and demanstrates a “very good”
level of community satisfaction with the provision of parks
Saource: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey and gardens in the municipality.
Community agreement that Melton is a City 7.1 1.4 15 The result for this indicator is comparable to previous
that encourages and enables people to work, years. The results continue to be in the good range,
shop and spend time locally ¥ showing that a wide variety of opportunities are available to
the community.
Source: Metrapalis Community Satisfaction Survey
Dwellings within 800m of public open space 100% 100% 100% The 2024 result is the same as the previous two years and

within residential areas

{Applies to urban areas that have been or are under
developmenl. Open space is considered as all types of
public open space. In growth areas open space assets
that have been approved or are under construction are
included }

(The number of dwellings within 800m radius of public
open space with residential areas as a percentage)

Community satisfaction with the provision of parks

and gardens

(=T I - - - =1

2021/22 2022/23

2023/24

Dwellings within 800m of public open space within

residential areas

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%

0%

2021/22 2022/23

2023/24

aligns with the Open Space Plan and Precinct Structure
Plans objectives.

Community agreement that Melton is a City that
encourages and enables people to work, shop and
spend time locally

= I R - =)

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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OBJECTIVE: 3.2

Health and community services are accessible locally ¥

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with local health 6.6 7.1 7 The 2024 result sees a very marginal decrease in the
services W personal level of satisfaction with local health services
) _ compared to 2023 although it is still higher thanin 2022,
Source: Metropelis Community Setisfaction Survey which suggests the community is generally satisfied with
local health services.
57.9% 61.9% 67.1% The improvement in 2024 is due to growth in existing

Proximity to local health services ¥

(The percentage of dwellings within a 1 km radius of at
Least one community service)

Community satisfaction with local health services

(=T = = - I =]

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

catchments. It may also be due to some community
services not being previously captured in the asset data.
Figures for this indicator have been calculated based on
proximity to maternal child health facilities, preschools/
kindergartens, libraries, civic offices, community health
facilities, community spaces, neighbourhood houses and
youth facilities.

Proximity to local community services (withina 1 km
radius of at least one service)

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%

0%

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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OBJECTIVE: 3.3 %
<
A City with accessible infrastructure that meets the needs of all ¥ 0
ac
RESULT RESULT RESULT B
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE m
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with planning for 5.1 6.8 6.9 The 2024 result is a marginal improvement compared to
population growth the previous year but represents a significant improvement

over the course of the Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-
2025. The annual result highlights the challenge growth
area Councils face in ensuring transport and community
infrastructure is delivered when and where it is needed.

Saource: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey

Community satisfaction with 7.2 1.2 1.4 The 2024 result shows another increase in satisfaction with
Council facilities % Council facilities compared to 2022 and 2023. The result
shows that the community are increasingly satisfied with
Source: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey Council facilities.
Annual Capital Works Program 30% 62% 100% Council's performance has improved on previous years
and has delivered a larger portion of the 2023/24 capital

{Numerator - Actual Capital § expended expended works program. This improvement is based

Benominator - Approved Capital 5 Budget X 100 on large roads projects and improved project planning,

Denominator = Approved Capital Works Budget less handover and delivery to expedite 'market ready' contracts.,

projects that Council resolves not to proceed with)

Community satistaction with public spaces ® 7.2 1.6 75 The 2024 result indicates a minor reduction in satisfaction
with public spaces but still a "very good” level of community

Saurce: Metrapalis Community Satisfaction Survey satisfaction with the provision of public spaces in the
municipality.

Community satisfaction with planning Community satisfaction with Council facilities

for population growth

10 10
8 8
6 6
4 4
2 2
0 0
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Annual capital works program Community satisfaction with public spaces
120% 10
100% 8
Dfo
i ;
40% .
20% 2
0% 0
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022/23 2023724
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OBJECTIVE: 3.4

An integrated transport network that enables people to move around ¥

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30JUNE  30JUNE  30JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with sealed local [ 6.8 6.8 Council is managing its road network in accordance with
roads* the Road Management Plan and in line with adopted levels
of service.
Source: Metropolis Community Satistaction Survey
Community satisfaction with off-road bike 13 1.6 1.6 Satisfaction with this service scored 7.6, equal or slightly
and walking paths @ higher than the previous two years and is rated in the
"good" range.
Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey
Community satisfaction with the public 7 1.2 1.2 Satisfaction with public transport is derived from two
transport network measures in Council's annual Community Satisfaction
) . . Survey which averaged out to a satisfaction score of 7.2.
Source: Metropalls Community Satisfaction Survey Affordable and efficient public transport (7.2 up from 6.9}.
Public transport goes where | need to go (7.1 up from 7.0).
Number of kilometres of shared paths 193 270 318 The 2024 result saw 48 kilometres of shared path added to

(The number of kilometres of shared path (areas opento
the public that are designated for use by both pedestrians
and bike riders))

* Denotes performance indicator is required under the Lacal Government Performance Reporting Framework

Community satisfaction with sealed local roads

10
8
6
4
2
0
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Community satisfaction with the
public transport network
10
8
b
4
2
0
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

the network. Through continued emphasis on early delivery
of the active transport network in new developments and
the integration of the Pedestrian and Cycling Program,
Council continues to invest in the shared path network

and work with the development industry to deliver on this
infrastructure.

Community satisfaction with off road bike
and/or walking paths

(=T - - - =]

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Number of kilometres of shared paths
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The following statement reviews Council's progress in the financial year on initiatives identified in the 2023/24 Budget.

33Y¥HL IWIHL

INITIATIVES PROGRESS COMMENTS

Communication services that require relocation are nearing
completion. A large amount of rock delayed completion of the

Taylors Road duplication from Westwood Drive to Aintree In progress relocation. A Tender planned for November 2024 is expected to
be awarded in February 2025 because of the Council election
caretaker period.

Exford Road, Melton South - intersection and bridge safety
upgrade

The design for the upgrade is complete. The contract has been

I pedfiress awarded and the upgrade is progressing.

Significant Achievements for the Year

+ The Melton Town Centre Revitalisation Plan +~ Council's Advocacy Action Plan was developed
lasdicned v Delivered 34 programs from community centres with

+ The Melton Weir Parkland Strategy was adopted community service organisations

v Masterplan, community engagement and land v Council adopted the Sport and Recreation Facility
acquired for Plumpton Aquatic Centre has been Development Policy
completed

]
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v The Roads Upgrade Strategy was completed. :
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The following table outlines information in relation to the services funded in the 2023/24 budget and the persons or sections
of the community who are provided the service.

NET (COST)/SURPLUS ACTUALS
NET (COST)/SURPLUS BUDGET
(UNFAVOURABLE)/FAVOURABLE

VARIANCE
SERVICE DESCRIPTION $000
City Strategy Pravision of strategic planning and administration of the Melton Planning Scheme, ($2,609)
urban design and landscape architecture for assessment of planning permits, ($2,811)
community and open space planning and heritage services.
$202
Engineeringand  Engineering and Asset Services are responsible for engineering investigations and ($8,171)
Asset Services permits, traffic and transport planning, and asset services including geographic ($6,277)
information systems and facilities maintenance.
($1,894)
City Provision of strategic infrastructure planning activities including long-term capital $4,327
Infrastructure pipeline management, land acquisition activities, transport network planning, 45,067
Planning engineering assessment of planning permit applications and monitoring of
development construction activity. (5740)
Capital Delivery  Capital Delivery is responsible for the delivery of Council's Capital Works Program, (54,273)
including management of design, approvals, procurement of works, and co-ordination ($1,215)
and contract management of construction.
($3,058)
City Growth and  Provision of assessment of planning and subdivision proposals under the relevant ($2,026)
Development planning and subdivision legislation and ensuring compliance with the planning ($1,378)
controls. Services provided include the assessment of Planning and Subdivision
Applications, pre-application consultation, planning advice, post permit approvals, (5648)
issue of Statements of Compliance, and collection, monitoring and reporting of
development contributions.
Strategic Provision of services facilitating major public and private investments in the 5491
Initiatives municipality, strategic acquisition and disposal of Council land and strategic $116
development of key Council-owned properties.
$375
Enterprise Project Provision of leadership, support and improvement capability with setting priorities, ($435)
Management standards and goals for Council's portfolio of programs and projects. (537)
Office (EPMO)
($398)
City Economy Economy and Place is responsible for supporting local businesses through business ($1,396)
and Place engagement, place activations, and training and development programs, including ($1,779)
the annual Business Excellence Awards. This department also has a major focus
on investment attraction and place management, working at a strategic level with $383
internal and external stakeholders to attract jobs and investment to the City's existing
and growing commercial and industrial precincts. This department plays a major
role in exploring, developing and leading transformative place-based interventions
through urban design and investment attraction projects within key activity centres.
Major Project Delivery of Council's high-risk, high-value infrastructure projects. (5208)
Delivery ($50)
($158)
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The following table outlines the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including =
explanation of material variations. z
m
%
RESULT RESULT RESULT RESULT ;
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
SERVICE/INDICATOR/MEASURE 2021 2022 2023 2024 MATERIAL VARIATIONS
Roads
Satisfaction of use 65.6 128.6 62.9 102.2 Councilis responsible for maintaining 1,414km

of sealed roads. Council received 1,445 customer
requests relating to sealed roads, which was a
[Number of sealed local road requests/Kilometres significantincrease on the previous year. This

of sealed local roads] x100 increase is attributed to the deteriorated condition
of some key arterial and connector roads. In
addition, an increase in traffic volume on roads
interfacing or leading to land development growth
areas has resulted in increased Sealed Local Road
requests as those roads were not designed to carry
the increased traffic volume and have deteriorated
at afasterrate.

R1Sealed local road requests

Condition 97.1% 96.5% 96.5% 97.1% 97.1% of roads are exceeding or meeting the
standard set by Council. This is a great result owing

R2 Sealed local roads maintained to
> maintal to the greater commitment to the annual re-sealing

condition standards

program.

[Number of kilometres of sealed local roads below

the renewal intervention level set by Council/

Kilometres of sealed local roads] x100

Service cost $0 §10238 S0 $0 No reconstructions were undertaken in 2024,

R3 Cost of sealed local road

reconstruction

[Direct cost of sealed local road reconstruction/

Square metres of sealed local roads reconstructed|

Service cost $25.79 $30.42 $38.56 $55.08 This year's resealing program was mostly populated

Ré Cost of sealed local road resealing by collector and trunk collector roads carrying high
volumes of traffic. These roads require heavier

[Direct cost of sealed local road resealing/Square duty treatments and incur substantially more traffic

metres of sealed local roads resealed] management costs. This has resulted in significant
increase in cost per m’ compared to the previous
year.

Satisfaction 64 60 68 68 The increase in community satisfaction is likely

RS Satisfaction with sealed local roads resulting from a few road connections being
completed and re-opened or sealed.

[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how
council has perfarmed on the condition of sealed
local roads)

Source: Metrapalis Community Satisfaction Survey

£
m
[
=
o]
z
[a]
3
<
0
[e]
c
z
[a]
L
=

% | +z/ezoz | 1Hod3y 1vn

Page 85



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL

ltem 12.1

Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24

Appendix 1 Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24

21 OCTOBER 2024

33¥HL IWIHL

| L¥Od3™ TVNNNY | TIDNNOD ALID NOLTIW

/$T0T

| +2/

~3
=3

RESULT RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE

SERVICE/INDICATOR/MEASURE 2021 2022 2023 2024 MATERIAL VARIATIONS

Statutory Planning

Timeliness 79 days 98 days 108days 95 days Improvement on median application processing

SP1 Time taken to decide planning days compared to previous years is linked to the

anplicati filling of vacant positions and improved monitoring

pplications o

of workload and timelines.

[The median number of days between receipt

of a planning application and a decision on the

application]

Service standard 12.7% 87.1% 51.3% 52.8% Data reflects the increased number of complex

SP2 Planning applications decided within planning applications being dealt with which are

required time frames often ?nf'luenl:e'd by nullside factors sqch as ongoing
negatiations with applicants and awaiting referral

[{Number of planning application decisions made authority responses. As the current year result is

wilhin 60 days + Number of Vic Smart planning consistent with the 2023 result, Council will review

application decisions made within 10 days)/Number the target for this indicator considering the results

of planning application decisions made| x 100 . . ..
from the past two financial years to ascertain if
that target is achievable after assessing the factors
influencing these results.

Service cost $3,492.97 $4,283.18 $5,073.14 $5,457.86 Costsincreased as a few vacant positions were filled

SP3 Cost of statutory planning service adding to staff costs, and more significant VCAT

ye g matters incurred additional legal costs.

[Direct cost of the statutory planning service/

Mumber of planning applications received]

Decision making 53.3% 55.6% 25% 75% The limited number of VCAT appeal decisions

SP4 Council planning decisions upheld
at VCAT

[Number af VCAT decisions that did nat set

aside council’s decision in relation toa planning
application/Number of VCAT decisions in relation to
planning applications] x100

influences the numbers, however it is positive that
either Council's original decisions are either upheld
or a negotiated outcome can be agreed to by consent
or remitted back to Council for a decision.
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Theme Four

A City that promotes greater
education and employment

IDNVWHO4¥3Id dNO

Strategic Outcome: A City rich in local employment and
educational opportunities
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=
OBJECTIVE: 4.1 =
<
A strong local economy that supports business growth and attracts new investment o
Q
RESULT RESULT RESULT g
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with local 6.8 1.4 1.2 This result is comparable to previous years and continues
business growth and development to be in the "good"” range.
Saurce: Metrapolis Community Salisfaction Business grqwth and expansion will become more visible to
Survey the community as larger employers make the City of Melton
their home.
City of Melton Business Register Total Total Total NB: Data for this indicator lags by 12 months.

Businesses  Businesses  Businesses ;
(The number of local businesses that are ABN Increases have been driven by transport, postal and

registered on an annual basis. The data will lag on t.he on t.he anl‘he warehousing (presumably "gig economy” effect). Lower
by 12 months and will shaw net movementin  Tegister register register overall growth than previous years is likely due to
the number of ABNs) 11,450 15,398 15,629 pandemic-related business closures.
Capital investment value $380,832,617 $363,382,765 $674,515,877 There has been a substantial increase over previous years
) o ) due to significant large-scale investment in the industrial
{5 value of planning permits for industrial and and commercial sectors, particularly in the Ravenhall
commercial properties) X
and Truganina areas, where new development fronts for
larger industrial holdings have been opened for further
development,
Community satisfaction with local business growth City of Melton Business Register (Businesses)
and development
10 25,000
8 20,000
b 15,000
4 10,000
2 5,000
0 0
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Capital investment value (Millions)

800
600
400

200

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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OBJECTIVE: 4.2

A City with a variety of educational facilities accessible locally ¥

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with Council's 6.7 1.2 1.1 This result has remained stable which, given education
advocacy for education provision is a responsibility of the State Government, is a
) _ goad result. Council will continue to advacate for a broader
Source: Metropelis Community Setisfaction Survey course offering for the new TAFE and for a university
campus which should maintain and potentially build on this
result.
Usage of Council facilities for community 394 393 435 Council's facilities continue to be utilised extensively by
learning both permanent and casual hirers, supporting a variety
o of learning programs that align with Council objectives
(The number of bookings of Council facilities used for in wellness, digital literacy, numeracy and literacy.
cammunity learning per year) p .
These programs cater to diverse demographics and
accommodate all ages and abilities. Council has actively
supported national days through community celebrations
and programs, underscoring its commitment to fostering
community engagement and cultural awareness.
Community satisfaction with accessibilityto ~ Data 7.4 1.6 The 2024 result is a marginal increase on 2023.
education facilities locally wa?["‘t’)i The result shows the level of satisfaction is consistent and
available

Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey

Community satisfaction with Council's advacacy
for education

2021/22 2022/23 2023124

Community satisfaction with accessibility to
education facilities locally

(=T NCR - - - =1

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

inthe "very good"” category.

Usage of Council facilities for community learning

500
400
300
200
100

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

NB: “Community satistaction with accassibility to education facilities locally” was first surveyed in 2022/23

Page 90



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL

ltem 12.1

Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24

Appendix 1 Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24

21 OCTOBER 2024

OBJECTIVE: 4.3

A City with a diversity of local job opportunities and an increasing number of residents locally employed %

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Job vacancies in the City 3,222 2,647 5,151 The 2024 figure represents total job advertisements
on the Melton Jobs Hub. Job ads on the Jobs Hub have
(The number of job vacanciesin the Cily that are continued to grow over the course of the Counciland
advertised online) .,
Wellbeing Plan.
Based on Melton Johs Hub data, jobs market growth is
recovering.
Itis worth noting that these numbers represent job ads,
and that the number of advertised positions may be higher
than the number of ads. This is becoming particularly
relevant as we see larger employers settling into our
new industrial estates. There has been anincrease in the
number of local jobs this financial year.
Ratio of industry types 61% 62% 62% No change in the percentages for the top five employing
industries. The top five local, employing industries are:
(The tap five different industry types as a percentage of .
total industry types in the City) *  Construction 17.2%
*  Education and Training 13.5%
*  Retail Trade 13%
*  Health Care and Social Assistance 9.7%
*  Public Admin. and Safety 8.5%
Community satisfaction with local job Data 7 6.7 As this is the second year of data capture, there s
opportunities was not insufficient information available to identify trends.
o captured Anincrease in job advertisements in the preceding six
Saurce: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey this year months should reflect in future results.
Commute time to place of employment <30mins <30mins <30 mins Commute times have seen a slight increase. This is likely
21.2% 30% 21% due to a broader return to workplaces and reduced
Source: Metrapolis Community Satisfaction Survey working from home arrangements.
30 mins 30 mins 30 mins
to60mins to 60 mins  to 60 mins
33.4% 23% 27%
60 mins 60 mins 60 mins
to?0mins to90mins to 90 mins
25.9% 27% 33%
+90mins  +90mins  +90 mins
19.5% 19% 19%

¥NOo4 IWIHL

£
m
[
=
o]
z
[a]
3
<
0
[e]
c
z
[a]
L
=

& | +z/ezoz | 1Hod3y 1vn

Page 91



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL

ltem 12.1

Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24

Appendix 1 Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24

21 OCTOBER 2024

dNod IWIHL

0Z | L¥Od3Y TYNNNY | TIDNNOD ALID NOLTIW

OBJECTIVE: 4.3 CONTINUED

Job vacancies in the City

6000
5000
4000
3000

2000

1000

0
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Community satisfaction with local job opportunities

o N O~ o0 @ o

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

NB: "Community satisfaction with local job opportunities” was first surveyed in 2022/23.

Ratio of Industry Types
(Top 5 Local Employing Industries)

20%

- II I II II I
2021122 2022123 2023/24

M Retail M Construction M Accommodation &Food

Education & Training M Health Care & Social Assistance

Commute time to place of employment

(Minutes)
50%
40%
30%
20%
« Bl i 0
0%
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
W <30 mins 30to60 MM60to?0 W90+
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OBJECTIVE: 4.4 %
=
Lifelong learning opportunities that bring local communities together ¥ T
RESULT RESULT RESULT g
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with local library 8.6 8.4 8.5 Library Services consistently rank among the top Council
services ¥ services with satisfaction levels of “excellent”.
Saource: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey
Neighbourhood house program participation 5,523 19,825 21,359 Atotal of 21,359 community members engagedin 479
v community programs for 2024. This represents a small
o increase over the 2023 result and a significant increase
(the number af people participating in neighbourhood over the 2022 result, although it should be noted the 2022
house pregrams) .
result was effected by Covid 19.
The rate of school leavers entering Total = Total = Datanot  Datanot currently available.
higher education, vocational education or 95.2% 99.3% currently
L t @ ilabls I
empioymen VBNV The 2023 On Track results are still being processed by the
(Numerator - Number of schaol leavers entering higher Local Government department and are not yet available.
education, vocational education or employment
Denominator - Tatal number of schoal leavers) X 100
Saurce: On Track Survey - Local Government Area
Website
NB: Data is only provided for those school leavers who
completed the government surveys
Community satisfaction with Community 7.1 1.7 18 The 2024 result shows a slightly increased level of

Centres/Neighbourhood Houses %

Source: Metrapalis Community Satisfaction Survey

satisfaction with Community Centres and Neighbourhood
Houses compared to previous results and reflects a very
high level of satisfaction overall.

Community satisfaction with local library services

Neighbourhood house program participation

10 20000
8 15000
6

10000
4
: . |
0 0

2021122 2022/23

2023/24

The rate of school leavers entering higher education,

vocational education or employment

100%
80%
60%

0% I I

40%
20%
2021/22 2022/23

2023/24

2021/22 2022123 2023/24

Community satisfaction with Community Centres /
Neighbourhood Houses

o R~ o0 e O

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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= The following table outlines Council's progress in the financial year on initiatives identified in the 2023/24 Budget.

<

m

m

o]

o
INITIATIVES PROGRESS COMMENTS
Reinstating outdoor landscaping and dining/seating Concept options for public seating and raised planting beds will
arrangements, Central Shopping Centre, Caroline Springs In progress be presented to traders for comment in August 2024 following the
Town Centre completion of the pedestrian crossing works.

Significant Achievements for the Year

+ The Melton Employment and Industrial Land Strategy v Literacy programs delivered to 22,228 children

was adopted by Council and parents

v Delivered the BIG Summer Read Program, a v Engaged with the local community and professional
statewide campaign to prevent a decrease in kids' stakeholders to address attendance barriers and
reading comprehension during the school holidays transition to school, engaging 180 individual children.
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The following table outlines infarmation in relation to the services funded in the 2023/24 budget and the persons or sections
of the community who are provided the service.

NET (COST)/SURPLUS ACTUALS
NET (COST)/SURPLUS BUDGET
(UNFAVOURABLE)/FAVOURABLE

¥NOo4 IWIHL

VARIANCE

SERVICE DESCRIPTION $000
Libraries and Provision of public library services from Council's two library facilities, four Library $3,337
Learning Access Points and online library to promote reading culture, lifelong learning and $3,713
literacy in allits forms. Council is supported in part by the State to provide physical -
and e-collections for loan, learning programs, and public access to technology ($376)

through annual funding allocations from Local Government Victoria.

The following table outlines the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including
explanation of material variations.

RESULT RESULT RESULT RESULT
30JUNE  30JUNE  30JUNE  30JUNE

SERVICE/INDICATOR/MEASURE 2021 2022 2023 2024 MATERIAL VARIATIONS

Libraries

Resource standard 85.5% 84.5% 81.7% 53.2% In 2022 and 2023 digital items were not included in
: : the denominator, so the results for those years are

LB2 Recently purchased library collection h - ;

yP ¥ incarrect. If those items were included the results

[Number of library collection items purchased in would have been substantially lower and more in

the past five years/Number of library collection line with the 2024 result.

items] x100

Service cost $22.94 §23.12 $22.88 $27.15 Expenditure has increased due to the incorporation

of the Lifelong Learning function and programming

LBS5 Cost of Libl i lati
ostotiibrary service perpoputation role into the business unit, bringing support to

[Direct cost of the library service/Municipal community learning programs through libraries.
population]
Utilisation - - - 32 This is @ new indicator for 2024 so there is no

LB6 Loans per head of population historical data for comparison.

[Number of library collection item loans/

Papulation]

Participation - - - 19.70% This is a new indicator for 2024 so there is no
LB7 Library membership historical data for comparison.

[Number of registered library members/Papulation]

x100

Participation - - - 2.3 This is a new indicator for the 2024 so there is no

LB8 Library visits per head of population historical data for comparison.

[Number of library visits/Population]
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Theme Five

A community that is actively
engaged in the City

IDNVWHO4Y¥Id N0

Strategic Outcome: A community that embraces
volunteering and is encouraged and able to engage
with Council
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-
OBJECTIVE: 5.1 =
=
Deliberate engagement and communication with the community informs planning and decision-making :
=
RESULT RESULT RESULT m
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with consultation 6.4 7 6.9 The 2024 result shows a very marginal decrease from 2023,
and engagement* however it is still a significant increase compared to 2022,

This result shows that satisfaction is mostly consistent and

Saource: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey a‘good’ result

* Denotes performance indicator is required under the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework

Community satisfaction with consultation
and engagement

o N O~ oo oo

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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OBJECTIVE: 5.2

A range of platforms including digital that cater for accessible community engagement and consultation ¥

RESULT RESULT RESULT

30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
City of Melton Conversations: Visits Visits Visits The top three visited projects for the 2023/24 year were:
community engagement platform =29,478 =23,526 =62,188 = Signalised Intersection in Caroline Springs

(The number of visits and total number af Contributions ~ Contributions
conlributions lo the engagement platform) =2,376 =1,430

Contributions
=2,151

*  Plumpton Aguatic and Leisure Centre masterplan
*  Bulmans Road Urbanisation Project

The projects with the highest number of contributions
for 2023/24 were:

*  Plumpton Aguatic and Leisure Centre masterplan

*  Rural, Interface and Growth Area Road Upgrade
Strategy (RIGARUS)

= Lake Caroline Masterplan and Activation Strategy

Community participation in engagement  9.2% 14%
and consultation ¥

Source: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey

City of Melton Conversations:
community engagement platform

60,000 — —

50,000 M Visits W Contributions

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000 l
0

2021/22 2022123 2023124

16%

The 2024 result shows continued improvement over
the course of the current Council and Wellbeing Plan.
This shows that Council's engagement and consultation
practices are having an impact on results.

Community participation in
engagement or consultation

30%

20%

10%

0%

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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0BJECTIVE: 5.3 %
<
Lo . =
Increase volunteering in the City ¥ -
=
RESULT RESULT RESULT m
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE
STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Volunteering in Council activities, programs 119 16 99 There has been a marginal increase in community members
or events W who have volunteered in Council activities, programs or

events.
(The number of community volunteers over the past . .
12 months) The improved result may have been achieved on the back

of the completion of the volunteer promotion plan which
was completed during the financial year and a relaxation of
Covid-19 restrictions.

Community volunteering 17.6% 14.4% 17% There has been a marginal increase in the percentage
(Do you or a member of your household of community members who say they are involved in
volunteer regularly?) volunteering compared to 2023,

The improved result may have been achieved on the back
of the completion of the volunteer promotion plan which
was completed during the financial year and a relaxation of
Covid-19 restrictions.

Saurce: Metrapalis Community Satisfaction Survey

Volunteering in Council activities, programs or events Community volunteering
500 50%
400 40%
300 30%
200 20%
" - il om
: == N o
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022123 2023/24

Significant Achievements for the Year

v 19 Freeza Meetings were held with young people and included the planning and delivery of events by young people.
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Theme Six

A high-performing organisation that
demonstrates civic leadership and
organisational excellence

IDNVWHO4¥3Id dNO

Strategic Outcome: An innovative, transparent,
accountable and sustainable organisation
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OBJECTIVE: 6.1

An organisation that demonstrates excellence in customer and community service

XIS IWIHL

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30JUNE  30JUNE

STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community satisfaction with Council's 6.3 6.9 6.9 The 2024 result is the same as 2023, both of which are a
responsiveness to local community needs significant improvement on 2022.

Saource: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey

Response times to customer and community ~ Datanot 701 sec 526 sec Whilst there has been significant improvement in response
enquiries (seconds) available times, call statistics indicate there's been a five per cent
increase in demand due to population growth and an
increasing number of complex enquiries being received
from customers requiring longer call handling times.

Source: Genesys (Phone System)

Community satisfaction with Council's Response times to customer and community
responsiveness to local community needs enquiries (seconds)

800
600
400
200

o N =~ oo o

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

NB: Data for “Response times to customer and community engquiries” was first collected
in2022/23.
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OBJECTIVE: 6.2

An adaptive, innovative and creative organisation

XIS IWIHL

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30JUNE  30JUNE 30 JUNE

STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS
Community agreement that Council is efficient 6.6 1.2 7 The 2024 result shows a slight decrease compared to 2023,
and well run although still significantly higher than in 2022 and in the

"“good"” category. The result indicates the community is

Source: Metropolis Community Satistaction Survey satisfied with the decisions Council makes

Community agreement that Council is efficient and
wellrun

(=T ST - - =1
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OBJECTIVE: 6.3

An organisation that demonstrates excellence in civic leadership and governance

XIS IWIHL

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30JUNE  30JUNE

STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS

Community satisfaction rating for Council 6.4 7 1 The 2024 result remains the same as in 2023, which was
making decisions in the best interest of the an improvement compared to previous years. The result
community® indicates the community is satisfied with the decisions

Council makes.
Saurce: Metrapalis Community Satisfaction Survey

Community satisfaction with Council's 6.4 7 7 The 2024 result has remained at a 'good’ level, which isa
representation, lobbying and advocacy on key satisfactory result outside of a state and federal election
issues period. With the Advocacy Priorities booklet refreshed and

amore proactive communications and media approach
planned for 2024/25 to profile advocacy activity, this result
can be maintained and potentially improved.

Saurce: Metropalis Community Satisfaction Survey

Community satisfaction with Council's 6.4 7 11 The 2024 result shows an improvement compared to

performance in maintaining the trust and previous years. The positive result indicates the community

confidence of the community has an increasing level of trust and confidence in Council's
performance.

Source: Metropolis Communily Satisfaction Survey

* Denoles performance indicator is required under the Lacal Government Performance Reparting Framework

Community satisfaction with Council making Community satisfaction with Council's
and implementing decisions in the interests of representation, lobbying and advocacy on key issues
the community

o N s o o O
(= - =

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Community satisfaction with Council's
performance in maintaining the trust and
confidence of the community
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OBJECTIVE: 6.4

An organisation that celebrates diversity and inclusion %

XIS IWIHL

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30JUNE  30JUNE 30 JUNE

STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS

Number of events that promote diversity 5 10 30 Council's community engagement initiatives were diverse

and inclusion ¥ and impactful. Key events included the Commemoration
of International Transgender Day of Remembrance in

(The number of events run or supported by Council that November 2023 and the Djerriwarrh Festival

romaole diversity and inclusion
promole diversity and inclusion) Intercultural Stage.

Council supported the Melton Interfaith Network's 10th
Anniversary, the NAIDOC Ball, and the Welcome Baby to
Country event. Additionally, Council celebrated community
achievements in November 2023 and engaged with the
Congolese community through the Curious About Culture
event, Council's commitment to inclusivity was evident
through participation in events like the Midsumma Pride
March, Transgender Day of Visibility, and numerous events
during Cultural Diversity Week, Reconciliation Week, Sorry
Day, Refugee Week and IDAHOBIT Day.

Community agreement that Council 1.6 1.9 1.9 The 2024 result is the same as 2023, which was an increase
respects, reflects and is inclusive of our on 2022. The result indicates a cansistently high level of
diverse community ¥ community agreement with the statement.

Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey

Number of Gender Equality Plan 30 50 79 Commitment to the actions withing the GEAP continue and
actions completed are on track to be completed by 30 June 2025.

[The number of actions delivered from the Gender
Equality Plan compared la the number of aclions planned
for delivery x 100)

Number of events that promote diversity Community agreement that Council respects, reflects
and inclusion and is inclusive of our diverse community

40 10

30

20 5

10

, == [N :
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Number of Gender Equality actions completed
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OBJECTIVE: 6.5

An organisation that tackles climate change ¥

XIS IWIHL

RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30JUNE  30JUNE

STRATEGIC INDICATOR/MEASURE 2022 2023 2024 COMMENTS

Council's carbon emissions ¥ 3,316 3,167 Datanot  Utility data is not currently available. A review of the
tC0,e tCOe. currently  process to collate Council's utilities billing data and other

(1C02e (using National Greenhause Accaunts Factars available  data relevant to this KPl will be carried outin 2025.

multiplied by emissions seurces) per annum)

Progress towards overall carbon neutrality 80% 80% Datanot  Utility data is not currently available. Areview of the

(100~ [Councit o ; , currently  process to collate Council's utilities billing data and other
- luouncits prDF el grEen L]USEQES emissions H H H 1 H

{tC02¢) /2015 Raseline emissions x 100]) available  datarelevantto this KPl will be carried outin 2025.

Percentage compliance with Environmentally ~ 50% 50% 50% The activation of the Environmentally Sustainable

Sustainable Design plans for Council Guidelines through the Project Management Framework

buildings process in 2025 will see Council's commitment strengthen.

(Number of Cauncil buildings completed with appraved
Sustainability Management Plans (SMPs)/total number
of Council buildings completed x 100)

Council's Carbon Emissions(tC0,e) Progress towards overall carbon neutrality
5,000 100%
4,000 80%
3,000 60%
2,000 40%
1,000 20%

0 0%

2021/22 2022/23 2023124 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

NB: Data for “Council's carban emissians”is not available for 2023/24
Percentage compliance with Environmentally NB: Data for "Progress towards overall carbon neutrality” is not available for 2023/24
Sustainable Design plans for Council buildings

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%
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Significant Achievements for the Year

XIS IW3IHL

The updated Risk Compliance Framework was endorsed

v
v Delivered training sessions to staff centred around Free from Violence and violence against women education
+ The Technology Change Plan business case was presented to Council and endorsed for implementation

v

The Customer Care program was expanded to provide additional support to ratepayers experiencing
financial hardship.
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The following table outlines infarmation in relation to the services funded in the 2023/24 budget and the persons or sections
of the community who are provided the service.

NET (COST)/SURPLUS ACTUALS
NET (COST)/SURPLUS BUDGET
(UNFAVOURABLE)/FAVOURABLE

VARIANCE
SERVICE DESCRIPTION $000
Finance Provision of financial services to both internal and external customers including the $199,750
management of Council's finances, raising and collection of rates and charges and $213,367
property valuation. !
(513,617
Technology Provision of leadership, support and improvement capability in information and ($19,902)
technology so the organisation can deliver effective services. (510,627)
($9,275)
People and Provision of human resources, learning and development payroll and industrial $7,001
Customer relations. Provides occupational health and safety programs, workers’ compensation 48,014
services and health and wellbeing initiatives. Provision of inbound call handling, !
online and counter services, communication campaigns and media management. ($1,013)
Executive and This area of governance includes the Mayor, Councillors, Chief Executive Officer $4,080
Councillors and Executive Management Team and associated support which cannot be easily $4,527
attributed to the direct service provision areas. Responsible for providing strategic !
direction and operational leadership of Council and its results. (5447)
Governance Provision of a range of internal services to Council including governance, legal, (55,640)
contractual and internal audit services. Also provides administrative support to the ($5,536)
Mayor and Councillors. Provides risk management services and fraud and corruption !
control. Management of government relations and Council's advocacy priorities. ($104)
Procurement Provision of procurement, credit cards, fleet management and insurance services $1,445
to both internal and external customers including strategic sourcing, frameworks, $2 650
policies and procedures, compliance, and capability development. The Contract !
Management Office are respansible for overseeing the management, performance ($1,205)
and compliance of Council's large, outsourced contracts.
Organisational Provision of Council's Corporate Planning and Performance functions including the $192
Performance development and revision of the Council and Wellbeing Plan, Annual Report and §541
Council's non-financial end-of-year reporting.
$349

XIS IWIHL
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The following table outlines the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including
explanation of material variations.

XIS IWIHL

RESULT RESULT RESULT RESULT
30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE 30 JUNE

SERVICE/INDICATOR/MEASURE 2021 2022 2023 2024 MATERIAL VARIATIONS
Governance
Transparency 10.1% 22.5% 19.8% 29.3% The number of resolutions made by Council at

meetings closed to the public in the second half of

1 il decisi t meeti
61 Council decisions made at meetings 2024 resulted in an overall higher percentage of

closed to the public o 8 h

P decisions made at meetings closed to the public
[Number af Council resalutions made at ordinary compared to 2022 and 2023. This increase is
or special meetings of Council, or al meetings of 2 predominantly due to an increase in the number of

special committee consisting only of Councillors,
closed to the public/Number of Council resolutions
made at ardinary or special meetings of Council ar
at meetings of a special committee consisting anly
of Councillers] x100

reports considering tenders and contracts.

Consultation and engagement 60 65 70 69 The 2024 result is marginally reduced compared

to 2023, however, it is significantly higher than the
set target and indicates the community is generally
satisfied with Council's community consultation and

Communily satisfaction rating out of 100 with how engagement.
Council has performed on community cansultation
and engagement

Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey

G2 Satisfaction with community
consultation and engagement

Attendance 99.3% 96.7% 92.6% 86.1% Councillor attendance at meetings in 2024 was
slightly reduced in comparison to the previous year

63 Councillor attendance at council ! .
but with a slightly larger decrease compared to

ti
meetings 2022.

[The sum of the number of Councillars who attended

eachordinary and special Council meeting/

(Number of ordinary and special Cauncil meetings)

* (Mumber of Councillars elected at the last Council

general election}] x100

Service cost $51,431.07 $60,615.90 $65,600.78 $63,037.26 The average cost of $63,037.26 per councillor for the

64 Cast of governance 2024 year is on a par with that of the previous year.

[Direct cost of the governance service { Number
of Councillors elected at the last Council general
election]

Satisfaction 66 65 10 70 The 2024 result is consistent with the 2023 result,
which was significantly improved compared to
previous years and indicates the community is

Community satisfaction rating out of 100 generally satisfied with the decisions Council
with how Council has performed in making makes.

decisions in the interest of the community

G5 Satisfaction with Council decisions

Source: Metropolis Community Satisfaction Survey
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XIS IWIHL
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Governance and
Management
Information
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Governance

Management Statement

Council has implemented several statutary and better
practice initiatives to strengthen its management

Members of the Audit and Risk Committee and
meetings attended during 2023/24

AUDIT AND RISK

framework. Having strong governance and management COMMITTEE MEETINGS
frameworks leads to better decision-making by Council. AL . ATTENDED
The Local Government Act 2020 requires Council to Jeff Rigby Chairperson Independent 7
undertake an assessment against the prescribed external member
Iquernance and Mama‘gement Chgc‘khst and include it Farshan Mansoor Independent external member 4
inits Report of Gpergtwolns. Council's Governaﬁce and {until December 2023)
Management Checklist is set out an the following pages. nd dent external b 5
The following items have been highlighted as important Jahn Watson naependent exiernat memoer
components of the management framework. Bruce Potgieter  Independent external member 4
(from January 2024)
Audit and Risk Committee Cr Carli Councillor 2
The Audit and Risk Committee is an independent LI )
advisory committee of Council established under Cr Majdlik Councillor 5
Section 53 of the Local Government Act 2020. (from December 2023)
The Audit and Risk Committee Charter sets out the Cr Kesic Counmllor 2
- : P ‘ (until November 2023)

Committee's functions and responsibilities, authority, C i 5
composition and tenure, roles and responsibilities Cr Shannon AIELLTy

positio N S (from December 2023)

reporting and administrative arrangements. The Audit
and Risk Committee does not have executive powers

or authority to implement actions in areas over which
Council management has responsibility. The Audit

and Risk Committee does not have any management
functions and is therefore independent of management.

Melton City Councilis committed to maintaining
effective internal audit practices, inclusive of an Audit
and Risk Committee that meets industry best practice
guidelines. The internal audit function is an integral
component of Melton City Council's commitment to good
governance.

The primary function and responsibility of the
Committee is to monitor the compliance of Council
policies and procedures with the Actincluding any
regulations, and chiefly, the overarching gavernance
principles, Council's financial and performance
reporting, Council's risk management and fraud
prevention systems and controls and oversee the
internal and external audit function.

Members of the Audit and Risk Committee

This Committee is made up of three external
independent members and two Councillors with full
vating rights. The committee is chaired by one of the
three external independent members.

The Audit and Risk Committee met eight times during
the year and reviewed the 2022/23 Annual Financial
Statements and Performance Statement, which
included the provision of comments on the external
auditors' management letter.

All recommendations from the Audit and Risk Committee
were presented to Council for consideration.

Internal Audit

The internal audit function for 2023/24 was provided by
auditars Moore Australia (Vic) Pty Ltd, under contract,
that commenced 1 January 2021 and was extended in
January 2024.

During 2023/24, the following reports/audits were
undertaken by Council's internal auditors:
* Payroll Accuracy

* Cammunity Grant Management

* Contract Management

* Customer Service

* Asset Management

* Budgetand Forecasting

* Facilities Management

* Roads Management

* Financial Controls

* Waste Management

External Audit

The Victorian Auditor-General externally audits
Council each year. The Victorian Auditor-General's
representative conducted the annual external audit
of Council's Financial Statements and Performance
Statement. The external auditors attended Audit and
Risk Committee meetings in September 2023, and
February and May 2024 to present the independent
audit report and annual audit plan. The external audit

NOILVWHOINI LNIWIDVYNYW ANV IDNVNHYIAOD
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Governance and Management Checklist

The following are the results in the prescribed form of Council's assessment
against the prescribed Governance and Management Checklist.

Governance and Management Items

Community engagement policy

Assessment

Date of operation of policy:

1 (Policy outlining Council's commitment to engaging with the 7June 2021,
community on matters of public interest)
Community engagement guidelines Date of operation of current guidelines:
2 (Guidelines to assist staff to determine when and how to engage 1June 2021.
with the community)
Financial Plan Date of operation of the Plan:
3 (plan under section 91 of the Act outlining the financial and non- 27 June 2021.
financial resources required for at least the next 10 financial years)
Asset Plan Date of operation of the Plan:
4 (plan under section 92 of the Act that sets out the asset 27 June 2021.
maintenance and renewal needs for key infrastructure asset
classes for at least the next 10 years)
Rating and Revenue Plan Date of operation of the Plan:
5 (plan under section 93 of the Act that sets out the rating structure 28 June 2021.
of Council to levy rates and charges)
Annual Budget Date of approval of the budget:
6 (plan under section 94 of the Act that sets out the services to be 24 June 2024.
provided and initiatives to be undertaken over the next 12 manths
and the funding and other resources required)
Risk policy Date of operation of current policy:
7 (Policy outlining Council's commitment and approach to minimising 2 May 2022
the risks to Council's operations)
Fraud policy Date of operation of current policy:
8 (policy outlining council's commitment and approach to minimising 7 March 2022
the risk of fraud)
Municipal emergency management planning Multiple representative (s) of MCC attended
9 (Participation in meetings of the Municipal Emergency on these dates: 16/08/2023; 16/11/2023;
- Management Planning Committee) 14/03/2024; 30/05/2024
g Procurement policy Prepared and approved in accordance with
i 10 (Policy under section 108 of the Act outlining the principles, the Act 2020.
o] processes and procedures that will apply to the purchase of goods Date of approval:
g and services by the Council) 23 September 2023.
o
c
z Business continuity plan Date of current plan:
- 1T (Plan setting out the actions that will be undertaken to ensure that 16 August 2023.
J; key services continue to operate in the event of a disaster)
=z
,rE Disaster recovery plan Information Technology Disaster
. 12  (Plansetting out the actions that will be undertaken to recover and Recovery Plan.
S restore business capability in the event of a disaster) Date of preparation:
z 4 November 2021.
el
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Governance and Management Items

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

20

22

Complaint Policy

(Policy under section 107 of the Act outlining Council's
commitment and approach to managing complaints)

Workforce Plan

(Plan outlining Council's commitment and approach to planning the
current and future workforce requirements of the organisation)

Payment of rates and charges hardship policy

(Policy outlining Council's commitment and approach to assisting
ratepayers experiencing financial hardship or difficulty paying
their rates)

Risk management framework

(Framework outlining Council's approach to managing risks to the
Council's operations)

Audit & Risk Committee

(Advisory committee of Council under section 53 of the Act
whose role is to monitor the compliance of Council policies and
procedures, monitor Council's financial reporting, monitor and
provide advice on risk management, and provide oversight on
internal and external audit functions)

Internal audit

(Independent accounting professionals engaged by the Council
to provide analyses and recommendations aimed at improving
Council's governance, risk and management controls)

Performance reporting framework
(A set of indicators measuring financial and non-financial

performance including the performance indicators referred to in
section 98 of the Act)

Council Plan report

(Report reviewing the performance of the Council against the
Council Plan including the results in relation to the strategic
indicators for the first six months of the financial yearl

Quarterly Budget Reports

(Quarterly reports to Council under section 97 of the Act
comparing budgeted revenue and expenditure with actual revenue
and expenditure)

Risk reporting

(Six-monthly reports of strategic risks to Council's operations,
their likelihood, and consequences of occurring and risk
minimisation strategies)

Assessment

Date of current policy:
31 July 2023.

Date of current plan:
31 December 2021.

Date of current policy:
25 October 2021

Date of operation of current framework:
2 May 2022.

Council's Audit & Risk Committee was
established on 31 August 2020 pursuant

to 5.53 of the Act. The Audit and Risk
Committee's Charter was last reviewed and
adopted by Council in August 2023,

New Internal Auditor appointed at the 1
January 2021.

Date of adoption of the 2021/2025 Council
and Wellbeing Plan on 27 September 2021.

Dates for Council Annual Action Plan
Progress Reporting to Council: 28/08/2023,
2711112023, 26/2/2024, 27/5/2024.
Reporting on the Council Plan Strategic
Indicators occurs twice a year via the Annual
Report, adopted by Council, 30/10/2023
and the Midterm Performance Report to
Executive, 26/2/2024

25/09/2023, 27/11/2023, 26/02/2024,
and 27/05/2024 were dates that quarterly
reports were presented to Council

Reports to the Audit & Risk Committee
presented on 10/08/2023, 8/11/2023,
8/2/2024 & 9/5/2024
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Governance and Management Items Assessment
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Performance reporting

(Six-monthly reports of indicators measuring results against
financial and non-financial performance including the
performance indicators referred to in section 98 of the Act)

Annualreport

(Annual report under sections 98 and 99 of the Act to the
community containing a report of operations and audited financial
and performance statements)

Councillor Code of Conduct

(Code setting out the standards of conduct to be followed by
Councillors and other matters)

Delegations

(Documents setting out the powers, duties and functions of
Council and the Chief Executive Officer that have been delegated to

Reporting on the indicatars occurred
twice this year via the Annual Report on
30/10/2023 and in a mid-year Executive
Report on 26/2/2024

Considered at a meeting of Council on
30/10/2023.

Reviewed in accordance with the Act.

Date reviewed:
8 February 2021

Reviewed in accordance with the Act.
Delegation by Council to CEQ - 27/3/2023
Sub-delegation by CEO to Staff - 12/12/2023

LTI Delegation by CEO to Staff - 12/12/2023

Sub-delegation by CEO to Staff
(Toolern Delegations) - 3/8/2023

Sub-delegation by CEO to Staff - 20/8/2021
26 Delegation by Council to Staff - B/11/2021
Delegation by CEQ to Staff - 20/8/2021

Delegation by CEQ for VicSmart Applications
-20/8/2021

Delegation by Council to members of
Delegated Committee 'LeadWest Committee’

- 28/6/2021
Meeting procedures The Governance rules came into effect an v
27 (Governance Rules governing the conduct of meetings of Council 25/3/2024

and delegated committees)

| certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council's governance and management arrangements.

/ot

Cr Kathy Majdlik
Mayor

Dated: 10 September 2024

Roslyn Wai
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: 10 September 2024
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Statutory Information

The following information is provided in accardance with
legislative and other requirements applying to Council.

Documents available for
public inspection

The Local Government Act 2020 (Vic) is predicated

on a set of Overarching Governance Principles and
Supporting Principles. One of the Supporting Principles
are the Public Transparency Principles and these are set
out in section 58.

Under Section 57, the Council adopted its Public
Transparency Paolicy on 10 October 2022. It is available
on Council's website.

This purpose of this Policy is to:

* Give effect to the Public Transparency Principles

= Describe the ways in which Council Information will
be made publicly available

* Specify what Council infarmation will be made
publicly available as a matter of course

¢ Describe the categories of Council information that
may be unavailable to the public.

Carer’s recognition

In accordance with the Carers Recognition Act
2012, Councilis required to report annually on care
measurement obligations under Section 11.

Council has taken all practicable measures to
comply with its responsibilities outlined in the Carers
Recognition Act 2012.

Council has promoted the principles of the Carers
Recognition Act 2012 to people in care relationships who
receive Council services, to people in care relationships,
and to the wider community by:

* Providing information to organisations represented
in Council and the Melton Service Provider
Network meeting

* Advocacy letter sent to the Department of Families,
Fairness and Housing in May 2024 to advocate for
future Support for Carers Funding.

* Delivering the CARE Melton Expo 2023:

= Thein-person Expo was held on Friday 13
October 2023 at Cobblebank Stadium with 46
Service Provider Exhibitors in attendance.

= 250 Showbags produced and provided to
community members.

Council has taken all practicable measures to ensure

staff and volunteers are informed about the principles
and obligations of the Carers Recognition Act 2012 by
including information on the care relationship in:

* Induction and training programs for staff working in
Community Care and Active Living

* Induction and training programs for staff working in
front-line positions with the general community

* Induction and training programs for volunteers.

Council's process, policies, and procedures, as well as
Council's enterprise bargaining agreement, include the
principles of the Carers Recognition Act 20712 such as:

»  Flexible working arrangements
* Employee wellbeing
* Personal/carers leave provisions

* Induction and training programs for volunteers
working directly with the community.

Contracts

For the 2023/24 financial year Council offered for tender
or an expression of interest, 57 contracts for goods,
services and works under its Procurement Policy.

In accardance with Section 108 (3) (c) of the Local
Government Act 2020, Council will first consider
collaboration with other councils and public bodies or
utilise Collaborative Procurement Arrangements, when
procuring goods, services and works to take advantage
of economies of scale. For the 2023/24 financial year
Council engaged with 37 Collaborative Procurement
arrangements across Procurement Australia, MAV, and
State Purchasing Contracts.

Council did not enter any contracts above the tender

threshold outside the Procurement Policy requirements.
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Executed Contract Name 2023/24

Caroline Springs Boulevard Pedestrian Signals

Provision of routine servicing of fire protection systems
and equipment

Annual Unsealed Road Re-sheeting Program 23/24,
24/25and 25/26

Parks Development Program 23/24

Rockbank East Children's and Community Centre -
Design Cansultancy

Paths lighting improvement program

Kurunjang Recreation Reserve Synthetic Pitch Renewal
End User device leasing cantract

Provision of Trades and Services Panel

Civil Construction Panel

Managed Service Provider

Provision of Telecommunications services

AV Technology upgrade of meeting rooms

Recycling Processing

Project management and superintendent services
consultancy panel

Hopkins Road Corridor Design
Operation of the Melton Recycling Facility
Macpherson Park Rugby Pitch Stage Three

Supply and installation of upgraded LED lighting to
sportsgrounds

Cobblestone Green Recreation Reserve park upgrade
Plumpton Aquatic and Leisure Centre design services
Plumpton Children's and Community Centre construction

Annualsealed road renewal program 23/24, 24/25
and 25/26

Annual concrete path renewal program 23/24, 24/25
and 25/26

Bulmans Road urbanisation stage 1 construction

Plumpton Aquatic and Leisure Centre Project
Management, Quantity Surveyar and
Superintendent services

Cobblebank Community Service Hub Project
Management, Quantity Surveyor and
superintendent services

Navan Park path lighting design and construct
Cobblebank Community Services Hub design services

Melton Town Centre streetscape

Disability Action Plan

In accordance with section 38 of the Disability Act 2006
(The Act), Council has incorporated its Disability Action
Plan within the Growing and Thriving, A Strategy for
All Abilities and All Ages. In accordance with the Act,
Council must report on the implementation of the
Disability Action Plan in the Annual Report.

The following highlights from the strategy were
delivered in 2023/24:

* Acommunication board was installed at the
Atherstone Traffic school and a Saocial Story
was developed

« Official opening of the Changing Place facility at
Caroline Springs Leisure Centre

* AllMelton and Caroline Springs Library and
Learning Hub staff completed Auslan interpreter
level 1 training

* Arange of inclusive and accessible platforms were
integrated into the Melton CARE Expo such as social
staries, large print signage, communication boards,
sensory rooms and Auslan interpreter

» Successful application fora $180,000 funding
grant and the delivery of the Marveloo, a portable
Changing Place

* Development of Access Keys and Sacial Stories for
the Taylars Hilland Melton Youth Centres

* Free from Violence staff training session was
delivered.

« Drivers of Violence against women with disability
training was delivered to 15 Community Centre and
Neighbourhood Staff

* Visitor Map completed for the City of Melton, 13 out
of 22 listings include disability access information.
All participants invited to self-review. Promoted via
Venture Melton Facebook page

* Melton City Libraries held 41 sessions with 366
participants for the Next Chapter Book Club, a club
specific to people living with disability. The program
has received ongoing positive feedback from the
participants and the organisation

« Update of the MCC website to include a
comprehensive, disability specific, Accessible
Melton page

* Development of the Disability Implementation Plan,
Year 3, 38 actions in conjunction with 10 internal
Councildepartments

* Collaboration across Council services to organise an
analysis of the potential of a disability hub

* Update of accessibility software, ReciteMe to the
MCC website and Conversations page

«  Six Disability Advisory Committee meetings were
held in person.
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Domestic Animal Management Plan

In accordance with the Domestic Animals Act 1994,
Councilis required to prepare a Domestic Animal
Management Plan every four years and evaluate its
implementation in the Annual Repaort.

In accordance with this Act, Council adopted the
Domestic Animal Management Plan (DAMP) 2021-2025
in November 2021.

Key achievements in 2023/24 included:

* Sending an SMS to all domestic animal awners
reminding them of the annual registration period and
follow up SMS to renew after the 10 April due date

* Providing an ongoing discounted cat de-sexing
program in partnership with Westside Community
Desexing

« Completion of stage 1 of refurbishment of the
Pound facility

*  Council's website updated daily providing
information on responsible pet ownership, animals
impounded and those available for adoption

* Asanew initiative, Council participated in the
school education program provided by the State
Government relating to responsible pet ownership
with staff attending schools

* In partnership with Westside Community Desexing,
Council engaged external stakeholders such as
Young Families/Young Communities offering
discounted desexing for their pets to reach out to
diverse communities

= AlL15 domestic animal businesses operating in the
City of Melton were audited and complied with the
Domestic Animals Act 1994.

Food Act Ministerial Directions

In accordance with section 7E of the Food Act 1984,
Councilis required to publish a summary of any
Ministerial Directions received during the financial year
in its Annual Report.

Council received no Ministerial Directions during the
financial year.

Freedom of Information

Access to Council's documents may be obtained through
written request to the Freedom of Information Officer

As detailed in Section 17 of the Freedom of Information

Act 1982, the request should:

*  Beinwriting

= Identify as clearly as possible which document is
being requested

* Beaccompanied by the appropriate application fee
(the fee may be waived in certain circumstances).

Furtherinfarmation can be found at ovic.vic.gov.au and
on Council's website.

In 2023/24, Meltan City Council received 69 requests for
information under the Freedom of Information Act 1982.
The results of the applications are as follows:

NUMBER OF
RESULT OF ACCESS REQUESTS
Access granted in full 0
Access granted in part 25
Access denied in full 1
Other:
No documents 0
Request withdrawn 0
Request closed/did not proceed/not valid 30
(na response from applicant)
Request not yet finalised as of 30 June 2024 8
Released outside the Act 5
Request transferred to another agency 1
TOTAL NUMBER OF REQUESTS 69

Public Interest Disclosures Procedures

The Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 aims to

ensure openness and accountability in government by
encouraging people to disclose improper conduct within
the public sector and provide protection for people

who make disclosures. Procedures on how to make a
disclosure are publicly available on Council's website.

During 2023/24 four disclosures were notified to Council
officers appointed to receive disclosures or to the
Independent Broad-hbased Anti-Corruption Commission
(IBAC). Upon review hy IBAC, they were returned to
Council for internal management.

Road Management Act
Ministerial Direction
In accordance with section 22 of the Road Management

Act 2004, & council must publish a copy or summary of
any Ministerial Direction in its Annual Report.

No Ministerial Directions were received by Council
during the 2023/24 financial year.
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Victorian Local Government Indicators

The Victorian Gavernment requires all Victorian councils to measure and annually report against 11 Victorian
Local Government Indicators (VLGI). These indicators provide information regarding expenditure, cost of

NOILVWYHOINI LINFWIDVNYW ANV IDNVNYIAOD

services and infrastructure provision, customer satisfaction and governance.

The following table presents our results of the VLGIs for the 2023/24 year.

INDICATORS CALCULATION 2023/24 2022123
Average rates and charges Total rates and charges receivable at
1 g g the beginning of the year/number of $2,104 $2,082
per assessment ]
assessments in the adopted budget
Rates and charges declared for residential
Average residential rates and charges assessments receivable at the beginning of
2 A $1,933 $1,948
per assessment the year/number of residential assessments
in the adopted budget
NP Total liabilities/number of assessments in the
3 Average liabilities per assessment adopted budget $1,681 $1,771
q Net surplus/number of assessments in the
4 Operating result per assessment adopted budget $3,550 $5,460
Average operating expenditure Operating expenditure/ number of
5 per assessment assessments in the adopted budget 33,165 s
6 Community satisfaction rating for overall ~ Result from the annual Melton Council 7 72
performance generally of Council Community Satisfaction Survey*
Average capital expenditure Capital expenditure/number of assessments
7 : $1,378 $717
per assessment in the adopted budget
8  Renewalgap Capital renewal/average annual asset 31% 23%
consumption
Capital renewal and maintenance/average
9 Renewal and maintenance gap annual asset consumption planned 35% 39%
maintenance
Community satisfaction rating for .
10  Council's advocacy and community Result trqm the_annu_al Melton C*ounul 70 70
. . Community Satisfaction Survey
representation on key local issues
Community satisfaction rating for ’
11 Council's engagement in decision making L I LRI T L 70 70

on key local issues

Community Satisfaction Survey*

*These indicators are also included in the Local Government Performance Reporting Framewark (LGPRF).
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Development Contributions Plan Report

Infrastructure and development contributions

In accordance with section 46GM and 460D of the Planning and Environment Act 1987, a council that is a collecting or
development agency must prepare and give a report to the Minister for Planning on infrastructure and development
contributions including levies and works in kind, The report must be published in a council's Annual Report.

Table 1 - Total DCP levies received in the 2023/24 financial year

LEVIES RECEIVED IN
2023/24 FINANCIAL YEAR

NOILVWHOINI LNIWIDVYNYW ANV IDNVNYIAOD

DCP NAME AND YEAR APPROVED ($)
Diggers Rest (2012) $1,799,658.03
Melton North (2010) $33,650
Rockbank North (2012) $676,063.11
Taylors Hill West (2010) $272,734.84
Toolern (2011) $9,984,085.75
Paynes Road $740,777.89
Taolern Park (2014) $84,198
TOTAL $13,591,767.62

* Levies include DIL and CIL
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Table 2 - DCP land, works, services or facilities accepted as works-in-kind in the 2023/24 financial year

DCP NAME

AND YEAR PROJECT PROJECT ITEM

APPROVED D DESCRIPTION PURPOSE PROJECT VALUE ($)
Indoor Sports Centre Land acquisition \ndngr Sports Centre - Land vaU\SItIDt] as

R C06 for Indoor Sports Centre adjoining the s s i L e $14,750,000

North (2012) ; PA2022/7876 for a residential subdivision at e
Rockbank North Major Town Centre. Woodlea estate

Intersection: Land acquisition for ultimate

- L Intersection - Land acquisition was
and construction of an interim signalised

NOILVWYHOINI LINFWIDVNYW ANV IDNVNYIAOD

Rockbank ) . . . _ required as part of works associated with
North (2012)  RO04  intersectionattheintersection of the north~ o5 17)ccccsors recigentialsubdivisionat ~ 31+418:913:62
south arterial and the east-west arterial
Woodlea estate.
(Taylors Road).
Intersection: Construction of an interim Intersection - Construction of an
Rockbank RO04 signalised intersection at the intersection of  intersection was required as part of $5,841.217.98
North (2012) the north-south arterial and the east-west ~ works associated with PA2017/5565 fora e
arterial (Taylors Road). residential subdivision at Woodlea estate,

Ferris Road and Alfred Road - Construction
Ferris Road and Alfred Road: Intersection.  of an intersection was required as part of

ES:T}“ 27 *Interim layout* Construction of signalised ~ works associated with PA2018/6076 for $1,333,543.14
4-way intersection and slip lanes. aresidential subdivision at Atherstone
(Palara) estate.
Ferris Road and Southern Connector Road: Rl a0 S_outhern annecto_r
el " : Road - Construction of an intersection was
Toolern 1128 Intersection. *Interim layout™ Construction ired t of work iatad with §1,535 798.25
(2011) of signalised 4-way intersection and slip TEqUIrEd'as part OTWOTKS assaciaten wi i
a PA2018/6076 for a residential subdivision at
nes.
Atherstone (Palara) estate.
East WestArten.al:IExfnrd Road Section. .. Exford Road - Construction of a shared path
Re-construct existing 2-lane road to provide : .
Toolern : L was required as part of works associated
RDO3 2-lane carriageway of divided secondary : S $183,601.30
(2011) ; with PA2014/4583 for a residential
arterial road (38 metre road reserve, length e
4 . * subdivision at Exford Waters estate.
900 metres) *Interim layout*.
Mount Cottrell Road: Purchase land Mount Cottrell Road - Land acquisition was
Toolern RO11 including native vegetation re-alignmentto  required as part of works associated with 6475000
(2011) increase reserve width from 20 metresto 45 PA2019/6712 for a residential subdivision at !
metres for 2,190 metres (ultimate)*. Thornhill Central estate.
Ferris Road: Melbourne Ballarat Rail Line
to East West Arterial. Upgrade of existing Ferris Road - Construction of a road was
Toolern RD17 2-lane sealed/unsealed road to provide required as part of works associated with $6,395,499.03
(2011) 2-lane carriageway of divided secondary  PA2018/6076 for a residential subdivision at DA
arterial road (38 metre road reserve, length  Atherstone (Palara) estate.
2,160 metres) *Interim layout™®.
Ferris Road: Melbourne Ballarat Rail Line
to East West Arterial. Purchase land to Ferris Road - Land acquisition was
Toolern RO21 increase reserve width from 20 metres required as part of works associated with §384 124,44
(2011) to 38 metres for balance of required PA2019/6584 for a residential subdivision at e
land (excluding Property 30). Area= 3.45 Ellerton estate.
hectares (ultimate).
TOTAL $32,317,697.76
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Table 3 - Total DCP contributions received and expended to date (for DCPs approved after 1 June 2016)

TOTAL
DCP NAME AND TOTAL LEVIES TOTAL LEVIES WORKS-IN-KIND ~ TOTAL DCP CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED (LEVIES
YEAR APPROVED RECEIVED ($) EXPENDED ($) ACCEPTED ($) AND WORKS-IN-KIND) ($)
Rockbank (August 2016) $8,311,952.35 $0.00 $7,335,753.47 $15,647,705.82
TOTAL $8,311,952.35 $0.00 $7,335,753.47 $15,647,705.82

Table 4 - Land, works, services or facilities delivered in the 2023/24 financial year from DCP levies collected

NOILYWYHOINI LNFWIDVYNYW ANV IONVYNYIAOD

— WORKS-
e DCP NAME DCP FUND IN-KIND OTHER PERCENTAGE
PROJECT =] AND YEAR EXPENDED ACCEPTED COUNCIL'S CONTRIBUTIONS  TOTAL PROJECT OF ITEM
DESCRIPTION & 2  APPROVED ($) ($) CONTRIBUTION ($) ($) EXPENDITURE ($)  DELIVERED
Central Pavilion (Diggers Rest
Community Hub) _
Construction of new pavilion to serve Diggers
onstruction ot new p TVe ARO3  Rest $1,219,154.01 $0.00  $2,605,287.68 $67,200  53,891,641.69 99%
two ovals at Diggers Rest Recreation (2012)
Reserve and Diggers Rest Tennis
Club (including all building works)
Diggers Rest Recreation Reserve
(Diggers Rest Community Hub)
Upgrade of active open space Diggers
reserve, including works associated  ARD4  Rest $1,683,593.63 $0.00  $3,597,778.23 $92,800  $5,374,171.86 99%
with playing surfaces, car (2012)
parking, landscaping and related
infrastructure.
Roundabout - Mount Cottrell Road
and Greigs Road, Strathtulloh mop  Joolern $583,189.61 $0.00  $2,113,097.34 $0.00  52,696,286.95  59.34%
Intersection upgrade - construction (2011) o ' e ’ e ’
of roundabout.
Road Construction - Bridge Road,
Cobblebank - Toolemn .
Construction of signalised 4-way M5 (2011) $2,441,709.71 50.00  $7,543,603.96  -5405590.32  §9,579,723.35 100%
intersection and slip lanes.
Intersection Upgrade, Exford
Road and Greigs Road- West
strathtulion me 100 gi0499500 0.0 $0.00 $0.00  $19429520  7.98%
Construction of protected right-turn (2011) o ’ ’ ! e :
lane and left-turn deceleration lane,
including drainage and landscaping.

. . =
Pedestrian Bridge Toolern m
over Toolern Creek, Strathtulloh  B006 (9017 $60477.61  $0.00 $0.00 000 §60477.61  350% &

=

Paynes Road Community Centre, Paynes g
Rockbank CI-218 Road -$1,137,642 $0.00 -$468,382.64 $2,317,309 $711,284.32 100% 3
o

. ]

Abey Road and Bridge Toolern =
Native Vagetation Offsets ROIE (90117) $5,515.48 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,515.48  74.45% z
=

Abey Road and Bridge Toolern =
Native Vegetation Offsets RD1BA (2011) $36.22 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $36.22  TL.45% z
[

-

Abey Road and Bridge Toolern =
Native Vegetation Offsets RD18B (2011) $2,982.84 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $2,982.84  74.45% E
[s]

TOTAL $5,053,312.27 $0.00 $15,391,384.57 $2,071,718.68 $22,516,415.52 3
=]

(o]

o

Y]

.
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Infrastructure Contributions Plan Report
Table 1 - Total ICP monetary component received in the 2023/24 financial year

VALUE OF WORKS IN

NOILVWYHOINI LINFWIDVNYW ANV IDNVNYIAOD

KIND RECEIVED IN TOTAL MONETARY

MONETARY COMPONENT SATISFACTION OF  CONTRIBUTION RECEIVED

IN LEVIES RECEIVEDIN  MONETARY COMPONENT IN IN 2023/24

NAME OF 2023/24 FINANCIAL YEAR 2023/24 FINANCIAL YEAR FINANCIAL YEAR

COLLECTING AGENCY NAME OF ICP ($) ($) ($)
Meltan City Council Plumpton & Koraroit (2018) $21,586,987.85 $7,152,053.86 $28,739,041.71
Melton City Council Mt Atkinson (2016) $1,195,358.59 $0.00 $1,195,358.59
TOTAL $22,782,346.44 $7,152,053.86 $29,934,400.30

Table 2 - Inner public purpose land received in the 2023/24 financial year

NAME OF LAND (OR

COLLECTING AGENCY NAME OF ICP PROJECTID) LAND (OR PROJECT) DESCRIPTION
Melton City Council Plumpton & Koraroit (2018) LP-19 Local Park Purchase of land.
Melton City Council Plumpton & Kororoit (2018) LP-33 Local Park Purchase of land.
Melton City Council Plumpton & Kororoit (2018) LP-29 Local Park Purchase of land.

Melton City Council Plumpton & Kororolt (2018)  SR-06 Deanside Sports Reserve Purchase of land for a future
sports reserve.

Melton City Council Plumpton & Kororoit (2018) Cl05 El:]adnsme Community Centre & Neighbourhood House Purchase of

. . ’ Intersection: Hopkins Road and East-West Connector Road 5

Melton City Council Plumpton & Kororoit (2018) INT8 Purchase of land for intersection at an ultimate standard.

Melton City Council Plumpton & Korarait (2018) IN-19 !nlersecl.\nn: Hopklng Road and Reed Court Purchase of land for
intersection at an ultimate standard.

Taylors Road: Plumpton Road (IN-13) to Hopkins Road (IN-14)

Melton City Council Plumpton & Koraroit (2018 RD-12
iy Louncl ume ft( ) Purchase of land for a 44m wide road section (ultimate standard).

. . . Hopkins Road: Taylors Road (IN-14) to East-West Road 5 (IN-18)
Metton City Council Plumpton & Kororoit (2018) L Purchase of land for a 41m road section (ultimate standard).

. . ) ~ Hopkins Road: East-West Road 5 (IN-18) to Reed Court (IN-19)
Metton City Council Plumpton & Kororoit (2018) RD-18 Purchase of land for a 41m road section 41m (ultimate standard).
Hopkins Road: Reed Court (IN-19) to Hopkins Road Bridge (BR-02)

Metton City Council Plumpton & Kororoit (2018) RD-19 Purchase of land for a 41m wide road section (ultimate standard).
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Table 3 - Total Land Equalisation Amount (LEA) received, and Land Credit Amount (LCA)
paid in the 2023/24 financial year

NAME OF

TOTAL OF ANY LEAs RECEIVED IN

TOTAL OF ANY LCAs PAID IN

COLLECTING AGENCY NAME OF ICP 2023/24 FINANCIAL YEAR ($) 2023/24 FINANCIAL YEAR ($)
Melton City Council ‘Plumpton & Kororoit (2018) §14,459,568.11 ‘ $3,367,282.86
Melton City Council Mt Atkinson (2016) 50.00 50.00
TOTAL $14,459,568.11 §3,367,282.86

Table 4 - ICP works, services or facilities accepted as works-in-kind in the 2023/24 financial year

NAME OF
COLLECTING AGENCY

Melton City Council

Melton City Council

Total

NAME OF ICP

Plumpton
& Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
& Kororoit
(2018)

PROJECT
1D PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Intersection: North-South Road 1
and Melton Highway Construction
of connector road to primary
arterial signalised T-intersection
(interim standard).

IN-03

Intersection: Hopkins Road and
East-West Road 5 Construction
of connector road to primary
arterial signalised &-way
intersection (interim standard).

IN-18

ITEM PURPOSE PROJECT VALUE (%)

Construction of an intersection

was required as part of works
associated with PA2018/6127 for
aresidential subdivision at Kerani
Heights estate.

$3,359,119.22

Construction of an intersection
was required as part of works
associated with PA2017/5814
for a residential subdivision at
Deanside Central estate.

43,792,934.64

$7,152,053.86
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@
o
=
2 Table 5 - Total ICP monetary contributions expended by development agency in the 2023/24
z financial year
m
b=
z
L=}
z PERCENTAGE
z NAME OF ICPMONEY  OF PROJECT
> DEVELOPMENT AGENCY NAME OF ICP PROJECTID PROJECT DESCRIPTION EXPENDED ($) DELIVERED
@
m
= Plumpton Hopkins Road: Taylors Road (IN-14) to East-West
z Melton City Council & Kororoit RD17 Road 5 (IN-18) Construction of a 2-lane arterial §54,962 3.05%
= (2018) road (interim standard).
m
8 Intersection: Plumpton Road and Taylors Road
S Plumptor! Construction of connector road to primary arterial
5 Melton City Council & Kororoit  IN-13 primary $567,419.81 20.29%
= (2018) signalised 4-way intersection (interim standard) e :
2 and habitat compensation obligations.
Plumpton Intersection: Hopkins Road and Taylors Road
. ' . . Construction of primary arterial to primary arterial q
Wetion Gity Conncil ?zg%?rmt IN-14 signalised 4-way intersection (interim standard) 329,692 0.25%
and habitat compensation obligations.
Plumpton Intersection: Sinclairs Road and Taylors Road
MeltonCityCouncil & Kororoit  [N-15  Constructionof connector road to primary arterial $2,615,505.12 44.82%
(2018) signalised 4-way intersection (interim standard)
and habitat compensation obligations.
Plumpton Sinclairs Road Bridge Construction of a connector
Melton City Council & Kororoit ~ BR-03 road bridge over the Kororoit Creek and habitat $209,602.10 8.17%
(2018) compensation obligations.
Deanside Sports Reserve Construction of a
sports reserve incorporating: Playing surfaces
Plumpton and car parks, including all construction works,
Melton City Council & Kararoit SR-06 landscaping and related infrastructure. Playground $23,700 0.14%
(2018) including large play space, youth space, picnic and ' ’
BBQ. Pavilion to serve the Deanside sports reserve,
including all building works, landscaping and
related infrastructure.
Plumpton North Sports Reserve Construction of
asports reserve incorporating: Playing surfaces
and car parks, including all construction works,
landscaping and related infrastructure. Playground
Plumpton including play space, youth space, picnic and
Melton City Council & Kororoit SR-01 BBQ. Pavilion to serve the Plumpton North sports $26,252.60 0.17%
(2018) reserve, including all building works, landscaping
and related infrastructure. Tennis/multi-purpose
hard courts incorporating 6 courts with lighting
and parking, including all construction works,
landscaping and related infrastructure.
Mt Atkinson East Community Centre (Mt Atkinson
East Community Hub) - Construction of a multi-
! ., MtAtkinson ; purpose community centre (Level 1) at Mt Atkinson o
B sl (2016) EHE East Community Hub, including community rooms S0.00 e
and additional facilities to cater for childcare and
maternal child health.
TOTAL $3,547,133.63
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Table 6 - Use and development of inner public purpose land or outer public purpose land which has
vested in, been acquired by or been transferred to, the development agency in the 2023/24

financial year

NAME OF
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY NAME OF ICP

PROJECT ID PROJECT DESCRIPTION

USE AND DEVELOPMENT OF LAND

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

Plumpton
Melton City Council & Kororoit
(2018)

LP-19

LP-33

LP-29

SR-06

CI05

IN18

IN-19

RD-12

RD17

RD-18

RD-19

Local Park Purchase of land.

Local Park Purchase of land.

Local Park Purchase of land.

Deanside Sports Reserve Purchase of land fora
future sports reserve.

Deanside Community Centre & Neighbourhood
House Purchase of land.

Intersection: Hopkins Road and East-West
Connector Road 5 Purchase of land for intersection
atan ultimate standard.

Intersection: Hopkins Road and Reed Court
Purchase of land for intersection at an ultimate
standard.

Taylors Road: Plumpton Road (IN-13) ta Hopkins
Road (IN-14) Purchase of land for a 44m wide road
section (ultimate standard).

Hopkins Road: Taylors Road (IN-14) to East-West
Road 5 (IN-18) Purchase of land for a 41m road
section (ultimate standard).

Hopkins Road: East-West Road 5 (IN-18) to Reed
Court (IN-19) Purchase of land for a 41m road
section 41m (ultimate standard).

Hopkins Road: Reed Court {IN-19) to Hopkins Road
Bridge (BR-02) Purchase of land for a 41m wide
road section (ultimate standard).

Land fora Local Park

Land for a Local Park

Land for a Local Park

Land for a Sports Reserve

Land for a Community Centre

Road Widening for an Intersection

Road Widening for an Intersection

Road Widening for a Road

Road Widening for a Road

Road Widening for a Road

Road Widening for a Road
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)
o

2 Table 7 - Use of works, services or facilities accepted as works-in-kind in the 2023/24 financial year

2

(8]

m

> NAME OF

g DEVELOPMENT AGENCY NAMEOFICP PROJECTID PROJECT DESCRIPTION USE OF LAND

=

= Intersection: North-South Road 1 Land acquisition of IN-03 was required
> Plumpton and Melton Highway Construction of for the purpose of construction of an

o Melton City Council & Kororoit IN-03 connector road to primary arterial intersection as part of works associated
= (2018) signalised T-intersection (interim with PA2018/6127 for a residential

Z standard). subdivision at Kerani Heights estate.

z . .

o Intersection: Hopkins Road and East- B WD Was iz
@ Plumpton . for the purpose of construction of an

z M f - b West Road 5 Construction of connector . . .

> elton City Council & Kororoit IN-18 O AT e e P ereyd intersection as part of works associated
= (2018) i iﬁtemcy“on (imem!; atondard),  “ith PA2017/5814 for a residential

2 y " subdivision at Deanside Central estate.

Table 8 - Expenditure of ICP land equalisation amounts in the 2023/24 financial year

NAME OF LAND EQUALISATION
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY NAME OF ICP PROJECTID PROJECT DESCRIPTION AMOUNTS EXPENDED ($)
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
TOTAL $0.00
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Glossary of terms related to the non-financial sections.

Act In terms of the Annual Report, means the Local Minister means the Minister for Local Government
Government Act 1989
. . Performance means a statement including the results of
Annual Report means a report of the council's operations of the statement the prescribed service outcome indicators

Appropriateness

Budget

Council Plan

previous financial year and contains a report of
operations, audited financial statements and an
audited performance statement

means indicators or measures that provide users
with sufficient information to assess the extent to
which an entity has achieved a pre-determined
target, goal or outcome

means a plan setting out the services and
initiatives to be funded for the financial year
and how they will contribute to achieving the
strategic objectives specified in the council plan

means a plan setting out the medium-term
strategic objectives, strategies, strategic
indicators and resources reflecting vision and
aspirations of the community for the next
fouryears

Planning and
accountability
framework

Regulations

Relevance

financial performance indicators and
sustainable capacity indicators for the
financial year and included in the
Annual Report

means the key statutory planning and
reporting documents that are required to be
prepared by councils to ensure accountability
to local communities in the performance of
functions and exercise of powers under

the Act

means the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014

means indicators or measures that have
alogical and consistent relationship to an
entity's objectives and are linked to the
outcomes to be achieved

Financial means a prescribed set of indicators and
performance measures that assess the effectiveness of Report of operations  means a report containing a description of the
indicators financial management in a council covering operations of the council during the financial

operating position, liquidity, obligations, stability year and included in the Annual Report

and efficiency

Services means assistance, support, advice and

Financial means the financial statements and notes other actions undertaken by a council for the
statements prepared in accordance with the Local benefit of the local community

Financial year

Government Model Financial Report, Australian
Accounting Standards and other applicable
standards as they apply to the general-purpose
financial reports and a statement of capital
works and included in the Annual Report

means the period of 12 months ending on
30 June each year

Service outcome
indicators

Service performance
indicators

means the prescribed service performance
indicators to be included in the performance
statement which measure whether the stated
service objective has been achieved

means a prescribed set of indicators
measuring the effectiveness and efficiency of
council services covering appropriateness,
quality, cost and service outcomes

NOILYWHOINI LNIWIDVYNYW ANV IDNVNYIAOD

Governance and  means a prescribed checklist of policies, plans Stratedi R . Kinat
Management and documents that councils must report the hr_a g 19 mﬁf‘"S el Ifc""es af g Se; '"F ; "
Checklist status of in the report of operations, covering objectives ‘acﬂ.\'eve OVET f"e’(t BRI eI T L z
engagement, planning, monitoring, reporting s EEaELAE E
and decision makin . ) . [}
9 Strategic means a plan of the financial and non- z
1 H [}
it sl s i e resource plan flnanmalresour_cesfnrat l_eastlhe next ‘ g
performance four years required to achieve the strategic =<
objectives in the council plan. It is also 3
referred to as a long-term financial plan =
(s}
Initiatives means actions that are one-off in nature and/or Strategies means high level actions directed at -
lead to improvements in service achieving the strategic objectives in the £
council plan Z
-
Major initiative means significant initiatives that will directly Sustainable capacity means a prescribed set of indicators -
contribute to the achievement of the council plan indicators measuring whether councils have the 5
during the current year and have a major focus in capacity to meet the agreed service and =

the budget

infrastructure needs of the local community

and absorb foreseeable changes and =

Measure means how an indicator will be measured and unexpected shocks inta the future covering 0
takes the form of a computation, typically financial performance, capacity and N

including a numerator and denominator governance and management *

1
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Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

INIWILVLS IDNVWYHO4Y3d

A

Peter Leersen CPA
Principal Accounting Officer

Dated: 16 September 2024

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Melton City Council for the year ended 30 June 2024
presents fairly the results of the Council's performance in accordance with the Local Government Act 2020 and the
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in relation to service
performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the perfarmance
statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 to
certify this performance statementin its final form.

/iyt

Cr Kathy Majdlik Cr Steve Abboushi Roslyn Wai

Mayor Deputy Mayor Chief Executive Officer
Dated: 16 September 2024 Dated: 16 September 2024 Dated: 16 September 2024
232 High Street, Melton VIC 232 High Street, Melton VIC 232 High Street, Melton VIC

Section 1. Description of municipality

Located 19 kilometres northwest of Melbourne's CBD, the The City of Melton is a community that is transforming into a
City of Melton is one of the fastest growing municipalities in bustling municipality where people aspire to build a home,
Australia, projected to grow from 232,721 residents today to raise a family, establish a business and pursue a career.
470,596 by 2046, We have on average 79 families moving in, Whilst much of what attracts people to our municipality

and 64 babies being born in our city every week. More than stems from our state of the art facilities, exciting new estates,
60,000 residents were horn overseas and almost 70,000 and the beauty of our natural open spaces, itisin fact our
residents speak a language other than English at home. community, our people and our values that make this great

The City of Melton is an integral part of Melbourne's western City, the place that people want to call home.

growth corridor, connected to the State of Victoria's major
freeways and airports, as well as the State's largest industrial
hub and the Port of Melbourne.
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Section 5. Notes to the accounts =
Forthe yearended 30 June 2024 9
:
5.1. Basis of preparation a
m
Councilis required to prepare and include a performance The performance statement presents the actual results for a
statement within its annual report. The performance the current year and the previous three years, along with the E
statement includes the results aof the prescribed service current year's target, if mandated by the Local Government 2
performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. Additionally, z
indicators and measures together with a description of the for the prescribed financial performance indicators and
municipal district, an explanation of material variations in the measures, the performance statement includes the target
results and notes to the accounts. This statement has been budget for the current year and the results forecast for the
prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government period 2024-25t0 2027-28 by the council's financial plan

Act 2020 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting)

Regulations 2020. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations

2020 requires explanation of any material variations in the

Where applicable the results in the performance statement results contained in the performance statement. Council has
have been prepared on accounting hases consistent with adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator
those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results and measure and explanations have not been provided

are based on information drawn from councilinformation for variations below the materiality thresholds unless the
systems or from third parties (e.qg., Australian Bureau of variance is considered to be material because of its nature,

Statistics or the Council's satisfaction survey provider).
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= 5.2 Definitions

o

o

=

Z  Aboriginal children means a child who is an Aboriginal person

w

g Aboriginal person has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

m

E adjusted underlying means total income other than:

= revenue = non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

* non-monetary asset contributions; and
= contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above

adjusted underlying surplus means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure
(or deficit)

annual report means an annual report prepared by a council under section 98 of the Act

asset renewal expenditure  means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that returns the service capability of the
asset toits ariginal capability

asset upgrade expenditure  means expenditure that- (a) enhances an existing asset to provide a higher level of service; or (b) extends the life of
the asset beyond its original life

critical non-compliance means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council

outcome notification by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health

current assets has the same meaning as in the Australian Accounting Standards

current liabilities has the same meaning as in the Australian Accounting Standards

food premises has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

intervention level means the level set for the condition of a road beyond which a council will not allow the road to deteriorate and will
need to intervene

local road means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management
Act 2004

major non-compliance means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to

outcome notification council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to
public health but may do so if no remedial action is taken

MCH means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of
children within the municipality from birth until school age

non-current liabilities means all liabilities other than current liabilities

own-source revenue means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council
(including government grants)

population means the resident population estimated by council

rate revenue means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges

relative socio-economic in relation to a municipal district, means the relative socio-economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the

disadvantage relevant financial year, of the area in which the municipal district is located according to the Index of Relative Socio-

Economic Disadvantage of SEIFA

restricted cash means cash, cash equivalents and financial assets, within the meaning of the Australian Accounting Standards, not
available for use other than for a purpose for which it is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital works
expenditure from the previous financial year

SEIFA means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its
Internet site
unrestricted cash means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash

FC/SC0C | L¥Od3IY TVNNNY | TIDNNOD ALID NOLTIW

—_
N
-~

Page 140



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL 21 OCTOBER 2024
ltem 12.1  Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24
Appendix 1 Melton City Council Annual Report 2023-24

VAGO

Independent AUditor’S Report Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

To the Councillors of Melton City Council

INIWILYLS IDNVWHOSHId

Opinion | have audited the accompanying performance statement of Melton City Council (the
council) which comprises the:

. description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2024

. service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2024
. financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2024
. sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2024

° notes to the accounts

° certification of the performance statement.

In my opinion, the performance statement of Melton City Council in respect of the
year ended 30 June 2024 presents fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with
the performance reporting requirements of Part 4 of the Local Government Act 2020
and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Basis for | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates

Opinion the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further describe my
responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the performance statement section of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and | are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the performance
statement in Victoria. My staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

Councillors' The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the

responsibilities performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting requirements

for the of the Local Government Act 2020 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting)

performance Regulations 2020 and for such internal control as the Councillors determines is

statement necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a performance statement
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

TIDONNOD ALID NOLTIW
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Auditor’s
responsibilities
for the audit of
the performance
statement

MELBOURNE

4 October 2024

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the performance statement as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Standards on Assurance Engagements will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance statement.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the performance
statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s
internal control

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the performance
statement, including the disclosures, and whether performance statement
represents the underlying events and results in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, amaong other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

Tk

Travis Derricott
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Certification of the Financial Statement

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accardance with the Local Government
Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020), the Australian Accounting Standards
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

130d3d TVIDONVNIA TVNNNY

i

Peter Leersen CPA
Responsible Accounting Officer

Dated: 16 September 2024
232 High Street, Melton VIC

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of Melton City Council
for the year ended 30 June 2024 and the financial position of the Council as at that date.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the financial
statements to be misleading orinaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reparting) Regulations 2020 to
certify the financial statements in their final form.

/

Cr Kathy Majdlik Cr Steve Abboushi Roslyn Wai

Mayor Deputy Mayor Chief Executive Officer
Dated: 16 September 2024 Dated: 16 September 2024 Dated: 16 September 2024
232 High Street, Melton VIC 232 High Street, Meltan VIC 232 High Street, Meltan VIC
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VAGO

Independent AUditor’S Report Victorian Auditor-General’s Office

To the Councillors of Melton City Council

130d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

Opinion | have audited the financial report of Melton City Council (the council) which comprises the:

. balance sheet as at 30 June 2024

. comprehensive income statement for the year then ended

. statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

. statement of cash flows for the year then ended

. statement of capital works for the year then ended

. notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information
. certification of the financial statements.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the council as at 30 June 2024 and their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 4 of
the Local Government Act 2020, the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2020 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the

Opinion Australian Auditing Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and | are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My
staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for my opinion.

Other The Councillors of the council are responsible for the Other Information, which comprises
information the information in the council’s annual report for the period ended 30 June 2024, but does
not include the financial report and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the Other Infarmation and accordingly, |
do not express any form of assurance conclusion on the Other Information. However, in
connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the Other
Information and in doing so, consider whether it is materially inconsistent with the financial
report or the knowledge | obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material

TIDONNOD ALID NOLTIW

misstatement of the Other Information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to
report in this regard.

LHOdIY TYNNNY

Level 31 / 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic 3000
T 03 8601 7000 enquiries@audit.vic.gov.au www.audit.vic.gov.au
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s

o Councillors’ The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
z responsibilities the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Local

E for the Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations

b-d

o financial 2020, and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the
g report preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from material

A

b

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.

Auditor's As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial

responsibilities report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance

for the audit of about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether

the financial due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable

report assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal cantrol

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors

. conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors” use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
council to cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s | communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
responsibilities timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

for the audit of internal control that | identify during my audit.

the financial

report

(continued)

g

MELBOURNE Travis Derricott
4 October 2024 as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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z Comprehensive Income Statement

g for the year ended 30 June 2024

z

z 2024 2023

2 Note $ '000 $ 000

E Income / Revenue

,ou Rates and charges 3.1 177,031 162,701

= Statutory fees and fines 3.2 14,871 12,753
User fees 33 10,404 11,196
Grants - operating 3.4 25,896 46,321
Grants - capital 3.4 10,513 13,865
Contributions - monetary 35 32,876 79,668
Contributions - non monetary 35 246,042 304,619
Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment - 1,274
Fair value increment for investment properties 975 100
Interest Income 37 29,463 17,295
Other income 8,941 4,120
Total income / revenue 557,012 653,912
Expenses
Employee costs 41 72,049 66,825
Materials and services 4.2 122,668 111,428
Depreciation 4.3 56,203 49,757
Amortisation - Intangible assets 327 327
Depreciation - Right of use assets 354 521
Allowance for impairment losses 2,678 2,090
Borrowing costs 197 283
Finance Costs - Leases 20 20
Net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2,756 -
Revaluation decrement of IPP&E 6.2 4,418 -
Other expenses 1,827 -
Total expenses 263,497 231,251
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 293,515 422,661
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation gain/(loss) 9.1 173,053 375,888
Total other comprehensive income 173,053 375,888
Total comprehensive result 466,568 798,549

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet z
asat30June 2024 g
I
=z
2024 2023 -4
Note $ '000 $'000 2
Assets E
Current assets 9
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 18,771 23,401 -
Non-current assets classified as "held for sale” 6.1 230 78
Trade and other receivables 5.1 64,139 59,704
Prepayments 302 461
Other financial assets 5.1 236,000 309,000
Inventories 5 12
Contract assets 5.1 15,512 26,388
Total current assets 334,959 419,044
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 5.1 324,673 239,000
Inventories 10 16
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.2 4,219,875 3,753,385
Investment property 9,525 8,550
Intangible assets 2,775 2,050
Right-of-use assets 608 482
Total non-current assets 4,557,466 4,003,483
Total assets 4,892,425 4,422,527
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 52 53,886 51,187
Trust funds and deposits 5.2 10,372 14,281
Contract and other liabilities 5.2 17,205 25,664
Provisions 5.3 15,324 13,608
Interest-bearing liabilities 2,240 2,607
Lease liabilities 262 283
Total current liabilities 99,289 107,630
Non-current liabilities
Trust funds and deposits 5.2 37,230 23,789
Provisions 5.3 2,116 1,795
Interest-bearing liabilities 922 3,163
Lease liabilities 387 237
Total non-current liabilities 40,655 28,984
Total liabilities 139,944 136,614
Net assets 4,752,481 4,285,913
Equity
Accumulated surplus 2,605,020 2,343,662
Reserves 9.1 2,147,461 1,942,251
Total Equity 4,752,481 4,285,913

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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> - -

z Statement of Changes in Equity

[=

Z  forthe yearended 30 June 2024

z Accumulated  Revaluation Other

5> Total Surplus Reserves Reserves

» Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

5

o

A

o 2024
Balance at beginning of the financial year 4,285,913 2,343,662 1,462,758 479,493
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 293,515 293,515 - -
Other comprehensive income
Net asset revaluation gain/{loss) 173,053 — 173,053 —
Other comprehensive income 173,053 — 173,053 —
Total comprehensive income 466,568 293,515 173,053 -
Transfers to other reserves 9.1 - 121,870 - (121,870)
Transfers from other reserves 9.1 - (154,027) - 154,027
Balance at end of the financial year 4,752,481 2,605,020 1,635,811 511,650
2023
Balance at beginning of the financial year 3,487,364 1,989,825 1,086,870 410,669
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 422,661 422,661 - -
Other comprehensive income
Net asset revaluation gain/(loss) 375,888 - 375,888 —
Other comprehensive income 375,888 - 375,888 -
Total comprehensive income 798,549 422,661 375,888 -
Transfers to other reserves 9.1 - 81,126 - (81,126)
Transfers from other reserves 9.1 - (149,950) - 149,950
Balance at end of the financial year 4,285,913 2,343,662 1,462,758 479,493

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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p-3

Statement of Cash Flows z

forthe year ended 30 June 2024 g

;

=

2024 2023 z

Inflows/ Inflows/ >

(Outflows) (Outflows) ;

Note $'000 $'000 a

o

~a

Cash flows from operating activities -
Rates and charges 168,075 156,528
Statutory fees and fines 11,318 12,528
User fees 12,274 10,939
Grants - operating 18,417 46,785
Grants - capital 7,663 13,666
Contributions - monetary 32,876 79,668
Interest received 19,336 17,295
Trust funds and deposits taken 9,532 (1,544)
Other receipts 37,962 (25,589)
Net GST refund/(payment) 23,168 21,342
Employee costs (70,012) (65,657)
Materials and services (150,733) (108,841)
Other payments 3,319 (24,398)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 92 123,195 132,722

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.2 (114,943) (58,675)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 5,110 12,865
Payments for investments, other properties and intangibles (14,816) (77,413)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (124,649) (123,223)
Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs (197) (283)
Repayment of borrowings (2,608) (2,502)
Interest paid - lease liabilities (20) (20)
Repayment of lease liabilities (351) (497)
Net cash flow provided by/(used in) financing activities (3,176) (3,302)
Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,630) 6,197
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 23,401 17,204
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 18,771 23,401

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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» .

z Statement of Capital Works

g for the year ended 30 June 2024

m

z

z 2024 2023

> $'000 $'000

:

2 Property

=& Land 3,510 -
Total land 3,510 -
Buildings 36,415 26,898
Total buildings 36,415 26,898
Total property 39,925 26,898
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 28 -
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 74 72
Computers and telecommunications 674 299
Library books 526 498
Total plant and equipment 1,302 869
Infrastructure
Roads 49,828 17,720
Bridges 902 659
Footpaths and cycleways 3,764 2,020
Drainage 1,703 410
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 14,705 2,398
Off street car parks 568 2,845
Public Art 81 -
Kerb & Channel 353 146
Traffic Management Devices 1,549 914
Other infrastructure 36 453
Total infrastructure 73,489 27,565
Total capital works expenditure 114,716 55,332
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 58,886 29,061
Asset renewal expenditure 17,489 11,621
Asset expansion expenditure 4,250 8,598
Asset upgrade expenditure 34,091 6,052
Total capital works expenditure 114,716 55,332

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 1. Overview

Introduction

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

The Melton City Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 15 December 1994 and is a body corporate.

The Council's main office is located at 232 High Street, Melton.
Statement of compliance

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance
Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes accompanying
these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 2020, and the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

The Council is a not-for-profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs applicable to a not-for-profit entity
under the Australian Accounting Standards.

Accounting policy information

1.1 Basis of accounting

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the
concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is
reported. Accounting policies applied are disclosed in sections where the related balance or financial statement matter is
disclosed.

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, except for the cash flow
information, whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they
relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The financial statements are based on the historical cost convention unless a different measurement basis is specifically
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are based on professional judgement derived
from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial statements are in Australian dollars. The
amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless otherwise specified.
Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and the sum of components are due to rounding.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods
that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS that have
significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:

+ the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.2)

+ the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.2).

+ the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 5.3).

+ the determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific so as to determine whether an
arrangement is within the scope of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers or AASB 1058 Income of Not-
for-Profit Entities (refer to Note 3.4)

+ the determination, in accordance with AASB 16 Leases, of the lease term, the estimation of the discount rate when not
implicit in the lease and whether an arrangement is in substance short-term or low value.

+ whether or not AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors is applicable
other areas requiring judgements

LHOdIY TYANNY | TIONNOD ALID NOLTIW

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe yearended 30 June 2024

Note 1. Overview (continued)

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income and expenses are recognised net of the amount of associated GST. Receivables and payables are stated inclusive
of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority
is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

130d3d TVIDONVNIA TVNNNY
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 2. Analysis of our results

Note 2.1 Performance against budget

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

The performance against budget notes compare Council's financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual
performance. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 requires explanation of any material
variances. Council has adopted a materiality threshold of the lower of 10 percent or $250,000 where further explanation is
warranted. Explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered
to be material because of its nature.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning
and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Budget Actual Variance Variance
2024 2024
$'000 $ '000 $'000 % Ref
2.1.1 Income / Revenue and
expenditure
Income / Revenue
Rates and charges 178,729 177,031 (1,698) (0.95)% 1
Statutory fees and fines 13,563 14,871 1,308 9.64% 2
User fees 12,792 10,404 (2,388) (18.67)% 3
Grants - operating 34,680 25,896 (8,784) (25.33)% 4
Grants - capital 13,867 10,513 (3,354) (24.19)% 5
Contributions - monetary 133,016 32,876 (100,140) (75.28)% 6
Contributions - non monetary 181,665 246,042 64,377 35.44% 7
Net gain on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment 16,442 - (16,442) (100.00)% 8
Fair value increment for investment
properties - a75 975 - [
Interest Income 20,719 29,463 8,744 42.20% 10
Other income 3,476 8,941 5,465 157.22% 1
Total income / revenue 608,949 557,012 (51,937) (8.53)%
Expenses
Employee costs 77,934 72,049 5,885 7.55% 12
Materials and services 107,798 122,668 (14,870) (13.79)% 13
Depreciation 51,715 56,203 (4,488) (8.68)% 14
Amortisation - intangible assets 327 327 - 0.00%
Depreciation - right of use assets 365 354 11 3.01% 2
Allowance for impairment losses 1,220 2,678 (1,458) (119.51)% 15 g
Borrowing costs 190 197 (7) (3.68)% i
Finance costs - leases 27 20 7 25.93% i
Net loss on disposal of property, a
infrastructure, plant and equipment - 2,756 (2,756) - 16 2
Revaluation decrement of IPP&E - 4,418 (4,418) - 17 E
Other expenses - 1,827 (1,827) - 18 T
Total expenses 239,576 263,497 (23,921) (9.98)% g
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 369,373 293,515 (75,858) (20.54)% §
=
5
o
3
=]
8
N
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> . .
z Notes to the Financial Statements
g for the year ended 30 June 2024
z  Note 2.1 Performance against budget (continued)
>
~
g (i) Explanation of material variations
A
- Variance Explanation
Ref

1. Rates and Charges ended the year marginally unfavourable to budget which is attributable to lower
supplementary rate revenue than originally anticipated.

2. Statutory Fees and Fines ended the year with a favourable variance to budget predominately due to better
than anticipated revenues from infringement notices. This is offset by lower than expected revenues from
building permits due to the slow down in the Building industry.

3. User Fees income ended the year with a unfavourable variance to budget mainly due to lower than
anticipated revenues from 'Building Subdivision Fee' income and' Building Application Fee' income. This
is in correlation with the slow down in the Building industry.

4 Operating grant income ended the year unfavourably against budget due to the receipt of the 2023/24
Financial Assistance Grant in 2022/23. This was partially offset by greater than anticipated grant income
including in the areas of:

Maternal & Child Heaith Services
Commonwealth Home Support
Family Day Care Services
5. The unfavourable variance to budget against Capital Grant income is primarily due to a number of budgeted

grants not being received including those for the following projects:
Weir Views Childrens and Community Centre
Aintree Children's and Community Centre
Plumpton Children's Centre & Neighbourhood House

Conversely, these were partially offset by unbudgeted Capital Grant income received for projects including
those for:

Thornhill Park Children's and Community Centre

Asset Management Setvices

Renewal Program Transport Sealed Roads

6. Monetary contributions ended the year unfavourable to budget mainly due to subdivisions not achieving
their Statement's of Compliance (SOC's), as expected where developers experienced delayed responses
from referral authorities such as Melbourne Water. As well as this, amendments to plans and construction
schedules by developers in response to increases in costs and slowing demand in the housing market due
to higher than anticipated interest rates, also contributed to the unfavourable variance. Revised SOC's now
have those stages scheduled to be completed in 2024/25.

7. Non-monetary contributions ended higher than expected due to the unbudgeted recognition of subdivision
works completed and increased subdivision activity in new areas such as Plumpton, Kororoit and Mt
Atkinson Precinct Structure Plan. This was offset by the rolling credit recognition which was below projection
mainly due to ‘works in kind' and 'land in kind' not delivered during the year in the Woodlea, Grandview and
Atherstone subdivisions.

8. Lower than anticipated land sales volume within the Atherstone development is the main contributor to
the unfavourable variance with the remaining subdivision expected to be developed in the near future to
generate sales.

9. Unbudgeted increase in the Fair Value of Council's investment property occured in 2023/24. These included
Melton Country Club and Melton Vallley Golf Club.

10. The favourable variance in Interest on investments is mainly due to investments providing higher
returns than budgeted resulting from a higher than anticipated cash rate.

11. Other revenues ended the year favourably against budget predominately due to unbudgeted distributions
for investment holdings with Victorian Funds Management Corporation (VFMC) as well as greater than
anticipated miscellaneous revenues in the Waste area.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 2.1 Performance against budget (continued)

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.
18.

Employee costs ended the year favourably to budget due to unfilled vacancies across Council particularly
against the City Life and City Futures Directorate's in particular for:

Maternal and Child Health

City Strategy

This is partly offset by the costs of contract labour required to fill some of these vacant roles which forms
part of Materials and Services.

The unfavourable variance to budget in Materials and Services has predominately arisen as a result of
unbudgeted Contract Labour costs and slightly higher than anticipated Contract payments to vendors.
Unbudgeted maintenance costs which had originally been budgeted against capital expenditure also
contributed to the unfavourable result. The unfavourable variance was partially offset by favourable
variances against 'Development' costs and 'Research, Planning & Design' costs.

This unfavourable variance is mainly due to more Drainage, Road and Footpath assets being capitalised

sooner than originally anticipated and fewer Recreation and Furniture assets being capitalised than originally
anticipated.

This unfavourable variance is predominately due to internal reviews resulting in the withdrawal of Litter and
other Local Laws fines which had been issued in error combined with legislative timeframes for internal
review having lapsed.

The unfavourable variance is due to unbudgeted disposal of various infrastructure assets.

Fair value decrement on land under roads.
The unfavourable variance is due to fair value decrement on financial instruments invested with VFMC.

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY
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- . .

z Notes to the Financial Statements

g for the year ended 30 June 2024

%

z Note 2.1 Performance against budget (continued)

>

; Budget Actual Variance Variance

§ 2024 2024

z $'000 $ '000 $'000 % Ref
2.1.2 Capital works
Property
Land - 3,510 3,510 - 1
Total land — 3,510 3,510 -
Buildings 27,343 36,415 9,072 33.18% 2
Total buildings 27,343 36,415 9,072 33.18%
Total property 27,343 39,925 12,582 46.02%
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 28 28 - 0.00%
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 73 74 1 1.37%
Computers and telecommunications 2,458 674 (1,784) (72.58)% 3
Library books 559 526 (33) (5.90)%
Total plant and equipment 3,118 1,302 (1,816) (58.24)%
Infrastructure
Roads 29,440 49,828 20,388 69.25% 4
Bridges 2,896 802 (1,994) (68.85)% 5
Footpaths and cycleways 6,237 3,764 (2,473) (39.65)% [
Drainage 1,396 1,703 307 21.99% 7
Recreational, leisure and community
facilities 28,323 14,705 (13,618) (48.08)% 8
Off street car parks - 568 568 - k]
Public Art - 81 81 -
Kerb & Channel 134 353 219 163.43% 10
Traffic Management Devices 15,238 1,549 (13,689) (89.83)% 11
Other infrastructure 223 36 (187) (83.86)% 12
Total infrastructure 83,887 73,489 (10,398) (12.40)%
Total capital works expenditure 114,348 114,716 368 0.32%
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 63,523 58,886 (4,637) (7.30)% 13
Asset renewal expenditure 13,239 17,489 4,250 32.10% 14
Asset expansion expenditure 5416 4,250 (1,166) (21.53)% 15
Asset upgrade expenditure 32,170 34,091 1,921 5.97% 16
Total capital works expenditure 114,348 114,716 368 0.32%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 2.1 Performance against budget (continued)

Variance Explanation
Ref

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

1. This variance is due to the unbudgeted purchase of land associated with the Plumpton Aquatic Centre.

2. The unfavourable variance to budget against the Buildings category is mainly attributable to a higher than
anticipated level of capitalised labour costs; an unbudgeted spend against the Bridge Road Community Hub;
and an overspend against the Weir Views Childrens and Community Centre. These were partially offset by
less being spent than expected on the Diggers Rest Community Pavilion & Oval No2; an underspend against
the Melton Recycling Facility - Stage 2; and an underspend against the Melton Recreation Reserve Pavilion
(Construction) project.

3. This favourable variance is due delay in delivery of some projects and other projects have not commenced.
The most material of which are as follows:
Council AV Equipment Upgrade/Renewal
IT Security Program
Service Management Reporting Uplift (Service Review)
Annual IT Device Replacement
Network Uplift Activities

1. The unfavourable variance against Roads is predominately due to more being spent than originally anticipated
on the Sealed Roads Transport Renewal Program and on Bulman's Road, West Melton - Urbanisation.

5. The favourable variance against Bridges is predominately due to favourable variances across most of the
budgeted projects, in particular
Pedestrian Bridge - Hannah Watts Park, Melton
Sinclairs Road, Deanside - Bridge Construction
Pedestrian Bridge-Over Toolern Creek, Strathtulloh

6. The favourable variance against Footpaths and Cycleways is predominately due to favourable variances
across most of the budgeted projects, in particular:
Sugar Gum Estate Pedestrian Path
Civic Centre Paths
The Pedestrian and Cycling Infrastructure Program

7. The unfavourable variance against Drainage is predominately due to timing differences across most of the
budgeted projects, in particular:
Water Sensitive Urban Design Program
Culvert Upgrade - Little Blind Creek, Kurunjang

8. The favourable variance against Recreational, leisure and community facilities is predominately due to favourable
variances across most of the budgeted projects, in particular;
Mt Atkinson East Sports Reserve, Mt Atkinson
Kurunjang Recreation Reserve Synthetic Renewal
Bridge Road Recreation Reserve Stage 3
Caroline Springs Town Centre-Oval Redevelopment
Renewal Program Open Space Tennis/Netball Courts

These favourable variances were partially offset by unfavourable variances against:
Plumpton Aguatic Centre
MTC Revitalisation Grant Round 2 - Kid Zone

9. The unfavourable variance against Off Street Car Parks is predominately due to unbudgeted spends against
Unsealed Car Parks Upgrade - Various and City Vista Sports Precinct Car Park Extension.

10 Kerb & Channel project renewal is complete. Overspend is due to constrained market conditions causing price
escalation.

11. The favourable variance against Traffic Management Devices is predominately due to favourable variances
across most of the budgeted projects, in particular:
Roundabout-Mount Cottrell Rd & Greigs Rd Strathtulloh
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 2.1 Performance against budget (continued)

12 The favourable variance against Other Infrastructure is predominately due to less labour costs being
capitalised than originally anticipated combined with favourable variances across most of the budgeted
projects, in particular: The MTC Revitalisation grant funded project for active transport.

130d3d TVIDONVNIA TVNNNY

13 This Favourable variance is due to a wide variety of budgeted works either partially or not commenced on the
following projects, the most material of which are as follows:
Bridge Road Community Hub, Strathtulloh
Mt Atkinson East Sports Reserve, Mt Atkinson
Aintree Children’'s and Community Centre
Weir Views Childrens and Community Centre
Roundabout-Mount Cottrell Rd & Greigs Rd Strathtulloh

These favourable variances are offset by the following unfavourable variances comprising of timing differences,
the most material of which are as follows:

Diggers Rest Community Pavilion & Oval No2

Melton Recycling Facility Stage 2

Land purchase associated with the Plumpton Aquatic

Taylors Rd/Sinclairs Rd - Signalised Intersection

Plumpton Children’'s Centre & Neighbourhood House

14 This unfavourable variance is comprising of either unbudgeted works or timing differences on budgeted projects,
the most material of which are as follows:
Renewal Program - Transport - Sealed Roads
Renewal Program - Transport - Footpaths

These unfavourable variances are offset by favourable variances comprising budgeted works either partially or
not commenced on the following projects, the most material of which are as follows:

Kurunjang Recreation Reserve Synthetic Renewal

Council AV Equipment Upgrade/Renewal

Navan Park Playspace

15 This Favourable variance is due to a wide variety of budgeted works either partially or not commenced on the
following projects, the most material of which are as follows:
Bridge Road Recreation Reserve Stage 3
Hume Drive Stage 2-Calder Park Dr- Gourlay Rd

16 This unfavourable variance is comprising of either unbudgeted works or timing differences on budgeted projects,
the most material of which are as follows:

Bulmans Road, West Melton - Urbanisation (Roads)
Melton Recreation Reserve Pavilion (Construction)
Burnside Heights Recreation Reserve - Oval 2

These unfavourable variances are offset by favourable variances comprising budgeted timing differences on the
following projects, the most material of which are as follows:

The Parkway Reserve Upgrade

Caroline Springs Town Centre-Oval Redevelopment

Earlington Square Upgrade
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 2.2 Analysis of Council results by program

2.2.1 Analysis of Council results by program

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

Council delivers its functions and activities through the following programs.

Office of CEO
The office of the CEOQ incorporates Customer Services & Transformation, Engagement & Advocacy, Strategic Intiatives,
Legal Services, and Governance Services.

Organisational Performance

The Organisational Performance directorate incorporates the Finance, Information Technology, Procurement, Enterprise
Project Management Office and Organisational Performance service units. This directorate provides internal support to
Council Staff.

City Life

The City Life directorate incorporates the Community Care, Families & Children, Recreation, Youth, Arts & Events and
Libraries service units. The Community Services directorate provides a range of services to people within our community,
through provision of leisure and sporting infrastructure, libraries, care services for families, children, the elderly and those
with disabilities.

City Delivery

The City Delivery directorate incorporates the Capital Delivery, Engineering & Assets, Operations, Contract Management,
Economic Development & Advocacy and Community Safety service units. The City Delivery directorate is responsible for
constructing new infrastructure and maintaining existing infrastructure across a very diverse range of assets that underpin
the wellbeing of the community.

City Futures

The City Futures directorate incorporates the Infrastructure Planning, Growth & Development, Strategy and Environmental
& Sustainability. The City Futures directorate provides planning, design & strategy and environmental health & sustainability
services to the community.

2.2.2 Summary of income / revenue, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

Grants
included in
Income / Surplus / income / Total
Revenue Expenses (Deficit) revenue assets
Functions/activities $'000 $'000 $'000 $ '000 $'000
2024
Office of CEO 1,730 15,437 (13,707) - -
Organisational Performance 493,749 40,725 453,024 14,544 660,302
City Life 19,606 38,567 (18,961) 15,437 111,430 S
City Delivery 31,205 155,260 (124,055) 6,191 4,113,857 g
City Futures 10,722 13,508 (2,786) 237 6,836 i
Total functions and activities 557,012 263,497 293,515 36,409 4,892,425 i
2023 §
Office of CEO 2,033 13,857 (11,824) - - z
Organisational Performance 575,072 17,067 558,005 29,719 639,649 r
City Life 18,857 40,847 (21,990) 14,100 108,258 z
City Delivery 44,781 145,561 (100,780) 13,259 3,668,443 z
City Futures 13,169 13,919 (750) 3,108 6,177 z
Total functions and activities 653,912 231,251 422 661 60,186 4,422 527 E
o
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Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services
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3.1 Rates and charges

2023
$'000

Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district. The CIV of

a property is the value of the land and improvements.

The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2023/24 was $56.587 billion (2022/23: $48.087 billion).

General rates

Municipal charge

Supplementary rates and rate adjustments
Interest on rates and charges

Commercial

Industrial

Rural

Garbage charge

Total rates and charges

The date of the general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2023 and the valuation

was first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2023.

Annual rates and charges are recognised as income when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates are
recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.

3.2 Statutory fees and fines

Infringements and costs

Permits

Other

Total statutory fees and fines

100,296
11,955
6,390
1,493
6,686
9,304
4,105
22,472

162,701

2023
$ '000

3,616
6,094
3,043

12,753

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as income when the service has been provided,

the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements z

forthe year ended 30 June 2024 §

Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued) z

>

2024 2023 Z

$°000 $'000 p

~a

3.3 User fees h
Leisure centre, building and other permits 3,805 3,627
Childcare aged care and health services 830 823
Subdivision fees 3,617 4,950
Other fees and charges 2,152 1,896
Total user fees 10,404 11,196

User fees by timing of revenue recognition

User fees recognised over time 3,450 1,580
User fees recognised at a point in time 6,954 9,617
Total user fees 10,404 11,197

User fees are recognised as revenue at a point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied.
Recognition is based on the underlying contractual terms.
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=z Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)
>
- 2024 2023
g $'000 $'000
)
T 34 Funding from other levels of government
Grants were received in respect of the following:
Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants 0,846 36,160
State funded grants 26,563 24,026
Total grants received 36,409 60,186
(a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grant 937 29,222
Family day care 1,322 1,063
Aged care 107 -
Community health 91 -
Other 4,920 3,134
Recurrent - State Government
Aged care 1,004 655
Libraries 1,009 1,009
Children services 8,071 5,321
Community support and development 2,071 1,236
Community health 138 263
Youth services 213 78
Environment 31 -
Family and Children 57 -
Other 698 739
Total recurrent operating grants 20,669 42,720
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Community Support and Development 20 -
Other 334 26
Non-recurrent - State Government
Community health 213 311
Family and children 372 346
z Childrens services 1,432 69
g Community support and development 1,223 389
z Community safety - 20
& Environment 801 321
g Family, youth and housing 60 361
2 Libraries - 27
5 Parks & open space streetscapes 247 237
T Sports and recreation - 10
% Aged care 227 -
< Other . 298 1,484
; Total non-recurrent operating grants 5,227 3,601
§ Total operating grants 25,896 46,321
1
el
(o]
o
¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements z
forthe year ended 30 June 2024 g
z
Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued) %
>
2024 2023 5
§$'000 $'000 §
EJ{
(b) Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to recovery 1,124 994
Roads 6 29
Recurrent - State Government
Roads 311 -
Sports & Recreation 105 -
Other 23 23
Total recurrent capital grants 1,569 1,046
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Parks & Open Space Streetscapes 198 141
Car Parks 370 174
Sports & Recreation 359 66
Roads 36 -
Other 22 1,311
Non-recurrent - State Government
Buildings 5,524 6,237
Sports & Recreation 348 2,026
Parks & Open Space Streetscapes 872 2,712
Footpaths 191 5
Environment 100 6
Bridges 125 -
Traffic Management Devices 20 -
Other 779 141
Total non-recurrent capital grants 8,944 12,819
Total capital grants 10,513 13,865

(c) Recognition of grant income

Before recognising funding from government grants as revenue the Council assesses whether there is a contract that is
enforceable and has sufficiently specific performance obligations in accordance with AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. When both these conditions are satisfied, the Council:

- identifies each performance obligation relating to revenue under the contract/agreement

- determines the transaction price

- recognises a contract liability for its obligations under the agreement

- recognises revenue as it satisfies its performance obligations, at the time or over time when services are rendered.

Where the contract is not enforceable and/or does not have sufficiently specific performance obligations, the Council applies
AASB 1058 Income for Not-for-Profit Entities.

Grant revenue with sufficiently specific performance obligations is recognised over time as the performance obligations
specified in the underlying agreement are met. Where performance obligations are not sufficiently specific, grants are
recognised on the earlier of receipt or when an unconditional right to receipt has been established. Grants relating to capital
projects are generally recognised progressively as the capital project is completed. The following table provides a summary
of the accounting framework under which grants are recognised.
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g for the year ended 30 June 2024

z  Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)

>

- 2024 2023

2 $'000 $'000

A

h Income recognised under AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
General purpose 937 29,222
Other specific purpose grants 3,580 16,160
Specific purpose grants to acquire non-financial assets 29,064 2,676
Revenue recognised under AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Specific purpose grants 2,828 12,126

36,409 60,184

(d) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spentin a
specific manner:
Operating
Balance at start of year 9,113 8,968
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 1,397 3,267
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (8,876) (3,122)
Balance at year end 1,634 9,113
Capital
Balance at start of year 14,971 15,170
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 2,311 5,116
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (5,161) (5,315)
Balance at year end 12,121 14,971

Unspent grants are determined and disclosed on a cash basis.
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Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)

2024 2023

$'000 $'000
3.5 Contributions
Monetary 32,876 79,668
Non-monetary contributions
Non-monetary 246,042 304,619
Total contributions 278,918 384,287
Contributions of non monetary assets were received in relation to the following asset classes.
Land 54,616 56,858
Land under roads 21,202 29,459
Roads 70,620 94,031
Buildings - 26
Footpaths 20,279 19,926
Drainage 49,246 58,859
Recreation 5,290 3,081
Kerb and channel 19,400 20,639
Traffic management 2,391 2,264
Bridges 1,499 16,551
Car parks 1,499 2,945
Total non-monetary contributions 246,042 304,619

Monetary and non monetary contributions are recognised as income at their fair value when Council obtains control over the

contributed asset.

Continued on next page...
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z  Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)
>
- 2024 2023
pd $'000 $'000
g
3.6 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant
and equipment
Land Held for Sale
Proceeds of sale 5,093 12,826
Written down value of assets disposed (1,704) (5,390)
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of land held for sale 3,389 7,436
Plant and equipment
Proceeds of sale 17 39
Written down value of assets disposed (208) (401)
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of plant and equipment (191) (362)
Buildings and Infrastructure Assets
Written down value of assets disposed (5,954) (5,800)
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of Infrastructure Assets (5,954) (5,800)
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment (2,756) 1,274

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.

2024 2023
$'000 $'000
3.7 Interest Income
Interest Income
Interest Income 29,463 17,295
Total Interest Income 29,463 17,295

Interest is recognised as it is earned.
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Note 4. The cost of delivering services

4.1 Employee costs

(a) Employee costs

Wages and salaries
WorkCover

Casual staff
Superannuation

Fringe benefits tax

Other

Total employee costs

(b) Superannuation
Defined benefit fund

Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)

Accumulation funds

Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)

Employer contributions - other funds

Total superannuation costs

2024 2023
$'000 $'000
60,929 56,929
1,466 906
1,484 1,401
7,161 6,447
59 58
950 1,084
72,049 66,825
87 118

87 118
3,509 3,038
3,565 3,291
7,074 6,329
7,161 6,447

Contributions made exclude amounts accrued at balance date. Refer to note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's

superannuation obligations.

4.2 Materials and services

Contract payments
General maintenance
Utilities

Information technology
Insurance

Consultants

Garbage collection and disposal
Contract labour
Administrative support
Program expenses
Professional fees

Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements, performance
statement and grant acquitals

Auditors' remuneration - internal
Contributions and donations
Councillors allowances

Transport and vehicle operations
Other

Total materials and services

51,728 50,174
12,937 13,383
5,258 6,100
5,069 4,181
1,805 1,623
361 529
8,183 7,126
10,501 3,511
9,397 8,597
5,972 5,805
5,240 4,336
71 62
186 76
623 612
461 432
948 610
3,928 4,371
122,668 111,428

Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Continued on next page...
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,g_ forthe year ended 30 June 2024

z Note 4. The cost of delivering services (continued)

5

- 2024 2023

3 $ '000 $ '000

2
4.3 Depreciation
Property 8,543 6,884
Plant and equipment 494 565
Infrastructure 47,166 42,308
Total depreciation 56,203 49,757

Refer to note 6.2 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges and accounting policy.
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Note 5. Investing in and financing our operations z
>
2024 2023 .
. " m
$'000 $'000 3
2
5.1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Current
Cash on hand 4 3
Cash at bank 7,663 6,320
Cash at call 11,104 17,078
Total current cash and cash equivalents 18,771 23,401
Total cash and cash equivalents 18,771 23,401
(b) Other financial assets
Current
Term deposits 236,000 309,000
Total current other financial assets 236,000 309,000
Non-current
Managed funds 74,673 -
Term deposits 250,000 239,000
Total non-current other financial assets 324,673 239,000
Total other financial assets 560,673 548,000
Total current financial assets 254,771 332,401
Total non-current financial assets 324,673 239,000
Total cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets 579,444 571,401

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost. Any unrealised
gains and losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.

Other financial assets include term deposits and those with original maturity dates of three to 12 months are classified as
current, whilst term deposits with maturity dates greater than 12 months are classified as non-current.
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z Note 5. Investing in and financing our operations (continued)
>
- 2024 2023
m
3 $'000 $ '000
g
(c) Trade & Other Receivables
Current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors 27,541 18,585
Infringement debtors 8,622 6,722
Non-statutory receivables
Accrued interest 10,127 8,168
Other debtors 24,432 31,824
Allowance for expected credit loss - infringements (6,208) (5,181)
Allowance for expected credit loss - other debtors (377) (414)
Total current trade and other receivables 64,139 59,704
Total trade and other receivables 64,139 59,704

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. An allowance for expected credit losses is recognised based on past
experience and other objective evidence of expected losses. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

2024 2023

$'000 $ '000
(d) Ageing of receivables
The ageing of the Council's trade & other receivables (excluding statutory receivables)
that are not impaired was:
Current (not yet due) 30,261 37,525
Past due by up to 30 days 1,613 1,354
Past due between 31 and 180 days 1,420 328
Past due between 181 and 365 days 966 785
Total trade and other receivables 34,260 39,992

(e) Ageing of individually impaired receivables

At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $377,000 (2023: $413,000) were impaired.
The amount of the provision raised against these debtors was $377,000 (2023: $413,000). They individually have been
impaired as a result of their doubtful collection.

Many of the long outstanding past due amounts have been lodged with Council's debt collectors or are on payment
arrangements.

The ageing of receivables that have been individually determined as impaired at reporting date was:

Past due between 181 and 365 days 377 414
Total trade and other receivables 377 414
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forthe year ended 30 June 2024 §
Note 5. Investing in and financing our operations (continued) z
b
2024 2023 =
$'000 $ 000 3
o]
a
(f) Contract assets
Current
Contract Assets 15,512 26,388
Total Current 15,512 26,388
Total contract assets 15,512 26,388

Contract assets are recognised when Council has transferred goods or services to the customer but where Council is yet to
establish an unconditional right to consideration.
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g for the year ended 30 June 2024
z  Note 5. Investing in and financing our operations (continued)
>
- 2024 2023
p $'000 $ '000
)
= . . T
5.2 Payables, trust funds and deposits and contract and other liabilities
(a) Trade and other payables
Current
Non-statutory payables
Trade payables 30,944 26,489
Accrued expenses 17,037 23,939
Statutory payables 5,905 759
Total current trade and other payables 53,886 51,187
(b) Trust funds and deposits
Current
Refundable deposits 10,095 14,165
Construction retention monies 277 116
Total current trust funds and deposits 10,372 14,281
Non-current
Refundable deposits 37,100 23,658
Other refundable deposits 130 131
Total non-current trust funds and deposits 37,230 23,789
(c) Contract and other liabilities
Contract liabilities
Current
Grants received in advance - operating 1,634 9,113
Grants received in advance - capital 12,121 14,971
Income received in advance - contracts with customers 3,450 1,580
Total current contract liabilities 17,205 25,664
Total current contract and other liabilities 17,205 25,664

Unearned income/revenue represents contract liabilities and reflect consideration received in advance from customers in
respect of construction of roads and other infrastructure across Council. Unearned income/revenue is derecognised
and recorded as revenue when promised goods and services are transferred to the customer. Refer to Note 3.

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are returned,
transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in council gaining
control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.

Purpose and nature of items

Fire Service Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government. Council remits
amounts received on a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the State Government in line with that
process. Refundable deposits - Deposits are taken by Council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances, including in
relation to building works, tender deposits, contract deposits and the use of civic facilities.

Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain
requirements or a related warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the contractual
obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with Council's contractual
obligations.
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Note 5. Investing in and financing our operations z
>
Employee %
provisions Total 2
$'000 $'000 a
5.3 Provisions
2024
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 15,403 15,403
Additional provisions 2,966 2,966
Amounts used (929) (929)
Balance at the end of the financial year 17,440 17,440
Provisions
Provisions - current 15,324 15,324
Provisions - non-current 2,116 2,116
Total Provisions 17,440 17,440
2023
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 14,235 14,235
Additional provisions 2,033 2,033
Amounts used (865) (865)
Balance at the end of the financial year 15,403 15,403
Provisions
Provisions - current 13,608 13,608
Provisions - non-current 1,795 1,795
Total Provisions 15,403 15,403
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z Note 5. Investing in and financing our operations (continued)
>
- 2024 2023
] $'000 $'000
g
(a) Employee provisions
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave 4,583 3,970
Long service leave 1,072 957
5,655 4,927
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 2,135 1,865
Long service leave 7,534 6,816
9,669 8,681
Total current employee provisions 15,324 13,608
Non-Current
Long service leave 2,116 1,795
Total Non-Current Employee Provisions 2,116 1,795
Aggregate Carrying Amount of Employee Provisions:
Current 15,324 13,608
Non-current 2,116 1,795
Total Aggregate Carrying Amount of Employee Provisions 17,440 15,403

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date.

Annual leave

A liability for annual leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits as a current liability because Council does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability. Liabilities for annual leave are measured at:

- nominal value if Council expects to wholly settle the liability within 12 months

- present value if Council does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for
employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Long service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a
current liability as Council does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement. Unconditional LSL is measured at nominal
value if expected to be settled within 12 months or at present value if not expected to be settled within 12 months. Conditional
LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non-current
liability and measured at present value.

Key assumptions:
- discount rate 4.35% 4.06%
- index rate 4.45% 4.35%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe yearended 30 June 2024

Note 5. Investing in and financing our operations (continued)

5.4 Financing arrangements
The Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June 2024,

Bank overdraft
Credit card facilities
Other facilities
Total Facilities

Used facilities

Unused facilities

Continued on next page...

2024 2023
$'000 $'000
1,800 1,800

200 200

3,162 5,770
5,162 7,770
3,206 5,832
1,956 1,938
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 5. Investing in and financing our operations (continued)

5.5 Commitments

130d3d TVIDONVNIA TVNNNY

Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments
are disclosed at their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

(a) Commitments for expenditure

Later than 1 Later than 2
year and not  years and not
Not later later than 2 later than 5 Later than
than 1 year years years 5 years Total
$'000 $ '000 $ '000 $'000 $ '000

2024
Operating
Recycling facility operations 8,000 9,000 - - 17,000
Garbage and recycling
collection 15,950 16,155 — - 32,105
Health/cleaning services 4,220 4,740 - - 8,960
Parks maintenance services 12,421 13,313 27,813 - 53,547
Road maintenance 8,764 9,453 19,900 - 38,117
IT services 8,052 5,616 4,412 1,395 19,475
Recreation/Leisure services 3,072 2,927 6,021 - 12,020
Total 60,479 61,204 58,146 1,395 181,224
Capital
Buildings 25,020 259 50 - 25,329
Roads 20,373 253 50 - 20,676
Recreational 181 40 - - 221
Total 45,574 552 100 - 46,226
2023
Operating
Recycling facility operations 4,800 4,800 - - 9,600
Garbage and recycling
collection 10,300 5,000 8,500 - 23,800
Health/cleaning services 3,600 4,100 - - 7,700
Parks maintenance services 12,685 12,993 49,190 19,601 94,469
Road maintenance 6,585 6,642 20,417 - 33,644
IT services 4,368 1,555 1,128 595 7,646
Recreation/Leisure services 2,670 2,930 9,300 3,400 18,300
Total 45,008 38,020 88,535 23,596 195,159
Capital
Buildings 10,441 800 209 - 11,450
Roads 23,035 11,098 153 - 34,286
Recreational 6,068 241 - - 6,309
Total 39,544 12,139 362 - 52,045
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- . »
Notes to the Financial Statements z
forthe year ended 30 June 2024 g
Note 5. Investing in and financing our operations (continued) z
>
2024 2023 Z
$'000 $'000 3
2
(b) Operating lease receivables
Operating lease receivables
The Council has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property,
consisting of surplus freehold buildings.
These properties held under operating leases have remaining non-cancellable lease
terms of between 1 and 5 years.
All leases include a CPI based revision of the rental charge annually.
Future undiscounted minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:
Mot later than one year 730 808
Later than one year and not later than five years 3,124 3,570
3,854 4,378
Note 6. Assets we manage
2024 2023
$'000 $'000
6.1 Non-current assets classified as "held for sale"
Current
Fair value of land 230 78
Total non current assets classified as held for sale 230 78

Non-current assets classified as held for sale (including disposal groups) are measured at the lower of its carrying amount
and fair value less costs of disposal, and are not subject to depreciation. Non-current assets, disposal groups and related
liabilities and assets are treated as current and classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset's sale (or disposal group sale) is expected to be completed within 12 months from the date of classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

Acquisition

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as
consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Refer also to Note 8.4 for further disclosure regarding fair value measurement.

130d3d TVIDONVNIA TVNNNY

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs
incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads.

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset class
and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods

Depreciation Threshold
Period Limit
years $ 000
Land and land improvements
Land N/A -
Land under roads N/A -
Buildings
buildings 50 -
Plant and Equipment
Plant and machinery 5 5
Furniture and equipment 3-5 5
Library assets 10 -
Infrastructure
Roads 10-100 10
Bridges 25-100 25
Other 20-100 -
Footpaths 10-61 10
Car parks 10-70 10
Drainage works 80-100 25
Recreation facilities 3-30 -
Kerb and channel 10-70 10
Traffic management 10-70 10

Land under roads
Council recognises land under roads it controls at fair value.

Depreciation and amortisation

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited useful lives are
systematically depreciated over their useful lives to Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service potential
embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major
asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are
assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.

Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.
Depreciation periods used are listed above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

Repairs and maintenance
Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the
cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset component is expensed.

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

Valuation of land and buildings

Valuation of land and land under roads was undertaken by qualified independent valuers Opteon Pty Ltd (APl No. 102351).
The valuation of land is at fair value, being market value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning
provisions. Where land use is restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation.
This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income
statement.

Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or unserviced) characteristics,
access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assets and services. This adjustment is
an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.

Valuation of buildings was undertaken by qualified independent valuers Odysseus-imc Pty Ltd/Asset Management Consultants.
The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation.

Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the fair
value of these assets.

The date and type of the current valuation is detailed in the following table. An indexed based revaluation was conducted in
the current year for land and buildings and this valuation was based on the Rawlinson's Australian Construction Handbook.
A full revaluation of these assets will be conducted in 2026/2027. A full revaluation of land under roads was conducted in
the current year.

Details of Council's land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy (refer to Note 8.4 for hierarchy definition)
as at 30 June 2024 are as follows:

Date of Type of
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  valuation Valuation
Non-specialised Land - 90,546 — Jun/24 index
Specialised land - - 670,353 Jun/24 index
Land Under Roads - - 168,745 Jun/24 full
Buildings - - 300,876 Jun/24 index

Total - 90,546 1,139,974

Valuation of Infrastructure
Valuation of infrastructure assets has been determined in accordance with an independent valuation undertaken by
Infrastructure Management Group and Ray Hutchinson & Associates.

The date and type of the current valuation is detailed in the following table. An indexed based revaluation was conducted in
the current year for traffic management, drainage land and recreational, leisure and community facilities in the current year
and this valuation was based on the Rawlinson 's Australian Construction Handbook. A full revaluation of these assets will be
conducted in 2026/2027. A full revaluation conducted in the current year for roads, bridges, footpaths kerbs and car parks.

The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation.

Details of Council's infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy (refer to Note 8.4 for hierarchy definition) as
at 30 June 2024 are as follows:

LHOdIY TYANNY | TIONNOD ALID NOLTIW

Date of Type of
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  valuation Valuation
Roads - - 912,078 Jun/24 full 8
Bridges - - 131,547 Jun/24 full &
Footpaths and cycleways - - 388,156 Jun/24 full ¥
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> - -

z Notes to the Financial Statements

?c_' forthe year ended 30 June 2024

z  Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

>

% Date of Type of

b1 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  valuation Valuation

)

" Drainage - - 827,434 Juniz4 index
Recreational, leisure & community
facilities - - 95,071 Jun/24 index
Off street car parks - - 47,700 Jun/24 full
Traffic management - - 87,726 Jun/24 index
Kerb and channel - - 348,047 Jun/24 full
Total * - - 2,837,759

) An assessment was undertaken based on applicable indices to ensure that the carrying amount approximated fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

Specialised land and land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison technique.

Significant unobservable inputs include the extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square
metre. The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results in a reduction to surrounding land values between 5%
and 95%. The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the land and the current market conditions.
Currently land values range between $1 and $815 per square metre.

Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the
current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Current replacement costs is calculated on a square metre
basis and ranges from $240 to $6,700 per square metre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are determined on the basis
of the current condition of buildings and vary from 2 years to 50 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market
conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of buildings are sensitive to
changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of buildings.

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the current
replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets are determined
on the basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from 2 years to 50 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes
in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are
sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of infrastructure
assets.

Reconciliation of specialised land

2024 2023

$'000 $'000

Specialised Land 670,353 612,777
Land Under Roads 168,745 159,710
Total specialised land 839,098 772,487

6.3 Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidiaries
Community Asset Committee
All entities controlled by Council that have material income, expenses, assets or liabilities, such as community asset

committees, have been included in this financial report. Any transactions between these entities and Council have been
eliminated in full.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 7. People and relationships

7.1 Council and key management remuneration
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(a) Related Parties

Parent entity
Melton City Council is the parent entity.

Subsidiaries and Associates
Council has no interests in subsidiaries or associates.

(b) Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel (KMP) are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of Melton City Council. The Councillors, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors are deemed KMP.

Details of KMP at any time during the year are:

Councillor Kathy Madjlik (Mayor from 3 November 2023)
Councillor Lara Carli (Mayor to 2 November 2023)
Councillor Steve Abboushi

Councillor Goran Kesic

Councillor Bob Turner

Councillor Sophie Ramsey

Councillor Ashleigh Vandenberg

Councillor Julie Shannon

Councillor Justine Farrugia

Councillors

2024 2023
No. No.

Total Number of Councillors 9 10

Chief Executive Officer
Director Organisational Performance
Executive Lead Strategic Initiatives

Acting General Manager Corporate
Services

Director City Delivery

Acting General Manager - Community
Services

Director City Life

Acting General Manager - Planning &
Development

Director City Futures

Executive Manager Corporate
Strategy & Investments

Head of Governance

Head of Governance
Head of People & Customer

Total Number of Key Management

Roslyn Wai
Peter Leersen

Luke Shannon (from 1 July 2023 to 29
October 2023)

Luke Shannon

Neil Whiteside
Troy Scoble

Troy Scoble
Sam Romazsko

Sam Romazsko
Sean McManus

Megan Kruger (from 1 July 2023 to 2 April
2024)

Emily Keogh (from 4 March 2024)
Sarah Noel (from 28 November 2023)

Personnel 18 20
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Note 7. People and relationships (continued)

(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

Remuneration comprises employee benefits including all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by Council, or on
behalf of the Council, in exchange for services rendered. Remuneration of Key Management Personnel and Other senior staff
is disclosed in the following categories.

Short-term employee benefits include amounts such as wages, salaries, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or
payable on a regular basis, as well as non-monetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services.

Other long-term employee benefits include long service leave, other long service benefits or deferred compensation.

Post-employment benefits include pensions, and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when
employment has ceased.

Termination benefits include termination of employment payments, such as severance packages.

2024 2023
$'000 $'000

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-term employee benefits 2,711 2,280
Other long-term employee benefits 35 129
Post-employment benefits 206 175
Total 2,952 2,584
2024 2023
No. No.

The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any related entities, fall within the
following bands:

$10,000 - $19,999
$30,000 - $39,999
$40,000 - $49,999
$50,000 - $59,999
$60,000 - $69,999
$80,000 - $89,999
$90,000 - $99,999
$190,000 - $199,999
$100,000 - $109,999
$220,000 - $229,999
$210,000 - $219,999
$290,000 - $299,999
$330,000 - $339,999
$300,000 - $309,999
$310,000 - $319,999
$390,000 - $399,999 _
$400,000 - $409,999 1 _

[S20 N
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Note 7. People and relationships (continued)

(d) Remuneration of other senior staff

130d3d TVIDONVNIA TVNNNY

Other senior staff are officers of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, whose total remuneration exceeds $170,000
and who report directly to a member of the KMP.

Total remuneration of other senior staff was as follows:

2024 2023
$'000 $'000
Short-term employee benefits 3,499 5,275
Other long-term employee benefits 155 82
Post-employment benefits 373 538
Total 4,027 5,895
The number of other senior staff are shown below in their relevant income bands:
2024 2023
No. No.
Income Range:
$160,000 - $169,999 - 1
$170,000 - $179,999 2 1
$180,000 - $189,999 2 6
$190,000 - $199,999 6 3
$200,000 - $209,999 1 8
$210,000 - $219,999 3 2
$220,000 - $229,999 4 4
$230,000 - $239,999 - 1
$240,000 - $249,999 -
$250,000 - $259,999 - 2
$260,000 - $269,999 - 1
19 29
2024 2023
$'000 $'000
Total remuneration for the reporting year for other senior staff included above,
amounted to: 4,027 5,895
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Note 7. People and relationships (continued)

7.2 Related party disclosure

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

(a) Transactions with related parties

No transactions other than remuneration payments or the reimbursement of approved expenses were entered into by Council
with Key Management Personnel, or Related Parties of such Key Management Personnel during the reporting year. If any
such transactions are entered into by Council, they are at arms-length.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

There are no outstanding balances with related parties as at 30 June 2024 (2023: Nil).

(c) Loans to/from related parties

No loans have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to Key Management Personnel of the Council during the
reporting period (2023: Nil).

(d) Commitments to/from related parties

There are no commitments to or from related parties as at 30 June 2024 (2023: Nil).
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties

8.1 Contingent assets and liabilities

130d3d TVIDONVNIA TVNNNY

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed and if quantifiable, are
measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

(a) Contingent assets
Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

At balance date Council was aware of Developer contributions to be received in respect of estates currently under development
expected to be in the range of $310 million to $340 million (2023: $310 million to $320 million).

(b) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are:
- possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council; or
- present obligations that arise from past events but are not recognised because:
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Superannuation

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make additional
contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below. As a result of the volatility in
financial markets the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists.

Liability Mutual Insurance

Council is a participant of the MAV Liability Mutual Insurance (LMI) Scheme. The LMI scheme provides public liability and
professional indemnity insurance cover. The LMI scheme states that each participant will remain liable to make further
contributions to the scheme in respect of any insurance year in which it was a participant to the extent of its participant’s
share of any shortfall in the provision set aside in respect of that insurance year, and such liability will continue whether or
not the participant remains a participant in future insurance years.

MAV Workcare

Council was a participant of the MAV WorkCare Scheme., The MAV WorkCare Scheme provided workers compensation
insurance. MAV WorkCare commenced business on 1 November 2017 and the |ast day the Scheme operated as a self-insurer
was 30 June 2021. In accordance with the Workplace Injury Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2013, there is a six year
liability period following the cessation of the Scheme (to 30 June 2027). During the liability period, adjustment payments may
be required (or received). The determination of any adjustment payments is dependent upon revised actuarial assessments
of the Scheme's tail claims liabilities as undertaken by Work Safe Victoria. If required, adjustments will occur at the 3-year and
G-year points during the liability period, and will affect participating members.
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties (continued)

8.2 Change in accounting standards

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

Certain new Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June
2024 reporting period. Council assesses the impact of these new standards.

In December 2022 the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) issued AASB 2022-10 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities to modify
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. AASB 2022-10 amends AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement for fair value measurements
of non-financial assets of not-for-profit public sector entities not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash inflows.
The AASB 13 modifications:

- are applicable only to not-for-profit public sector entities;

- are limited to fair value measurements of non-financial assets not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash inflows;
- are to be applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024;

- would not necessarily change practice for some not-for-profit public sector entities; and

- do not indicate that entities changing practice in how they measure relevant assets made an error in applying the existing
requirements of AASB 13. Council will assess any impact of the modifications to AASB 13 ahead of the 2024-25 reporting
period.

In December 2022 the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) issued AASB 2022-6 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants. AASB 2022-6 amends AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements to improve the information an entity provides in its financial statements about long-term liabilities with covenants
where the entity's right to defer settlement of those liabilities for at least twelve months after the reporting period is subject
to the entity complying with conditions specified in the loan arrangement. The amendments in AASB 2022-6 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Council will assess any impact of the modifications to AASB 107 ahead
of the 2024-25 reporting period.

8.3 Financial instruments
(a) Objectives and policies

The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, managed funds, receivables (excluding
statutory receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the material accounting policies
and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in
the notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior management under policies approved by the
Council. These poalicies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to Council and appropriate procedures, controls
and risk minimisation.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of Gouncil financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with some price risks
exposure in managed funds and no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Council's interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long term loans and
borrowings at fixed rates which exposes Council to fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that are at floating rates.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 2020.
Council manages interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:

« diversification of investment product;
* monitoring of return on investment; and
+ benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties (continued)

There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing interest
rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

130d3d TVIDONVNIA TVNNNY

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on Council's year end
result.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council to
make a financial loss. Council has exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the balance sheet. Particularly
significant areas of credit risk exist in relation to outstanding fees and fines as well as loans and receivables from sporting
clubs and associations. To help manage this risk:

= Council has a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities Council deals with;

« Council may require collateral where appropriate; and

» Council only invests surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in Council's
investment policy.

Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government sectors. Credit
risk associated with Council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a charge over the rateable
property.

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.

Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when Council
provides a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1(b).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any
allowance for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. Council
does not hold any collateral.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of Council's operational liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient funds
to settle a transaction when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to settle or
recover a financial asset.

To help reduce these risks Council:

« have a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;

+ have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;

+ have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;

« monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and

« set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal repayments
to rate revenue.

Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the face of the
Balance Sheet and the amounts related to financial guarantees, and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data and
current assessment of risk.

Other than adding VFMC managed, there has been no change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes
for managing liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade.

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties (continued)

+ A parallel shift of + 0.47% and -0.54% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 5.24% for all term deposits
and 6.8% for VFMC managed funds.

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will they
have a material impact on the results of Council's operations.

8.4 Fair value measurement

Fair Value Hierarchy

With the exception of VFMC managed funds, Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. VFMC managed funds are fair valued at market prices while all other Council financial assets and liabilities
are measured at amortised cost.

Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting Standards.
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within a fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable; and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revaluation

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured at
their fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. (For plant and equipment carrying amount is considered to approximate
fair value given short useful lives). At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets
measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially
differed from the fair value at balance date, the class of asset was revalued.

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only
occur if an external change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset result in changes to the permissible or practical

highest and best use of the asset. In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure 2
assets on a regular basis ranging from 1 to 4 years. The valuation is performed either by experienced council officers or fr
independent experts. The following table sets out the frequency of revaluations by asset class. =

(2]
Asset Class Revaluation frequency 2
Land 1to 4 years §
Buildings 1to 4 years z
Roads 1to 4 years r
Bridges 1to 4 years z
Footpaths and cycleways 1to 4 years é
Drainage 1to 4 years -
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 1to 4 years g
Waste management 1to 4 years 2
Parks, open space and streetscapes 1to 4 years Y
Other infrastructure 110 4 years g

I
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties (continued)
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Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the
extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in
which case the increment is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised
as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case
the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation
increments and decrements within the year are offset.

An assessment of land, buildings, traffic management devices and recreational, leisure and community facilities was
undertaken based on applicable indices to ensure that the carrying amounts approximated fair value. A full valuation of these
assets is due for 2025-26.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets
carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the comprehensive income statement, unless the asset is carried
at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect
of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for
that same class of asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements z
forthe year ended 30 June 2024 §
Note 8. Managing uncertainties (continued) z
>
8.5 Events occurring after balance date i
Q
No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report. -
:
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z Notes to the Financial Statements
g for the year ended 30 June 2024
z  Note 9. Other matters
>
] Balance at Balance at
2 beginning of end of
o reporting Increase reporting
- period (decrease) period
$'000 $'000 $'000
9.1 Reserves
(a) Asset revaluation reserves
2024
Property
Land - specialised 123,218 - 123,218
Land - non specialised 234,893 - 234,893
Buildings 70,990 - 70,990
Buildings - non specialised 11,442 - 11,442
440,543 - 440,543
Infrastructure
Roads 518,407 (120,490) 397,917
Bridges 51,858 40,425 92,283
Footpaths and cycleways 21,584 140,990 162,574
Drainage 387,236 - 387,236
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 34,761 11,915 46,676
Offstreet car parks - 6,611 6,611
Kerb and channel - 93,602 93,602
Traffic management 7,690 - 7,690
Other infrastructure 679 - 679
1,022,215 173,053 1,195,268
Total asset revaluation reserves 1,462,758 173,053 1,635,811
2023
Property
Land - specialised 123,218 - 123,218
Land - non specialised 234,893 - 234,893
g Buildings 7,789 63,201 70,990
3 Buildings - non specialised - 11,442 11,442
=z
o 365,900 74,643 440,543
ot
; Infrastructure
o Roads 518,407 - 518,407
5 Bridges 51,858 - 51,858
r Footpaths and cycleways - 21,584 21,584
£  Drainage 123,430 263,806 387,236
z Recreational, leisure and community facilities 26,596 8,165 34,761
i Traffic management - 7,690 7,690
m Other infrastructure 679 - 679
91 720,970 301,245 1,022,215
§ Total asset revaluation reserves 1,086,870 375,888 1,462,758
¥
iy

-
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Note 9. Other matters (continued)

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time.

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY
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z Notes to the Financial Statements
g for the year ended 30 June 2024
z  Note 9. Other matters (continued)
>
% Balance at Balance at
b1 beginning of  Transfer from Transfer to end of
o reporting Accumulated Accumulated reporting
- period Surplus Surplus period
$ '000 $ '000 $'000 $'000
(b) Other reserves
2024
Restricted reserves
Street trees/drainage 999 65 - 1,064
Community infrastructure 314,054 139,930 (94,905) 359,079
Total restricted reserves 315,053 139,995 (94,905) 360,143
Discretionary reserves
Perpetual maintenance 139 9 - 148
Defined benefit call 395 26 - 421
Infrastructure and strategic investment 122,873 13,997 - 136,870
Capital reserve 41,033 = (26,965) 14,068
Total discretionary reserves 164,440 14,032 (26,965) 151,507
Total Other reserves 479,493 154,027 (121,870) 511,650
2023
Restricted reserves
Street trees/drainage 956 43 - 999
Community infrastructure 237,993 130,479 (54,418) 314,054
Total restricted reserves 238,949 130,522 (54,418) 315,053
Discretionary reserves
Perpetual maintenance 133 6 - 139
Defined benefit call 378 17 - 395
Infrastructure and strategic investment 103,592 19,405 (124) 122,873
Capital reserve 67,617 - (26,584) 41,033
Total discretionary reserves 171,720 19,428 (26,708) 164,440
Total Other reserves 410,669 149,950 (81,126) 479,493

Street trees/drainage
Developer contributions for provision of drainage assets and street beautification.

Community infrastructure
Developer contributions collected to deliver community infrastructure within PSP and non-PSP areas in accordance with the
Planning and Environment Act 1987 and section 173 agreements.

Perpetual maintenance
Provision for perpetual maintenance of Melton Cemetery.

Public art
Provision for installation and maintenance of public art throughout the municipality.

Defined benefit call
Provision for potential future funding call under the Defined Benefits Superannuation scheme.

Infrastructure and strategic investment
Income generated from Atherstone estate set aside for strategic investment and major capital works.
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Note 9. Other matters (continued)

Capital reserve
Provision for capital works carried forward from previous years.

140d3d TVIONYNIL TYNNNY

2024 2023

$'000 $'000

9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to
surplus/(deficit)

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 293,515 422 661
Non-cash adjustments:
Depreciation/amortisation 56,884 50,605
Profit/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2,756 (1,274)
Fair value adjustments for investment property (975) (100)
Contributions - Non-monetary assets (246,042) (304,619)
Amounts disclosed in financing activities 217 303
Revaluation decrements of IPP&E direct to P&L 4,418 -
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (4,435) (38,572)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 13 31
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments 159 1
Increase/(decrease) in contract assets 10,876 1,793
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 2,699 2,580
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 2,037 1,168
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities 9,532 (1,544)
(Decrease)/increase in contract and other liabilities (8,459) (311)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 123,195 132,722

9.3 Superannuation

Council makes all of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authorities
Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of
which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive
Income Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation category, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee
contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee
earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2024, this was 11.0% as required under Superannuation Guarantee (SG) legislation
(2023: 10.5%)).

Defined Benefit
Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit
category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

The Fund Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers for the purposes of AASB 119
due to lack of proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets and cost between participating employers.

Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on the
advice of the Fund Actuary using triennial actuarial investigations with the last investigation as at 30 June 2023 conducted
and completed by 31 December 2023. The vested benefit index (VBI) is used as an indicator. The VBI as at 30 June 2023
was 104.1%. A VBI above 100% is considered satisfactory.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2024

Note 9. Other matters (continued)

The VBl is used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2023 actuarial
investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was
necessary to the Defined Benefit category's funding arrangements from prior years.

130d3d TVIDONVNIA TVNNNY

The 2023 triennial actuarial investigation surplus amounts

An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer.
Generally, a full actuarial investigation is conducted every three years and interim actuarial investigations are conducted for
each intervening year. A full investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2023, further details of which are disclosed in the
financial report for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Employer contributions
Defined benefit employer contributions can either be regular contributions or funding calls.

Regular contributions are based on 2023 triennial actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council makes
employer contributions to the Fund's Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee. The rate is expected
to increase in line with any increases in the SG contribution rate and was reviewed as part of the 30 June 2023 triennial
valuation and Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment above
the funded resignation or retirement benefit.

The Funding Calls are made if Defined Benefit category is in unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation. The
Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%.

The 2024 interim actuarial investigation
An interim actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2024 as the Fund provides lifetime
pensions in the Defined Benefit category. It is anticipated that this actuarial investigation will be completed by October 2024.

The VBI of the Defined Benefit category was 105.4% as at 30 June 2024. The financial assumptions used to calculate the
30 June 2024 VBI were:

Net investment returns 5.6% pa

Salary information 3.5% pa

Price inflation (CPI) 2.7% pa

Council was notified of the 30 June 2024 VBI during August 2024.

Because the VBI was above 100%, the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial positicn at 30 June 2024 and it

is expected that the actuarial investigation will recommend that no change will be necessary to the Defined Benefit category’s
funding arrangements from prior years.

Note 10. Changes in accounting policies

There have been no changes to accounting policies in the 2023-24 year.
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A designation given to an accountant who has passed a
standardized CPA exam and met government-mandated
work experience and educational requirements to
become a CPA.

w - -
= Glossary of Financial Terms
]
3
=z
E 1. Accounts receivable (AR) 10. Costof goods sold (COGS)
g Accounts receivable (AR) definition: The amount of Cost of goods sold (COGS) definition: The direct
o} money owed by customers or clients to a business after expenses related to producing the goods sold by a
goods or services have been delivered and/or used. business. The formula for calculating this will depend
on what is being produced, but as an example this may
2. Accounting (ACCG) include the cost of the raw materials (parts) and the
Accounting (ACCG) definition: A systematic way of amount of employee labour used in production.
recording and reporting financial transactions fora .
business or organization. 11. Credit (CR)
Credit (CR) definition: An accounting entry that may
3. Accounts payable (AP) either decrease assets or increase liabilities and equity
Accounts payable (AP) definition: The amount of on the company's balance sheet, depending on the
money a company owes creditors (suppliers, etc.) in transaction. When using the double-entry accaunting
return for goods and/or services they have delivered. method there will be two recorded entries for every
transaction: A credit and a debit.
4.  Assets (fixed and current) (FA, CA)
Assets (fixed and current) definition: Current assets 12. Debit (DR)
(CA) are those that will be converted to cash within one Debit (DR) definition: An accounting entry where there
year. Typically, this could be cash, inventory or accounts is either anincrease in assets or a decrease in liabilities
receivable. Fixed assets (FA) are long-term and will on a company's balance sheet.
likely provide benefits to a company for more than one
year, such as a real estate, land or major machinery. 13. Diversification
Diversification definition: The process of allocating
5. Assetclasses or spreading capital investments into varied assets to
Asset class definition: An asset class is a group of avoid over-exposure to risk.
securities that behaves similarly in the marketplace.
The three main asset classes are equities or stocks, 14. Enrolled agent (EA)
fixed lnc.ome orbonds, and cash equivalents or money Enrolled agent (EA) definition: A tax professional who
market instruments. represents taxpayers in matters where they are dealing
6. Balance sheet (BS) with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).
Balance sheet (BS) definition: A financial report 15. Expenses (fixed, variable, accrued, operation)
that summarizes a company's assets (what it awns), (FE, VE, AE, OE)
liabilities (what it d harehold e ,
' !”ES(W. et .OWES) andownerorsnarenoider Expenses (FE, VE, AE, OE) definition: The fixed,
equity at a given time. } ;
variable, accrued or day-to-day costs that a business
7. Capital (CAP) may incur through its operations.
Capital (CAP) definition: A financial asset or the value * Fixed expenses (FE): payments like rent that will
of afinancial asset, such as cash or goods. Working happen in a regularly scheduled cadence.
capitalis calculated by taking your current assets * Variable expenses (VE): expenses, like labour costs,
subtracted from current liabilities—basically the money that may change in a given time periad.
orassets an organization can put to work. )
* Accrued expense (AE): anincurred expense that
8. Cash flow (CF) hasn't been paid yet.
Cash flaw (CF) definition: The revenue or expense ° Operglion S {OE).i business exp.enditures
expected to be generated through business activities not directly associated with the production of goods
(sales, manufacturing, etc.) over a period of time. or services—for example, advertising costs, property
taxes orinsurance expenditures.
9. Certified public accountant (CPA)
Certified public accountant (CPA) definition: 16. Equity and owner's equity (OE)

Equity and owner's equity (OE) definition: In the maost
general sense, equity is assets minus liabilities. An
owner's equity is typically explained in terms of the
percentage of stock a person has ownership interest
in the company. The owners of the stock are known as
shareholders.
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17. Insolvency 25. Profit and loss statement (P&L) E
Insolvency definition: A state where an individual or Profit and loss statement (P&L) definition: A financial g
organization can no longer meet financial obligations statement that is used to summarize a company's 0]
with lender(s) when their debts come due. performance and financial position by reviewing
revenues, costs and expenses during a specific period
18. Generally accepted accounting principles of time, such as quarterly or annually.
(GAAP)
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 26. Returnoninvestment (ROI)
definition: A set of rules and guidelines developed Return on investment (ROI) definition: A measure
by the accounting industry for companies to fallow used to evaluate the financial performance relative
when reporting financial data. Following these rules is to the amount of money that was invested. The ROI
especially critical for all publicly traded companies. is calculated by dividing the net profit by the cost of
the investment. The result is often expressed as a
19. General ledger (GL) percemtage_
General ledger (GL) definition: A complete record of
the financial transactions over the life of a company. 27. Individualretirement account
(IRA, Roth IRA Individual retirement account (IRA))
20. Trial balance definition: IRAs are savings vehicles for retirement.
Trial balance definition: A business document in which Atraditional IRA allows individuals to direct pre-tax
all ledgers are compiled into debit and credit columns dollars toward investments that can grow tax-deferred,
in order to ensure a company's bookkeeping system is meaning nao capital gains or dividend income is taxed
mathematically correct. until it is withdrawn, and, in most cases, it's tax
deductible. Roth IRAs are not tax-deductible; however,
21. Liabilities (current and long-term) (CL, LTL) eligible distributions are tax-free, so as the money
Liabilities (current and long-term) definition: grows, it is not subject to taxes upon with-drawls.
Acompany's debts or financial obligations incurred
during business operations. Current liabilities (CL) 28. 401K & Roth 401K
are those debts that are payable within a year, such 401k & Roth 401k definition: A 401K is a savings
as a debt to suppliers. Long-term liabilities (LTL) are vehicle that allows an employee to defer some of their
typically payable over a period of time greater than one compensation into an investment-based retirement
year. An example of a long-term liability would be a account. The deferred money is usually not subject
multi-year mortgage for office space. to tax untilit is withdrawn; however, an employee
with a Roth 401K can make contributions after taxes.
22. Limited Liability Company (LLC) Additionally, some employers chose to match the
Limited Liability Company (LLC) definition: An LLC is contributions made by their employees up to a certain
a corparate structure where members cannot be held percentage.
accountable for the company's debts or liabilities. This .
can shield business owners from losing their entire 29. Subchapter S Corporation (S-CORP)
life savings if, for example, someone were to sue the Subchapter S Corporation (S-CORP) definition: A form
company. of corporation (that meets specific IRS requirements)
and has the benefit of being taxed as a partnership
23. Netincome (NI) versus being subject to the “double taxation” of
Net income (NI) definition: A company's total earnings, dividends with public companies.
also called net profit. Net income is calculated by
subtracting total expenses from total revenues. 30. Bondsand coupons (B&C)
Bonds and coupons (B&C) definition: Abond is a form
24, Present value (PV) of debt investment and is considered a fixed income

Present value (PV) definition: The current value of a
future sum of money based on a specific rate of return.
Present value helps us understand how receiving $100
now is worth more than receiving $100 a year from now,
as maney in hand now has the ability to be invested ata
higher rate of return.

security. An investor, whether an individual, company,
municipality or government, loans maney to an entity
with the promise of receiving their money back plus
interest. The “coupon”is the annual interest rate paid on
abond.
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12.2 2024 ANNUAL COMMUNITY SATISFACTION SURVEY

Author: Elizabeth Johnston - Social Planning Lead
Presenter: Troy Scoble - Director City Life

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present the Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Results 2024.

RECOMMENDATION:
That Council:

1.

Notes the Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Findings
Report at Appendix 1.

2.  Approves key findings of the report be communicated to the community and other
stakeholders through appropriate communication channels.
Motion

Crs Turner/Carli.
That Council:

1.

Notes the Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Findings
Report at Appendix 1.

Approves key findings of the report be communicated to the community and other
stakeholders through appropriate communication channels.

For: Crs Abboushi, Carli, Majdlik, Ramsey, Shannon, Turner and Vandenberg

Against: Nil
Abstained: Nil

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

REPORT

Executive Summary

Melton City Council has managed the Annual Community Satisfaction Survey delivery
through an independent research organisation and the 2024 survey is the tenth Annual
Community Satisfaction Survey conducted by Metropolis Research.

The survey meets the requirements of Local Government Victoria (LGV) by providing
importance and satisfaction ratings for the core measures and satisfaction with Council’s
overall performance. The survey is used by Council in meeting its legislative requirements,
including reporting against the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework and
associated requirements under the Local Government Act 2020 and Public Health and
Wellbeing Act 2008

This year's Community Satisfaction Survey was conducted in May-June 2024 as a face-to-
face interview survey. Independent research company Metropolis Research Pty Ltd
conducted Council’s tenth annual survey with 801 randomly selected residents, consistent
with the timing of previous years.
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The aim of the research was to measure community satisfaction with the broad range of
Council services and facilities, aspects of governance and leadership, planning and
development, customer service, and the overall performance of Council across all areas of
responsibility.

The survey also measured the importance to the community of 31 individual services and
facilities, explored the top issues the community feel need to be addressed in the
municipality and measured the perception of safety in the City’s public areas, local sense of
community, and volunteering.

The survey sample reflects the cultural and linguistic diversity of the City of Melton
community with over 50% of respondents reporting that members of their household spoke a
language other than English at home, up from 40% last year.

The survey results are useful to Council as they highlight areas where Council is performing
well, identify areas for improvement, and help Council track its performance over time.

2. Background/Ilssues

The Annual Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Findings
Report is provided at Appendix 1.

Key findings

Satisfaction with the overall performance of Melton City Council increased one percent this
year, to 7 out of 10, up from 6.9 in 2023. Overall satisfaction with the City of Melton remains
in the “good” range. This result is in line with the metropolitan Melbourne (7.0) and western
region councils’ (7.0) averages.

Key satisfaction results, including the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework
reporting requirement scores for the City of Melton are listed in the below Table.

Satisfaction with City of Melton  City of Melton
2024 2023

Customer service (average score across six 7.7 7.2

indicators)

Council’s Overall performance 7.0 6.9

Making decisions in the interests of community 7.0 7.0

Community consultation and engagement 6.9 7.0

Representation, lobbying and advocacy 7.0 7.0

Maintaining trust and confidence of the 7.1 7.0

community

Responsiveness of Council to local community 6.9 6.9

needs

Maintenance and repair of sealed local roads 6.8 6.8

The services with the highest levels of satisfaction this year include Green waste collection
(8.8), Regular garbage collection (8.7), Regular recycling (8.6), Library services (8.5), and
Hard rubbish collection (8.2)

The average satisfaction with five of the nine broad service areas increased this year, with a
notable increase for community services (up 6%).

This increase in satisfaction with the community services was a standout positive result, with
increases in satisfaction for services for people with disability (up 11%), services for young
people (up 8%), health services for babies, infants, and toddlers (up 3%), the four largest
increases in satisfaction with any of the 31 included services and facilities this year.

Satisfaction with customer service is also a standout highlight up 5% to very good 7.6 out of
10 equal with the metropolitan average.
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Areas for Council’s attention or improvement

The main issues identified in this year’s survey were traffic management (18%, down from
25%); street trees (9%, up from 5%); roads including roadworks (8%, down from 13 per
cent); parks, gardens and open spaces (7%, down from 12%); and safety, policing and crime
(6%, down from 8%).

The perception of safety in the public areas of the City of Melton during the day (7.7 down
from 8.0) and at night (6.0 down from 6.6) both declined this year, with the decline in the
perception of safety at night statistically significant. Both results remain measurably lower
than the metropolitan Melbourne, western region, and growth area councils’ averages.

The continued nomination of traffic management by respondents as an issue for City of
Melton to address, reinforces the importance of traffic and road related issues in the
municipality.

Council thanks those community members who gave their time and shared insights to
participate in the 2024 Community Satisfaction Survey. The feedback provided gives Council
direction on what matters to residents and supports Council in organizational improvement
for more effective service and infrastructure delivery that is responsive to community needs.

The Findings Report of this survey has been made public (in this meeting’s agenda) and will
be communicated to residents via appropriate communication channels and timing.

3. Council and Wellbeing Plan Reference and Policy Reference
The Melton City Council 2021-2025 Council and Wellbeing Plan references:

6. A high performing organisation that demonstrates civic leadership and organisational
excellence

6.1 An organisation that demonstrates excellence in customer and community service.

4. Financial Considerations

The cost of the survey is budgeted for within Council’s annual recurrent budget.

5. Consultation/Public Submissions

The survey is an important aspect of Council’'s community consultation program and
represents Council’'s ongoing commitment to engaging with the community to improve
performance, advocacy, and service delivery.

Metropolis Research conducted Council’s tenth Annual Community Satisfaction Survey as a
face to face interview survey with 801 randomly selected residents.

6. Risk Analysis

There are no risks identified in receiving the results of the Survey.

7. Options

That Council notes the Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
Findings Report in Appendix 1 and that specific areas have been identified for further
attention or improvement.

LIST OF APPENDICES

1. Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Findings Report
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Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

© Melton City Council, 2024

This work is copyright. Apart from any use permitted under the Copyright Act 1968, no part may be reproduced by any
process without written permission from the Council.

© Metropolis Research Pty Ltd, 2024

The survey form utilised in the commission of this project is copyright.  Apart from any use permitted under the Copyright
Act 1968, no part may be reproduced by any process without written permission from the Managing Director Metropolis
Research Pty Ltd.

Disclaimer

Any representation, statement, opinion or advice, expressed or implied in this publication is made in good faith but on the
basis that Metropolis Research Pty Ltd, its agents and employees are not liable (whatever by reason of negligence, lack of
care or otherwise) to any person for any damages or loss whatsoever which has occurred or may occur in relation to that
person taking action in respect of any representation, statement, or advice referred to above.

Contact details
This report was prepared by Metropolis Research Pty Ltd on behalf of the Melton City Council. For more information, please
contact:

Dale Hubner Melton City Council

Managing Director 232 High Street

Metropolis Research Pty Ltd Melton Vic 3337

(03) 9747 7200
P O Box 1357

CARLTON VIC 3053

(03) 9272 4600
d.hubner@metropolis-research.com
The 2022-23

Research P
Society m MELTON
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Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

Executive summary

Survey aims and methodology:

Metropolis Research conducted Council’s 10" independent Annual Community Satisfaction
Survey as a door-to-door, in-person interview survey of 801 respondents in May and June
2024.

The survey was again this year conducted as a face-to-face, door-to-door interview survey
conducted primarily at weekends.

The aim of the research was to measure community satisfaction with the broad range of
Council services and facilities, aspects of governance and leadership, planning and
development, customer service, and the overall performance of Council.

The survey also measured the importance to the community of 31 individual services and
facilities, explored the top issues the community feel need to be addressed in the municipality
‘at the moment’, as well as measuring the perception of safety in City of Melton’s public areas,
the local sense of community, physical activity, food security, commuting times, transport
choices to local facilities, and volunteering.

The survey meets the needs of the Local Government Victorian annual satisfaction survey by
providing ratings on importance and satisfaction for the major services and facilities provided
by Council, as well as scores for satisfaction with Council.

The response rate for this survey (i.e., the proportion of residents who were invited to
participate who did participate) was 37%, down on the unusually high 53% achieved last year,
but still up significantly on the response rate achieved using the telephone methodology.

The 95% confidence interval around these results is plus and / or minus 3.4% at the 50% level.
In other words, if a yes / no question obtains a result of 50% yes, it is 95% certain that the
true value of this result is within the range of 46.6% and 53.4%.

The report provides a categorisation of satisfaction with aspects of performance, ranging
from “excellent”, “very good”, “good”, “solid”, “poor”, “very poor”, and “extremely poor”.
The details of the scores within each range are outlined in the main report, but importantly
scores of 7.75 or more are categorised as “excellent”, and scores of less than 6.5 are

categorised as “solid”.

Key findings:

The key finding from the survey is that satisfaction with almost all areas of Council
performance remained stable this year, maintaining the improvement in satisfaction
recorded last year, and maintaining satisfaction with many aspects of performance at or
around record high levels for the City of Melton.
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The results were a positive statement about community satisfaction with the performance of
Melton City Council, moving away from the more difficult environment experienced through
the pandemic. This trend of improving satisfaction with local government has been observed
in many, but not all, municipalities across metropolitan Melbourne post-pandemic.

Satisfaction with overall performance was identical to the metropolitan average (7.0).

Satisfaction with most aspects of Council performance was relatively stable this year including
overall performance (up 1%), average satisfaction with services and facilities (up 1%), the five
core aspects of governance and leadership (stable), planning and development outcomes
(stable), and planning for population growth (down 1%).

Satisfaction with customer service was, however, a standout positive result this year, up five
percent to a “very good” 7.6 out of 10, identical to the metropolitan average.

The key issues highlighted by respondents remain traffic management, street trees, road
maintenance and repairs, parks, gardens, and open spaces, and safety, policing, and crime.

The importance of traffic and roads remains clear in the results again this year, with particular
concern around traffic management in Fraser Rise, Burnside, Caroline Springs, and Melton
South / Brookfield. These transport related issues remain among the most important
negative influences on overall satisfaction with Council.

Some of the other issues that appear to negatively impact on overall satisfaction with Council
include roads, street trees, children’s activities / facilities, public transport, rubbish and waste,
street cleaning, footpaths, parking, and safety, policing, and crime issues. It is noted that
most of these issues are largely state rather than local government responsibilities.

Satisfaction with 16 of the 31 services and facilities increased this year, with none statistically
significant. Of those, the strongest increases in satisfaction were for services for people with
disability (up 11%), services for young people (up 8%), services for seniors (up 6%), and
services for infants, babies, and toddlers (up 4%).

Satisfaction declined for nine services and facilities, with public toilets (down 4%) and local
traffic management (4%) statistically significant.

The following table outlines the key satisfaction results, including the Local Government
Performance Reporting Framework reporting requirement scores.

. . . Metro. City o, City o]
Satisfaction with Melb. 2024 | Melton 2{323 Melton 2);24

Customer service (average score across 6 indicators) 7.2 7.2 7.7
Council’s Overall performance 7.0 6.9 7.0
Making decisions in the interests of community 6.9 7.0 7.0
Community consultation and engagement 7.2 7.0 6.9
Representation, lobbying and advocacy 7.0 7.0 6.9
Maintaining trust and confidence of the community 7.0 7.0 7.1
Responsiveness of Council to local community needs 6.9 6.9 6.9
Maintenance and repair of sealed local roads 7.0 6.8 6.8
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Satisfaction with the performance of Council:

Satisfaction with the overall performance of Melton City Council increased marginally this
year, up one percent to 7.0 out of 10, which remained a “good” level of satisfaction.

This result was identical to the metropolitan Melbourne (7.0), but marginally (1%) lower than
the western region councils’ (7.1) average, as recorded in the Governing Melbourne research
conducted independently by Metropolis Research in January 2024 using the same
methodology.

Metropolis Research notes that the return to the door-to-door methodology in 2023 will have
been a small contributing factor in the increase in satisfaction recorded last year.

Almost half (39%, stable) of respondents providing a score were “very satisfied” with Council’s
overall performance (rating satisfaction at eight or more out of 10), whilst seven percent
(down from 8%) were dissatisfied (rating from zero to four).

There was some variation in satisfaction with Council’s overall performance observed across
the municipality and by respondent profile groups this year, as follows:

¢ Somewhat more satisfied than average — included respondents from Kurunjang, Cobblebank
/ Strathtulloh, and Caroline Springs, young adults (aged 18 to 34 years), senior citizens (aged
75 years and over), respondents from multilingual households, rental households, new and
medium-term residents (less than 10 years in the City of Melton), and two-parent families
with youngest child aged 5 to 12 years).

e Somewhat less satisfied than average — included respondents from Hillside, Harkness,
Melton West, and Taylors Hill, middle-aged adults (aged 45 to 59 years), mortgagor
households, and long-term residents (10 years or more in the municipality).

The most common reasons why 73 respondents were “dissatisfied” with Council’s overall
performance included Council services and facilities (25 comments), transport including
roads, traffic, and public transport (16 comments), communication, consultation, and
responsiveness (10 comments), rates and financial management (9 comments), and
governance, accountability, performance (8 comments).

The average satisfaction with the five core aspects of governance and leadership remained
stable this year at 7.0 out of 10, which remained a “good” level of satisfaction. This result was
identical to the metropolitan Melbourne average.

Metropolis Research notes that satisfaction with governance and leadership declined in most
municipalities for which Metropolis Research conducted this research in 2022, reflecting a
generalised fatigue with government coming out of the last lockdown and then into the
federal and then state election campaigns.

This decline last year appears to have been recovered in many municipalities over the last
two years, including in the City of Melton.
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These results confirm that most respondents remain satisfied with Council’s performance in
meeting its environmental responsibilities (7.4), maintaining community trust and confidence
(7.1), advocacy on behalf of the community for local educational opportunities (7.1),
representation, lobbying, and advocacy (7.0), making decisions in the interests of the
community (7.0), community consultation and engagement (6.9), and the responsiveness of
Council to local community needs (6.9).

Respondents were asked to rate their agreement with three statements about Melton City.
The average agreement with all three statements remained essentially stable this year,
including that Council infrastructure is equitable, inclusive, and accessible (7.5), that Melton
is a city that encourages and enable people to work, shop, and spend time locally (7.5 up from
7.4), and that Council is efficient and well run (7.2).

Approximately half of the respondents providing a score “strongly agreed” with each of these
three statements, whilst five percent or less “disagreed”.

Satisfaction with Council’s customer service delivery was at a “very good” level, with an
increase of five percent to an average satisfaction of 7.7 out of 10. This result was measurably
higher than the metropolitan Melbourne average of 7.2 (down from 7.6).

The courtesy and professionalism of staff remained the aspect of customer service with the
highest satisfaction, with satisfaction increasing three percent this year to 8.1, which remains
an “excellent” level.

Satisfaction with planning for population growth by all levels of government remained
essentially stable this year, up one percent to 6.9, which remains a “good” level. This was the
highest score recorded for this variable, although it remains marginally below the
metropolitan Melbourne average.

Satisfaction with the planning and development outcomes including maintaining local
heritage and sites of significance (7.5) and the appearance and quality of new developments
(7.4) remained stable at historically high levels. Satisfaction with these planning and
development outcomes remained higher than both the metropolitan Melbourne and growth
area councils’ average.

The average satisfaction with the 31 Council provided services and facilities included in the
survey increased marginally this year, up one percent to 7.6 out of 10, which remains “very
good”.

Satisfaction with 16 of the 31 services and facilities increased this year, and satisfaction with
nine declined, including:

s Notably higher satisfaction this year — included services for people with disability (up 11%),
services for young people (up 8%), and services for seniors (up 6%). These increases were not
statistically significant given the relatively small sample size for these services.

s Measurably lower satisfaction this year — included public toilets (down 4%), and local traffic
management (down 4%).
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Metropolis Research notes that the average satisfaction with the 31 included services and
facilities was six percent higher than satisfaction with Council’s overall performance.

The six percent difference between average satisfaction with services (7.6) and overall
satisfaction with Council (7.0) reflects well on the performance of the Melton City Council
organisation providing services and facilities to the community.

Further, satisfaction with all but four services and facilities recorded satisfaction scores higher
than the overall satisfaction with Council this year. The four services and facilities to record
a satisfaction score lower than the overall satisfaction score were public toilets (6.3 down
from 6.8), local traffic management (6.5 down from 6.9), sealed local roads (6.8), and
footpaths (6.9).

The services with the highest levels of satisfaction this year again include the green waste
collection (8.8 up from 8.5), regular garbage collection (8.7), regular recycling (8.6), libraries
services (8.5), and hard rubbish collection (8.2 up from 8.0).

Many of these services and facilities with the highest levels of satisfaction were also those
with higher-than-average importance scores (i.e., received an average importance score
measurably higher than the average of all services and facilities). This shows that many of the
services and facilities of most importance to the community are those with which the
community was most satisfied.

There were no services to report a “poor”, “very poor”, or “extremely poor” level of
satisfaction, reflecting the strong performance of Council providing services and facilities.

Issues to address for the City of Melton:

The main issues to address for the City of Melton were traffic management (18% down from
25%), street trees (9% up from 5%), roads including roadworks (8% down from 13%), parks,
gardens, and open spaces (7% down from 12%), and safety, policing, and crime related issues
(6% down from 8%).

The substantial proportion of respondents nominating traffic management and roads as the
top issues to address for the City of Melton at the moment remains one of the significant
results in the survey this year.

This reinforces the importance of traffic and road related issues in the municipality and was
in line with the lower-than-metropolitan average satisfaction with local traffic management
(7% lower) and the maintenance and repair of sealed local roads (2% lower).

This significant result of 18% nominating traffic management was higher than for most other
municipalities surveyed by Metropolis Research this year, reflecting significant City of Melton
concern about traffic management, particularly this year from respondents from Fraser Rise
(33%), Burnside (29%), Caroline Springs (23%), and Melton South / Brookfield (22%).
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The issues that appeared most likely to be exerting a negative influence on satisfaction with
the performance of Council for the respondents raising the issues included roads, street trees,
children’s activities / facilities, public transport, rubbish and waste, street cleaning, footpaths,
parking, safety, policing, and crime issues, traffic management, and health and medical
services related.

It is important to bear in mind, however, that these results reflect the views of the
respondents who nominated each of these issues and does not imply that these services are
a negative influence on community satisfaction with the overall performance of Council for
all or most respondents.

Most attention is drawn to traffic management as the larger proportion of respondents
nominating these issues ensure that these issues are likely to have had a larger impact on the
overall satisfaction score than for many of the other issues nominated by respondents.

Metropolis Research notes that many of these issues were, at least in part, the responsibility
of the state government, which may suggest that increased advocacy on behalf of the
community in relation to these issues may be a positive influence on community satisfaction
with the performance of Council.

Community engagement consultation activities:

In 2024, 15% (up from 14%) of respondents reported that they had been involved in a
community engagement activity in the past 12 months, with completing a Council survey the
most common method.

Local employment and educational opportunities:

Respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate the importance of and their satisfaction with
the accessibility of local education and local job opportunities.

Both these aspects were considered extremely important with scores of more than nine out
of 10.

Satisfaction with local job opportunities declined three percent to 6.7 or “good”, whilst
satisfaction with the accessibility of local education improved two percent to 7.6, which
remained “very good”.

Perception of safety in the public areas of the City of Melton:

The perception of safety in the public areas of the City of Melton during the day (7.7 down

from 8.0) and at night (6.0 down from 6.6) both declined this year, with the decline in the
perception of safety at night statistically significant.
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The perception of safety in the City of Melton remains measurably lower than the
metropolitan Melbourne, western region, and growth area councils’ averages.

In 2024, 23% (up from 15% last year but still down on the 32% in 2022) of respondents felt
“unsafe” in the public areas of the City of Melton at night, and female respondents felt
measurably (9%) less safe than male respondents.

Additional perception of safety variables were included in the survey again this year, including
perception of safety at home alone after dark (7.5), at local community events (7.5), in and
around CS Square Shopping Centre (7.3), in and around the Melton Town Centre (7.2), in and
around local shopping areas (7.1), travelling on / waiting for public transport (7.0), in and
around Woodgrove Shopping Centre (7.0), and at Lake Caroline at night (6.8).

The most common reasons for feeling unsafe were related to fear or experience of crime

including theft, robbery, violence (98 comments), concerns around people (22 comments),
and drug and alcohol related issues (13 comments).

Sense of community:

There were 18 statements about aspects of the local sense of community and associated
issues.

Consistent with the general pattern of results this year, the average agreement with these
statements remained stable this year at 7.6 out of 10.

The average agreement with these statements were at strong to extremely strong levels of
agreement, with the highest agreement in 2024 being for “the Melton community is
welcoming and supportive of people from diverse cultures and backgrounds” (8.0), “Melton
City Council respects, reflects, and is inclusive of our diverse community” (7.9), “Melton is a
child-friendly community” (7.9), and “Melton City Council respects, reflects, and is inclusive
of Aboriginal and / or Torres Strait Islander persons” (7.9).

Agreement was lowest for “there is public transport that goes where | need to go” (6.8) and
“the health services | / we need are available locally” (7.0).

The lower-than-average agreement with the statements about the availability of health
services and the availability of public transport reflect other results discussed in the report.

This includes the fact that four percent of respondents nominated health and medical services
as one of the top three issues to address for the City of Melton at the moment.
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Average commuting times:

There was a six percent increase this year in the proportion of respondents who reported that
the commute to and from work took one hour or more (52% up from 46%) and a
corresponding decrease in the proportion reporting that it took less than one hour (48% down
from 53%).

Food security:

In 2024, 71 of the 801 respondent households (9% up from 3%) reported that their household
had run out of food and couldn’t afford to buy more at least once in the last 12 months. This
was a significant increase on the average over the last five surveys of four percent.

Family violence:

In 2024, 13% of respondents agreed that family violence was common in their community,
36% were neutral or could not say, and 51% (up from 15%) disagreed.

On average, respondents reported similar results to previous years as to whether they agreed
or disagreed with five statements. 76% (up from 73%) of respondents disagreed that family
violence can be excused if it is acceptable in the person’s culture, and 57% disagreed that
women prefer men to be in charge of the relationship.

Volunteering:

In 2024, there was a small increase in the proportion of respondents who reported that they
volunteer, up from 14% last year to 17% this year.

This includes 11% who report that they volunteer locally, and six percent (up from 3%) who
report that they volunteer elsewhere.
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Introduction

Metropolis Research was commissioned by Melton City Council to undertake this, its tenth
Annual Community Satisfaction Survey.

The survey has been designed to measure community satisfaction with a broad range of
Council services and facilities as well as to measure community sentiment across a range of
additional issues of concern in the municipality.

The Community Satisfaction Survey program comprises the following core components which
are included each year:

Satisfaction with Council’s overall performance and change in performance.
Satisfaction with aspects of governance and leadership.

Importance of and satisfaction with a range of Council services and facilities.
Issues of importance to address for the City of Melton “at the moment”.

Satisfaction with aspects of planning and housing development.

Community perception of safety in the public areas of the City of Melton.
Satisfaction with Council customer service.

Respondent profile.

In addition to these core components, Community Satisfaction Survey program includes
questions exploring current issues of importance that reflect Council’s current requirements.
The 2024 survey includes questions related to the following issues:

Local employment and educational opportunities
Sense of community

Average commuting time

Food security

Family violence

Volunteering.

Rationale

The Community Satisfaction Survey has been designed to provide Council with a wide range
of information covering community satisfaction, sentiment, and involvement.

The survey meets the requirements of Local Government Victoria (LGV) requirements by
providing importance and satisfaction ratings for the core measures and satisfaction with
Council’s overall performance.
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The survey is used by Council in meeting its legislative requirements, including reporting
performance indicators against the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework
and associated requirements under the Local Government Act 2020 and Public Health and
Wellbeing Act 2008.

The survey also assists Council in gauging achievement toward the delivery of the
commitments contained with the Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 and achieving the
aspirations of the Community Vision 2041 — The City We Imagine, and other strategic council
plans.

Criteria considered in determining the survey questions included consistency with questions
previously asked, strategic indicators from the Council and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025 and
information that feeds into the online Know Your Council website (which provides consistent
information regarding the performance of local councils across Victoria).

The Community Satisfaction Survey provides an in-depth coverage of Council services and
facilities as well as additional community issues and expectations.

This information is critical to informing Council of the attitudes, levels of satisfaction and
issues facing the community in the City of Melton.

In addition, the Community Satisfaction Survey includes a range of demographic and socio-
economic variables against which the results can be analysed including age structure, period
of residence, language, gender, and household structure.

These variables have been included to facilitate in-depth analysis of the results of the survey
by demographic profile and to ensure that the sample selected represents the underlying
population of the City of Melton.

Methodology, response rate and statistical significance

The survey was conducted as a door-to-door interview style survey of 801 households drawn
proportionally from across all the suburbs / localities that comprise the municipality.

The survey fieldwork was conducted over five weekends in May and June 2024,

Trained Metropolis Research fieldwork staff conducted face-to-face interviews of
approximately 20 minutes duration with randomly approached households.

This methodology has produced highly consistent results in terms of the demographic profile
of respondents, obtaining a sample of respondents that more closely reflects the underlying
population of the municipality than can be obtained using the alternative telephone
methodology.

The sample was pre-weighted by suburb / locality population to ensure that each of the
suburbs / localities contributed proportionally to the overall municipal result.
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The final sample was then weighted by respondents’ age and gender to reflect the age and
gender profile of the City of Melton community, as reported in the 2021 Census. This two-
stage process ensured that the municipal results effectively reflect the geographical and
demographic makeup of the Melton community.

A total of 4,323 households were approached to participate in the survey. Of these
households, 2,148 were unattended when approached, were therefore not invited to
participate, and played no further part in the research.

Atotal of 1,374 refused the offer to participate in the research and 801 completed the survey.

This provides a response rate of 37%, which was down significantly on the unusually high 53%
recorded last year, but consistent with the 35% obtained in 2019 pre-pandemic, using the
same door-to-door methodology.

The 95% confidence interval (margin of error) of these results is plus or minus 3.4% at the
50% level. In other words, if a yes / no question obtains a result of 50% ves, it is 95% certain
that the true value of this result is within the range of 46.6% and 53.4%.

This is based on a total sample size of 801 respondents, and an underlying estimated
population of the City of Melton of 192,865 in 2024,

The margin of error increases as the sample size decreases, such as for the precinct results,
and the breakdown of results for individual age groups, genders, and other sub-groupings for
which results are provided. Each separate result has a different margin of error based on its
unique sample size and the actual result.

Governing Melbourne

Governing Melbourne is a service provided by Metropolis Research since 2010. Governing
Melbourne included a sample of 800 respondents in 2024, drawn in equal numbers from all
31 metropolitan Melbourne municipalities.

Governing Melbourne provides an objective, consistent and reliable basis on which to
compare the results of the survey. It is not intended to provide a “league table” for individual
councils, rather to provide both a metropolitan and local region framework within which to
understand these survey results.

This report provides some comparisons sourced from Governing Melbourne against the
metropolitan Melbourne average, which includes all municipalities located within the
Melbourne Greater Capital City Statistical Area as well as the western region (which includes
Brimbank, Hobsons Bay, Maribyrnong, Melton, Moonee Valley, and Wyndham).

The report also provides some comparisons with the growth area councils of Cardinia, Casey,
Hume, Knox, Melton, Whittlesea, and Wyndham.
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Glossary of terms

Precinct

The results of this report are presented at both the municipal and precinct level. The term
precinct is used by Metropolis Research to describe the sub-municipal areas for which results
are presented, as agreed with officers of Council. The precinct boundaries are most often the
sub-municipal areas as published on Council’'s Community Profile.

Measurable and statistically significant

A measurable difference is one where the difference between or change in results is
sufficiently large to ensure that they are in fact different results, i.e., the difference is
statistically significant. This is because survey results are subject to a margin of error or an
area of uncertainty.

Significant result

Metropolis Research uses the term significant result to describe a change or difference
between results that Metropolis Research believes to be of sufficient magnitude that they
may impact on relevant aspects of policy development, service delivery and the evaluation of
performance and are therefore identified and noted as significant or important.

Marginal / somewhat / notable

Metropolis Research will describe some results or changes in results as being marginally,
somewhat, or notably higher or lower. These are not statistical terms, rather they are
interpretive. They are used to draw attention to results that may be of interest or relevant to
policy development and service delivery.

In order of significance, “marginal” is the least significant, followed by “somewhat”, and with
“notable” the most significant of the subjective terms used to describe variations that were
not statistically significant.

These terms are often used for results that may not be statistically significant due to sample
size or other factors but may nonetheless provide some insight into the variation in
community sentiment across the municipality or between groups within the community, or
in changes in results over time.

95% confidence interval
Average satisfaction results are presented in this report with a 95% confidence interval

included. These figures reflect the range of values within which it is 95% certain that the true
average satisfaction falls.
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The 95% confidence interval based on a one-sample t-test is used for the mean scores
presented in this report. The margin of error around the other results in this report at the
municipal level is plus or minus 3.4%.

Satisfaction categories

Metropolis Research typically categorises satisfaction results to assist in the understanding
and interpretation of the results.

Metropolis Research has worked primarily with local government and developed these
categories as a guide to satisfaction with the performance of local government across a wide
range of service delivery and policy related areas of Council responsibility.

The scores presented in the report are designed to give a general context about satisfaction
with variables in this report, and are defined as follows:

e Excellent - scores of 7.75 and above are categorised as excellent.

e Very good - scores of 7.25 to less than 7.75 are categorised as very good.
e Good - scores of 6.5 to less than 7.25 are categorised as good.

e Solid - scores of 6 to less than 6.5 are categorised as solid.

e Poor- scoresof 5.5 to less than 6 are categorised as poor.

e Very Poor - scores of 5 to less than 5.5 are categorised as very poor.

e Extremely Poor — scores of less than 5 are categorised as extremely poor.

Precincts

This report provides results at both the municipal and precinct level.

The precincts are consistent with those used for the Melton Community Profile as available
via Council’s website.

The precincts used in this report are as follows:

e  Melton Township —includes the precincts of Melton precinct (28 respondents), Melton West
(33), Kurunjang (44), Melton South / Brookfield (94), and Harkness (54).

e FEastern Corridor — includes the precincts of Burnside (49), Caroline Springs (98), Hillside (60),
Taylors Hill (66), Cobblebank / Strathtulloh (41), and Fraser Rise (54).

e Rural precinct (179 respondents) - includes the rural balance and the rural townships of
Diggers Rest, Toolern Vale, Aintree, Eynesbury and Rockbank.
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Summary of results

The following is a summary of the results from the Melton City Council — 2024 Annual
Community Satisfaction Survey.

Overall performance

e Satisfaction with Council’s overall performance increased marginally (1%) this year from 6.9
to 7.0 out of 10, which remains a “good” level of satisfaction.

e This result was identical to the 2024 metropolitan Melbourne (7.0) average and marginally
lower than the western region councils’ (7.1) average.

e Approximately two-fifths (39% down from 42%) were “very satisfied” with Council’s overall
performance, and there was a small decrease in the proportion of “dissatisfied” respondents
(7% down from 8%).

s Respondents from Kurunjang were marginally more satisfied than the municipal average,
whilst respondents from Hillside were notably less satisfied.

e Young adults (aged 18 to 34 years), senior citizens (aged 75 years and over), respondents from
multilingual households, rental households, new and medium-term residents (less than 10
years in the City of Melton), and two-parent families with youngest child aged 5 to 12 years)
were more satisfied with Council’s overall performance.

¢ Middle-aged adults (aged 45 to 59 years), mortgagor households, and long-term residents (10
years or more in the City of Melton) were somewhat less satisfied.

Governance and leadership

e The average satisfaction with the seven aspects of governance and leadership was down from
7.1 to 7.0 out of 10 this year.

e The average satisfaction with the five core measures of governance and leadership (including
advocacy and representation, communication and consultation, responsiveness, maintaining
community trust, and making decisions in the interests of the community) remained stable
this year at 7.0 out of 10, which was a “good” level of satisfaction.

e Satisfaction with the seven aspects of governance and leadership were as follows:

o Meeting environmental responsibilities (7.4 down from 7.5) "very good”
o Maintaining community trust and confidence (7.1 up from 7.0) “good”
Advocacy on behalf of the community for local educational opportunities
(7.1 down from 7.2) “good”

o Representation, lobbying, and advocacy (7.0, stable) “good”
o Making decisions in the interests of the community (7.0, stable) “good”
o Community consultation and engagement (6.9 down from 7.0) “good”
o Responsiveness to local community needs (6.9, stable) “good”.
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Statements about City of Melton

e Respondents were asked their level of agreement with three statements about Melton City
Council, on a scale from zero (strongly disagree) to 10 (strongly agree), with the average
agreement as follows:

o Council infrastructure is equitable, inclusive, and accessible (7.5, stable)

o Melton is a city that encourages and enables people to work, shop and spend time locally
(7.5 up from 7.4)

o Council is efficient and well run (7.2, stable).

Customer service

« 28% of respondents reported that they had contacted Council in the last 12 months, similar
to last year, but significantly below the long-term average since 2015 of 37%.

e The most common form of contact with Council was by telephone during office hours, with
more than half (59%) of respondents using this method, with 18% (up from 10%) contacting

Council by email.

e Average satisfaction with the five aspects of customer service increased measurably this year,
up by five percent to 7.7 (from 7.2), which was a “very good”, up from a “good” level.

e These can best be summarised as follows:

o Courtesy and professionalism of staff (8.1 up from 7.8) “excellent”

o Provision of information (7.7 up from 7.2) “very good”
o Satisfaction with the “final outcome” (7.6 up from 7.0) “very good”
o Access to relevant officer / area (7.5 up from 7.2) “very good”
o Speed and efficiency of service (7.5 up from 7.0) “very good”.

Planning for population growth

e Satisfaction with planning for population growth by all levels of government remained
essentially stable this year, up one percent to 6.9, which remains a “good” level of satisfaction.

Planning and housing development

e Satisfaction with both the appearance and quality of new developments and satisfaction with
maintaining local heritage and sites of significance remained stable this year at “very good”
levels of satisfaction as follows:

o Appearance and quality of new developments (7.5, stable) “very good”
o Maintaining local heritage and sites of significance (7.4, stable) “very good”.

Council services and facilities

¢ The average satisfaction with the 31 included Council services and facilities was 7.6, up one
percent on the 7.5 recorded last year. This was a “very good” level of satisfaction.
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Satisfaction with the 31 services and facilities included in the survey were as follows:

0 o0oo0oo0oo0o0oO0CO0OO0OO0CO0OC0CO0O0OCDO0OO0OO0CO0OO0OO0OCO0CCO0CO0CO0O0OCO0OCO0OCQ0CO0OO0OO0

Green waste collection service

Regular garbage collection

Regular recycling

Library services

Hard rubbish collection

Provision of community events and festivals
Melton Recycling Facility

Provision of cultural events

Community centres / Neighbourhood houses
Sports grounds and associated facilities
Services for young people

Council’s website

Services for seniors

Animal management

Access services through digital or online channels
Recreation and Leisure Centres

Services for people with disability

Provision and maintenance of playgrounds
Services and programs for children

Public Spaces

Health services for babies, infants, and toddlers
Moving Ahead (Council’s printed newsletter)
Provision and maintenance of parks and gardens
On and off-road bike and / or walking paths
Council activities promoting local business growth
Parking enforcement

Provision and maintenance of street trees
Footpath maintenance and repairs
Maintenance and repair of sealed local roads
Local traffic management

Public toilets

Issues for Council to address ‘at the moment’

(8.8, up from 8.5)
(8.7, stable)

(8.6, stable)

(8.5 up from 8.4)
(8.2 up from 8.0)
(8.0 up from 7.9)
(8.0 down from 8.1)
(7.9 up from 7.7)
(7.8, up from 7.7)
(7.8, stable)

(7.8 up from 7.0)
(7.8 up from 7.7)
(7.8 up from 7.2)
(7.7 down from 7.8)
(7.7 up from 7.5)
(7.6 up from 7.5)
(7.5 up from 6.5)
(7.5, up from 7.4)
(7.5, stable)

(7.5 down from 7.6)
(7.5 up from 7.1)
(7.4 down from 7.5)
(7.3, up from 7.2)
(7.3 down from 7.6)
(7.2 down from 7.4)
(7.1 down from 7.3)
(7.1 down from 7.2)
(6.9 down from 7.0)
(6.8, stable)

(6.5 down from 6.9)
(6.3 down from 6.8)

“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“excellent”
“very good”
“very good”
“very good”
“very good”
“very good”
“very good”
“very good”
“very good”
“very good”
“very good”
“very good”
“good”
“good”
“good”
“good”
“good”
“good”
“solid”.

A total of 479 respondents (60% down from 65%) nominated a total of 814 individual issues

to address for the City of Melton ‘at the moment’.

It is important to note that these issues are not all within the remit of local government, nor
are they to be read just as a list of complaints about Council performance.

The top five issues for the City of Melton this year were as follows:

o o o o o0

Traffic management

Street trees

Roads (including roadworks)
Parks, gardens, and open space
Safety, policing, and crime

Community engagement consultation activities

(18% down from 25%)

(9% up from 5%)

(8% down from 13%)
(7% down from 12%)
(6% down from 8%).

In 2024, 15% (up from 14%) reported that they had been involved in a community engagement

activity in the past 12 months.
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e The most common consultation engagement activity undertaken by respondents in the past
12 months was completing a Council survey, with 10% (down from 11%) reporting that they
completed a Council survey in the past year.

Local employment and educational opportunities

e Respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate both the importance of and their personal
level of satisfaction with local job opportunities and the accessibility of local education.

e The importance of both local job and local employment opportunities increased marginally
this year (up 1% and 2% respectively).

e Satisfaction with local job opportunities declined somewhat this year, down three percent to
6.7 from 7.0, remains at a “good” level of satisfaction.

e Satisfaction with the accessibility of local increased marginally this year, up two percent to 7.6
from 7.4, remains at a “very good” level of satisfaction.

e These can best be summarised as follows:

o Importance of accessibility of local education (9.2 up from 9.1) “excellent”
o Satisfaction with accessibility of local education (7.6 up from 7.4) “very good”
o Importance of local job opportunities (9.1 up from 8.9) “excellent”
o Satisfaction with local job opportunities (6.7 down from 7.0) “good”.

Perception of safety in the public areas of the City of Melton

e Respondents were againin 2024, asked to rate how safe they felt in 10 situations and locations
across the City of Melton.

e The average perception of safety in all situations and locations remained essentially the same
as the 2022 average, up one percent from 7.0 to 7.1 out of 10.

e These can best be summarised as follows:

o In the public areas of the municipality during the day (7.7 down from 8.0 in 2023)
o At home alone after dark (7.5 down from 7.6 in 2022)
o At local community events (7.5 up from 7.3 in 2022)

o Inand around Caroline Spring Shopping Centre (7.3, stable, in 2022)

o Inand around Melton Town Centre (7.2 up from 6.9 in 2022)

o Inand around local shopping area (7.1 down from 7.2 in 2022)
o Travelling on or waiting for public transport (7.0 up from 6.4 in 2022)

o Inand around the Woodgrove Shopping Centre (7.0, stable, in 2022)

o At Lake Caroline at night (6.8 up from 6.5 in 2022)

o In the public areas of the municipality at night (6.0 down from 6.6 in 2023).

Sense of community

e Respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate their agreement or disagreement with 18
statements about the local sense of community including aspects such as Council engagement
with the community, and some aspects relating to public transport.
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e The average agreement with the 18 statements remained stable this year at 7.6 out of 10,
which maintains the significant five percent increase recorded last year.

e The average agreement with these statements was as follows:

o0 0 0O0C0CO0O0C0OO0OO0CO0OO0OC 00000

Welcome diverse cultures’ people

Council respects diverse community
“Child-friendly” community

Council respects ATSI peoples

“Age-friendly” community

Accessible and inclusive for people with disability
Welcome LGBTIQA+ people

Feel sense of optimism about future

Could turn neighbours for help

Community is vibrant and engaging

Adequate opportunities to socialise / meet people
Feel part of local community

Distinct community character

People locally can be trusted

Active community

Affordable and efficient public transport

Local health services available

Public transport goes where | need to go

Average commuting time

(8.0, stable)

(7.9, stable)

(7.9 up from 7.8)
(7.9, stable)

(7.8, stable)

(7.8 up from 7.7)
(7.7, stable)

(7.7 up from 7.6)
(7.7 down from 7.9)
(7.7 up from 7.6)
(7.6, stable)

(7.6 up from 7.5)
(7.5 down fram 7.8)
(7.5 down from 7.7)
(7.3 down from 7.4)
(7.1 down from 7.2)
(7.0 down from 7.1)

(6.8 down from 7.1).

e Approximately half (48% down from 53% in 2023 and 54% in 2022) of employed respondents
took less than one hour to commute to and from work (combined both ways), whilst
approximately half (52% up from 46% in 2023 and 45% in 2022) took one hour or more.

Food security

e 71 of the 801 respondents (9% up from 3%) reported that their household had run out of
food and couldn’t afford to buy more at least once in the last 12 months. This was a significant
increase, from the average of four percent over the previous five surveys.

Family violence

e The family violence component of the survey includes a preliminary question asking
respondents if they believe that family violence is common in the community, and then a
follow up set of questions asking respondents if they agree or disagree with five statements
relating to some of the drivers of, or myths that can justify or excuse family violence in the
community.

e 13% of the 801 respondents agreed that family violence is common in the community, a
significant decrease on the historically high result of 29% recorded last year. There was also
a measurable and significant increase in the proportion of respondents who disagreed that
family violence is common in the community, up from 15% to 51%.

s These were substantial variations from the historical results, which have averaged 24% of

respondents agreeing and 22% disagreeing with the statement.
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e Respondents were again in 2024, asked whether they agreed or disagreed with five
statements about family violence. These results confirm that the majority of the City of Melton
community continues to disagree with these five statements about family violence, as follows:

o Family violence can be excused if it is acceptable in the persons’ culture
(76% up from 73% in 2022)
o Men make better political leaders (68% up from 63% in 2022)
Men should take control in relationships and be the head of the household
(63%, stable, in 2022)
o Family violence can be excused if, afterwards, the violent person genuinely regrets what they have
done (66% up from 63% in 2022)
o Women prefer a man to be in charge of the relationship (57% down from 58% in 2022).

Volunteering

e The proportion of respondents from households with a member who regularly volunteers
locally remained stable this year at 11%. Given the distance now from the pandemic, this was
a somewhat surprising result, as there was some expectation that the level of volunteering
may have started to return to pre-pandemic levels.

e There was a small (3%) increase in the proportion of respondents from households with a
member that volunteers non-locally, up from three percent over the last two years to six
percent this year.
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Council’s overall performance

Respondents were asked:

“On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), can you please rate your satisfaction with the performance
of Council across all areas of responsibility?”

Satisfaction with the performance of Council across all areas of responsibility (overall
performance) increased marginally this year, up one percent to 7.0 out of 10.

This was the second highest satisfaction score recorded for the City of Melton, the high point
being the 7.1 out of 10 recorded in 2018.

Satisfaction with Council's overall performance
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
scale from O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)

9

8

,
Melton, 7.0

6

5

4

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

By way of comparison, this result was identical to the metropolitan Melbourne average of 7.0,
as recorded in the 2024 Governing Melbourne research. Governing Melbourne was
conducted independently by Metropolis Research in January 2024, using the same door-to-
door, in-person interview methodology.

This remains a “good” level of satisfaction, and measurably (4%) above the long-term average
satisfaction since 2015 of 6.6.

This result reinforces the return to above long-term trend satisfaction with the overall
performance of Melton City Council, reversing the three percent decline recorded in 2022.

Metropolis Research notes that 2022 was an unusual year for satisfaction with local
government across metropolitan Melbourne, with many municipalities, as well as the
metropolitan Melbourne average recording notable declines in satisfaction.
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It is likely that the lower satisfaction in 2022 reflected a range of larger (extra-municipal)
factors outside of the individual performance of Council, including most notably, a generalised
fatigue with government coming out of the last of the pandemic lockdowns in late 2021, and
leading into the federal and then state election campaigns.

The following graph provides the time-series results (with the 95% confidence interval) for
each year that Metropolis Research has conducted the Community Satisfaction Survey.

Satisfaction with Council's overall performance
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from 0O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)

10

e

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

The following graph provides a breakdown of these results into the proportion of respondents
(providing a score) who were “very satisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at eight or more out of
10), those who were “neutral to somewhat satisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at five to seven),
and those who were “dissatisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at less than five out of 10).

Consistent with the long-term results, 39% (down from 42%) of respondents were “very
satisfied” with Council’s overall performance, whilst seven percent (down from 8%) were
“dissatisfied”.

This was the second equal lowest proportion of respondents “dissatisfied” with Council’s
overall performance recorded for the City of Melton.

Metropolis Research notes that it is extremely unusual for less than five percent of
respondents to be “dissatisfied” with the performance of their local council, with the 2024
metropolitan Melbourne average being six percent.
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Satisfaction with Council's overall performance [0 Very satisfied (8 - 10)
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey | neutralto somewhat satisfied
(Percent of respondents providing a response)

100% [ Dissatisfied (0 - 4)
80%
40% 2% 35% 6% a1% 22% 37% 33% 2% Ba%
60%
40%
53% 50% 53% e 51% 29% 53% 55% 51% pA%
20%
0% -
8% 8% 12% 6% 8% 9% 9% 12% 8% 7%
-20%
-40%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

The following graph provides a comparison of satisfaction with Council’s overall performance
across the 12 precincts comprising the City of Melton.

Whilst there was no statistically significant variation in satisfaction with Council’s overall
performance observed across the municipality, it is noted that 43 respondents from
Kurunjang were somewhat (3%) more satisfied than average, and at a “very good” level. By
contrast, 59 respondents from Hillside were notably (6%) less satisfied than average, and at a
“solid” rather than a “good” level of satisfaction.

Satisfaction with Council's overall performance by precinct
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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It is noted that approximately half of the respondents (providing a score) from Caroline
Springs, Burnside, Melton South / Brookfield were “very satisfied” with Council’s overall
performance.

By contrast, respondents from Harkness (10%) and Hillside (13%) were somewhat more likely
than average to be “dissatisfied”.

Satisfaction with Council's overall performance by precinct [ Very satisfied (8 - 10)

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey | Neutralto somewhat satisfied
(Percent of respondents providing a response)

100% — — [ Dissatisfied (0- 4)
80% 8%  35% ]
13% 7% 32%  32% 4%
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Overall performance by respondent profile

The following section provides a comparison of satisfaction with Council’s overall
performance by respondent profile, including age structure, gender, language spoken at
home, household disability status, housing situation, period of residence in the City of Melton,
whether or not a business owner or manager in the City of Melton, and household structure.

There was relatively little significant variation in satisfaction with Council’s overall
performance observed by respondent profile, which reflects a relatively consistent level of
satisfaction with Council observed across the community. This is a positive result as it
suggests that most groups across the community were relatively satisfied with Council’s
overall performance, although the following variations are noted:

s  Somewhat more satisfied than average — included young adults (aged 18 to 34 years), senior
citizens (aged 75 years and over), respondents from multilingual households, rental
households, new and medium-term residents (less than 10 years in the City of Melton), and
two-parent families with youngest child aged 5 to 12 years).

s Somewhat less satisfied than average — included middle-aged adults (aged 45 to 59 years),
mortgagor households, and long-term residents (10 years or more in the municipality).
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Satisfaction with Council's overall performance by respondent profile
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)

10
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Young Adults Middle- Older Senior Male Female English Multi- H'sehold H'sehold City of

adults aged adults citizens speaking lingual with  without Melton
adults h'sehold h'sehold disability disability

It is noted that almost half (45%) of young adults (aged 18 to 34 years) and 42% of senior
citizens (aged 75 years and over) were “very satisfied” with Council’s overall performance,
whilst 15% of middle-aged adults (aged 45 to 59 years) were “dissatisfied”.

satisfaction with Council's overall performance by respondent profile | = Very satisfied (8 - 10)
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey |pNeutral to somewhat satisfied
(Percent of respondents providing a response)

m Dissatisfied (0- 4)

100% — f—
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20%
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adults aged adults citizens speaking lingual with  without Melton
adults h'sehold h'sehold disability disability
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Metropolis Research notes that it was unusual for the respondents (221 respondents) who
contacted Council in the last 12 months to report the same overall satisfaction with Council
score as the respondents (578 respondents) who had not contacted Council. Typically, those
who have contacted Council tend to report somewhat lower satisfaction, reflecting the fact
that many will have been contacting Council in relation to an issue which mutes satisfaction.

Satisfaction with Council's overall performance by housing profile and business owner
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
scale from O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)

10
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Own this Mortgage Renting Lessthan 1toless 5toless Tenyears Contact Did not Business non- City of
home thishome 1year than5 thanten ormore  with contact owner Business Melton
years years Council Council owner

It is noted that approximately half of the rental household respondents, and new residents
(less than one year in the municipality) were “very satisfied”, whilst 10% of mortgagor
households and long-term residents (10 years or more in Melton) were “dissatisfied”.

Satisfaction with Council's overall performance by housing profile and | i Very satisfied (8 - 10)
business owner

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

[ Neutral to somewhat satisfied

(Percent of respondents providing a response) [ Dissatisfied (0 - 4)
100% — —
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Satisfaction with Council's overall performance by household structure
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
scale from 0 (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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Two parent Two parent Two parent Two parent One parent Group Sole person Coupleonly  City of
(youngest (youngest (youngest (adultsonly) family household household household  Melton
0-4yrs) 5-12yrs) 13-18yrs)

A little less than half of the respondents from two-parent families with youngest child aged 5
to 12 years, two-parent families with adults only at home, and sole person households were
“very satisfied” with Council’s overall performance. By contrast, 12% of respondents from
group households were “dissatisfied”.

Satisfaction with Council's overall performance by household structure | £ Very satisfied (8 - 10)
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey | Neutral to somewhat satisfied
(Percent of respondents providing a response)
100% p—

1 Dissatisfied (0- 4)

80% 29%
45% 38%
34% 44% - 24% 38% 39%

60%

40% | —
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Relationship between issues and satisfaction with overall performance

The following graph displays the average overall satisfaction score for respondents
nominating each of the top 12 issues to address for the City of Melton ‘at the moment’, with
a comparison to the overall satisfaction score of all respondents (7.0), as well as to the overall
satisfaction of the 321 respondents who did not nominate any issues to address (7.5)

The detailed analysis of the top issues to address in the City of Melton ‘at the moment’ is
discussed in the Current Issues for the City of Melton section of this report.

Satisfaction with Council's overall performance by top issues
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
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The aim of this data is to explore the relationship between the issues nominated by
respondents and their satisfaction with Council’s overall performance.

The data does not prove a causal relationship between the issue and satisfaction with
Council’s overall performance but does provide meaningful insight into whether these issues
are likely to be exerting a positive or negative influence on these respondents’ satisfaction
with Council’s overall performance.

Clearly the number of respondents nominating each of these issues varies substantially, which
is reflected in the size of the blue vertical bars (the 95% confidence interval).

The 321 respondents who did not feel compelled to nominate any issues that they felt needed
to be addressed in the municipality, were, on average, measurably (5%) more satisfied with
Council’s overall performance than the average of all respondents.
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This reflects the fact that residents who do not feel there are issues in their local area that
need addressing are going to be more satisfied with the performance of their local council
than respondents who believe that there are issues to address.

This result shows that 40% of the respondents, on average, were “very satisfied” with
Council’s overall performance, at 7.5 out of 10. The “very good” level of these respondents’
satisfaction with Council’s overall performance reflects well on the underlying level of
satisfaction with Council within the City of Melton community.

There was a range of issues that were negatively related to overall satisfaction (for the
respondents who raise the issues), including measurably lower overall satisfaction for the
respondents who nominated road maintenance and repair related issues (61 respondents at
6.3), and street trees related issues (76 respondents at 6.3).

Other issues that appear to exert a negative influence, including children’s activities; public
transport; rubbish and waste issues; street cleaning; footpaths; parking; safety, policing, and
crime; and traffic management related issues. Respondents who nominated these issues
were also measurably less satisfied with Council’s overall performance than the average (7.0).

Metropolis Research notes that these results show that there were 10 issues nominated by a
meaningful number of respondents that recorded average overall satisfaction scores at least
three percent lower than the average of all respondents.

This does highlight a broad range of issues of importance to the City of Melton community,
that appear to negatively impact on satisfaction with Council’s overall performance.

Metropolis Research notes that many of these issues were, at least in part, the responsibility
of the state government, including traffic management; roads; public transport; children
services and activities; safety, policing and crime; and health and medical services including
hospitals.

The following table provides an alternative method of exploring the relationship between
issues to address for the City of Melton and satisfaction with Council’s overall performance.

It is important to bear in mind that just 52 respondents were “dissatisfied” with Council’s
overall performance, and only 40 of these provided an issue to address.

The table displays the proportion of respondents who were dissatisfied with Council’s overall
performance and who nominated each of the top 15 issues, with a comparison to the
proportion of all respondents who nominated each of these issues.

These results highlight the fact that respondents who were “dissatisfied” with Council’s
overall performance were more likely than average to nominate street trees; traffic
management; roads; safety, policing, and crime; as well as a little more likely to nominate
many of the other issues.

These results reinforce the average satisfaction results discussed above, and highlight the
degree to which traffic management issues, in particular, appear to influence community
satisfaction with Council.
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This result suggests that attention to advocacy on behalf of the City of Melton community in
relation to traffic congestion and commuting related issues may well have a positive impact
on community satisfaction with the performance of Council.

Top issues for Melton of respondents’ dissatisfied with overall performance

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of total respondents who dissatisfied with overall performance)

Dissatisfied respondents All

fosue Number  Percent respondents
Street trees 15 29% 9%
Traffic management 14 27% 18%
Roads (including roadworks) 8 16% 8%
Safety, policing and crime 7 14% 6%
Parking 5 10% 4%
Public transport 5 10% 5%
Rubbish and waste collection issues 5 10% 5%
Parks, gardens and open spaces 4 8% 7%
Cleanliness and maintenance of area 4 8% 2%
Footpath maintenance and repairs 4 8% 5%
Elderly services and facilities 2 4% 1%
Education and schools 2 4% 2%
Children's activities and facilities 2 4% 2%
More resources to older / rural areas 2 4% 0%
Communication and provision of information 1 2% 2%
All other issues (33 separately identified issues) 13 25% 24%
Total responses 93 814
Respondents identifying at least one issue 40 479
(percent of total respondents) (78%) (60%)

Relationship between satisfaction with services and facilities and satisfaction
with overall performance

The following graph provides the average satisfaction with Council’s overall performance of
respondents dissatisfied with individual services and facilities.

Services and facilities with fewer than 10 dissatisfied respondents have been excluded from
these results.

It is important to bear in mind that for many of these services, there were relatively few
dissatisfied respondents (an average of approximately 48 dissatisfied respondents), hence the
relatively large 95% confidence interval around these results.
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Attention is drawn to the fact that respondents who were dissatisfied with individual services
and facilities were also, on average, measurably and significantly less satisfied with Council’s
overall performance than the municipal average of all respondents (7.0), with most reporting
“poor” to “extremely poor” levels of satisfaction.

It is also acknowledged that a relatively small sample of respondents were dissatisfied with
most core services and facilities, with a significant degree of overlap between services.

In other words, respondents who were dissatisfied with one service and facility were likely to
be dissatisfied with several services and facilities and were also measurably less satisfied with
Council’s overall performance.

This reflects the fact that some (a small number) of respondents were dissatisfied with
Council’s performance, and this tended to influence their satisfaction ratings for many, if not
all, services and facilities included in the survey.

The opposite is also true for many respondents who tended to provide the same satisfaction
rating for many, if not all, services, and facilities. This again reflects the fact that these
respondents tended to see Council performance as being generally consistent across the full
range of services and facilities provided by Council.

The services and facilities that appear to be most strongly associated with lower overall
satisfaction scores this year for the small number of respondents who were dissatisfied with
these services include recreation / aquatic centres, animal management, playgrounds, and
public spaces.

Metropolis Research recommends caution in the over-interpretation of these results,
however, given how similar these results are for most of the services.

Satisfaction with overall performance of respondents’ dissatisfied with services
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

scale from 0 (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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Reasons for dissatisfaction with Council’s overall performance

Respondents dissatisfied with Council’s overall performance were asked:
“If satisfaction with Council’s overall performance rated less than 5, why do you say that?”

The following table outlines the 73 reasons for dissatisfaction with Council’s overall
performance.

This was consistent with the 73 reasons for dissatisfaction recorded last year, which reflects
the higher satisfaction scores recorded in 2023 and 2024, and therefore fewer “dissatisfied”

respondents.

Consistent with previous years, the most common reasons for dissatisfaction included 25
various Council services and facilities (25 comments), transport including roads, roads, traffic,
parking, and public transport (16 comments), communication, consultation, and
responsiveness (10 comments), and rates and financial issues (9 comments).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with Council's overall performance
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of responses from respondents rating satisfaction less than 5 out of 10)

Comment 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Number Percent

Service and facilities 25 34% 40% 23% 12% 11%
Public transport, traffic and parking 16 22% 14% 19% 10% 3%
Communication, consultation, responsiveness 10 14% 19% 20% 27% 29%
Rates and money spending 9 12% 3% 11% 19% 14%
Council support, governance, performance 8 11% 19% 16% 22% 34%
Safety and crime 2 3% 1% 2% 1% 0%
Other 3 4% 4% 10% 9% 9%
Total 73 100% 73 113 81 35

The verbatim comments underpinning these summary results are included as an appendix to
this report.
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Governance and leadership

Respondents were asked:

“On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), can you please rate your satisfaction with the following
aspects of Council’s governance and leadership?”

Respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate their satisfaction with seven aspects of
governance and leadership, as outlined in the following graph.

Five of the seven aspects are considered the core aspects of governance and leadership
(representation, making decisions, maintaining trust, responsiveness, and consultation /
engagement).

The average satisfaction with the five core measures of governance and leadership remained
stable this year at 7.0 out of 10, which remains a “good” level of satisfaction.

This result was consistent with the metropolitan Melbourne average satisfaction with the five
same core aspects of governance and leadership of 7.0, as recorded in the 2024 Governing
Melbourne research conducted independently by Metropolis Research in January 2024 using
the same methodology.

This result for the five core aspects of governance and leadership remains, however,
marginally (1%) lower than the western region councils” average of 7.1, also as recorded in
Governing Melbourne.

Average satisfaction with governance and leadership
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
scale from 0 (very dissatisfied) to 10 {very satisfied)
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Satisfaction with Council’s performance meeting its responsibilities towards the environment
declined marginally this year, down just one percent to 7.4 out of 10, which remains a “very
good” level of satisfaction.

The City of Melton survey included a specific measure of governance and leadership not
included in Governing Melbourne, relating to satisfaction with Council’s advocacy on behalf
of the community for local educational opportunities.

Satisfaction with this aspect declined marginally this year, down one percent to 7.1, although
it remains at a “good” level of satisfaction.

It does appear that the substantial increase in satisfaction with governance and leadership
for the City of Melton last year has been maintained, in line with the measurable increase in
satisfaction with Council’s overall performance.

In 2024, satisfaction with many of these aspects of governance and leadership remained at
historically high levels for the City of Melton.

Metropolis Research notes that the improvement recorded last year reversed the trend of
declining satisfaction with many of these aspects recorded from around 2019 to 2022.

It is noted, however, that 2022 was a particularly poor year across metropolitan Melbourne
in terms of satisfaction with local government, including particularly in the areas around
governance and leadership. This appeared to reflect a generalised fatigue with government
coming out of the last of the pandemic lockdowns, and then into the 2022 federal and state

elections.
Satisfaction with aspects of governance and leadership
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
10 scale from O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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The following graph provides a breakdown of these results into the proportion of respondents
(providing a score) who were “very satisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at eight or more out of
10), those who were “neutral to somewhat satisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at five to seven),
and those who were “dissatisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at less than five out of 10).

It is noted that at an average of 43% of respondents providing a score were “very satisfied”
with each of these seven aspects of governance and leadership, down from an average of 48%
last year, but still up significantly on the average of 38% recorded back in 2022.

The proportion of respondents “dissatisfied” with most of these aspects of governance and
leadership declined, with the largest decline for responsiveness to local community needs (8%
“dissatisfied” down from 12%).

Satisfaction with selected aspects of leadership and governance | Very satisfied (8 - 10)
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey | i Neutral to somewhat satisfied
(Percent of respondents providing a response)
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The following graph provides a comparison of satisfaction with six of these aspects of
governance and leadership against the western region councils and the metropolitan
Melbourne average, as recorded in the 2024 Governing Melbourne research conducted
independently by Metropolis Research in January 2024, using the same methodology.

Some minor variation from the metropolitan Melbourne average satisfaction with
governance and leadership was noted, as follows:

e Higher satisfaction in the City of Melton — included maintaining trust and confidence (1%
higher), representation, lobbying, and advocacy (1%), and making decisions in the interests of
the community (1%).

e lower satisfaction in the City of Melton —included community consultation and engagement
(3% lower), meeting environmental responsibilities (2%), and responsiveness to local
community needs (1%).
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Of these, Metropolis Research draws attention to the three percent lower satisfaction with
In 2023, satisfaction with this aspect of

community consultation and engagement.
performance was two percent lower than the metropolitan Melbourne average.

Satisfaction with aspects of governance and leadershi

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

scale from 0 {very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)

- H 73
o] G G A

[52] (o] 2]

3l B2 ) 5] )
2 8 v |

10
 Ea
7.6 -
. (2 be]
" L
7 .
6
5 F
4
3
2
1
0
c @ c c @ =
s|Elels|Ele
o 3 Iy T 3 @
= a = 2 T =
- ] £ e ] £
© s H 5] 2 o
z . n z . n
S|leg|2|5|¢g|z2
v v
E E
Meeting Maintaining
environmental | community trust
responsibilities | and confidence

The following section provides a more detailed examination of satisfaction with each aspect

City of Melton
metro. Melbourne
Western region

Representation,
lobbying and
advocacy

City of Melton
metro. Melbourne
Western region

Making decisions
in the interests of
the community

City of Melton
metro. Melbourne
Western region

Community
consultation and
engagement

City of Melton
metro. Melbourne
Western region

Responsiveness to
local community
needs

of governance and leadership, including satisfaction by precinct and by respondent profile.

Whilst there was some variation in the results for individual aspects of governance and

leadership, in general terms the following variations were noted:

e Somewhat more satisfied than average — included respondents from Kurunjang, Burnside,
Cobblebank / Strathtulloh, and Caroline Springs, young adults (aged 18 to 34 years), senior

citizens (aged 75 years and over), and respondents from multilingual households.

e Somewhat less satisfied than average — included respondents from Taylors Hill, Hillside,
Melton West, Melton, and Harkness, middle aged adults (aged 45 to 59 years), older adults

(aged 60 to 74 years, and respondents from English speaking households.
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Statements about Melton City Council

Respondents were asked:

“On a scale of 0 (strongly disagree) to 10 (strongly agree), please rate your agreement with the
following statements about the Melton City Council.”

Respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate their agreement or disagreement with three
statements about Melton City Council as an organisation.

The average agreement with two of the three statements remained stable this year, whilst
satisfaction that Melton is a City that encourages and enables people to work, shop, and
spend time locally increased marginally (up 1%).

The average agreement with all three statements can best be summarised as “strong”
agreement with scores of more than seven out of 10, consistent with the results recorded last
year.

Metropolis Research notes that these results reflect the general pattern observed in terms of
overall satisfaction with Melton City Council this year, that being maintenance of satisfaction
at or around record high levels.

Agreement with selected statements about the Melton City Council

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
scale from O (strongly disagree) to 10 (strongly agree)
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It is noted that, consistent with 2023, approximately half of the respondents providing an
agreement score “strongly agreed” (i.e., rated agreement at eight or more) with each
statement, whilst five percent or less “disagreed” (i.e., rated agreement at less than five).
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Customer service

Contact with Council in the last twelve months:

Respondents were asked:
“Have you contacted Melton City Council in the last 12 months?”

Consistent with the results recorded last year, 28% of respondents reported that they had
contacted Melton City Council in the last 12 months.

This result remains significantly below the long-term average result recorded for this question
over the last 10 years of the survey program of 37%.

Contacted Council in the last 12 months

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of respandents providing a response)

2024
Response 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Number Percent
Yes 221 28% 27% 40% 35% 43% 35%
No 578 72% 73% 60% 66% 57% 65%
Not stated 2 7 9 0 2 11
Total 801 100% 806 800 800 804 804
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Forms of contact

Respondents who had contacted Council were asked:
“When you last contacted Council, was It ... (via telephone / email / website / in person, etc.,)?”

There was a small decline this year in the proportion of respondents who contacted Council
by telephone, to 59% this year, down from at least 64% in each of the last four years.

There was a substantial increase this year, in the proportion of respondents who contacted
Council via email, up from 10% to 18% this year. This result was consistent with results
observed elsewhere across metropolitan Melbourne over the pandemic and post-pandemic

period.

Metropolis Research notes that the proportion of respondents who last contacted Council by
visiting in person remained consistent with the proportion through the pandemic (an average
of approximately 9%) compared to the pre-pandemic average of around 20%.

These results do suggest that there may have been a longer-term change in the ways in which
the community interacts with Council, with an increased level of engagement by email and

the website, and fewer visits in person.

This increased level of engagement with Council via email has been observed in many
municipalities through and post-pandemic, and it does create a challenge for local
government in ensuring high quality customer service via this method of contact.

Form of last contact with Council

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

(Number and percent of respondents who contacting Council and providing a response)

2024

Response 2023 2022 2021 2019
Number Percent

Telephone (during office hours) 129 55% 64% 64% 73% 64%
Email 40 18% 10% 14% 14% 7%
Visitin person 19 9% 8% 10% 8% 23%
Website 16 7% 12% 8% 3% 2%
Telephone (after hours service) 5 2% 4% 1% 0% 0%
Mail 4 2% 1% 2% 1% 1%
Community Portal 4 2% 0% 1% n.a. n.a
Social media 3 1% 1% 1% 0% 1%
Not stated 1 2 0 2 4
Total 221 100% 219 318 276 279
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Satisfaction with Council’s customer service

Respondents who had contacted Council were asked:

“On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), how satisfied were you with the following aspects of service
when you last contacted the Melton City Council?”

The 221 respondents who had contacted Council in the last 12 months, were again in 2024,
asked to rate their satisfaction with five aspects of customer service, including satisfaction
with the final outcome.

Satisfaction with all five aspects of customer service increased this year, up by an average of
five percent, with the average satisfaction with the five aspects increasing from 7.2 to 7.7 out
of 10, up from a “good” to a “very good” level of satisfaction.

Satisfaction with the courtesy and professionalism of staff remained at an “excellent” level,
whilst satisfaction with the provision of information, access to relevant officer / area, the final
outcome, and the speed and efficiency of service all improved from “good” to “very good”

levels.
Satisfaction with aspects of customer service
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
10 scale from 0 (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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staff

It is noted that more than approximately two-thirds or more of respondents providing a score
were “very satisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at eight or more) with each aspect of customer
service, whilst an average of 11% were “dissatisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at less than five)
with five aspects.

A total of seven percent (down from 8%) of respondents were “dissatisfied” with the staff
courtesy and professionalism, which remains a strong result from the survey again this year.
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Satisfaction with aspects of customer service [ Very satisfied (8 - 10)
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
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The average satisfaction with four of the five aspects (excluding satisfaction with the final

outcome) was 7.7 out of 10 this year, notably (5%) above the metropolitan Melbourne
average.

This was a particularly strong result for the City of Melton, reasserting the historical trend
whereby the City of Melton outperformed the metropolitan Melbourne average in terms of
satisfaction with customer service.

Average satisfaction with aspects of customer service
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
9 scale from O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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Satisfaction with all four of these aspects of customer service was higher in the City of Melton,
although the variation was not statistically significant given the smaller sample (221).
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Satisfaction with aspects of customer service
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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The following graph provides a comparison of satisfaction with the five aspects of customer
service between respondents who telephoned Council, visited the website, emailed Council,
or visited in person.

Whilst cognisant of the small sample size for these results, it is noted that respondents who
emailed Council tended to report lower levels of satisfaction with the aspects of customer
service than other respondents.

Metropolis Research notes that this result has been observed elsewhere across metropolitan
Melbourne, with most municipalities surveyed by Metropolis Research in 2024 reporting
similar results in relation to contacting Council by email.

Given the recent increase in the use of email as means of engaging with Council, some
attention to how Council can ensure a high level of customer service when engaging with the
community by email maybe required to maintain service levels.
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Satisfaction with aspects of customer service by type of contact
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
scale from 0 (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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Planning for population growth by all levels of government

Respondents were informed that:

“The State Government has planned for the population of the City of Melton to double in size to more
than 300,000 over the next 20 years. The responsibility for providing services, transport
infrastructure, and facilities rests with both Council and the State Government.”

Respondents were then asked:

“On a scale from 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), can you please rate your satisfaction with planning for
population growth?”

Respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate their satisfaction with planning for population
growth by all levels of government.

The question specifically references ‘by all levels of government’ in recognition that it is
unreasonable to expect residents to have a detailed knowledge of the split of responsibilities
in terms of planning for population growth between local and state government.

The average satisfaction with this aspect remained essentially stable this year, up one percent
to 6.9 out of 10, which remains a “good” level of satisfaction.

This is the second consecutive highest satisfaction with planning for population growth

recorded for the City of Melton and was higher than the long-term average satisfaction since
2018 of 6.4 or “solid”.
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By way of comparison, this result was marginally (1%) lower than the metropolitan Melbourne
average and growth area councils’ averages of 7.0, and somewhat (3%) lower than the
western region councils’ average of 7.3, as sourced from the 2024 Governing Melbourne
research.

Governing Melbourne was conducted independently by Metropolis Research in January 2024
using the same door-to-door, in-person interview methodology.

Satisfaction with planning for population growth
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from 0 (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)

10

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Metropolis Research notes the decline in the proportion of respondents who had lived in the
City of Melton for 10 years or more in the sample both last year and this year (40% in 2024,
down from 68% in 2022), and the increase in the proportion of new residents who had lived
in the City of Melton for less than one year (12%, up from 2% in 2022). These variations were
clearly related to the impact of the pandemic.

This increase in new residents as the community emerges from the pandemic is likely to be a
factor underpinning the higher satisfaction with planning for population growth.

As outlined later in this section, long-term residents tended to report lower satisfaction with
planning for population growth, whilst new residents report significantly higher levels of
satisfaction.

This reflects that some of the concerns around planning for population growth tend to be felt
most strongly by those who have lived in the community for a long time, and who can perceive
negative impacts on amenity, lifestyle, and access to services and facilities due to population
growth.

The significant increase in satisfaction with planning for population growth recorded in 2023
has been maintained and built on this year, with almost half (43% down from 48%) of
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respondents “very satisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at eight or more), and a stable proportion
(11%) of “dissatisfied” respondents (i.e., rated satisfaction at less than five).
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Satisfaction with planning for population growth by respondent profile
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There was measurable variation in satisfaction with planning for population growth by all

levels of government observed across the municipality.

Metropolis Research notes, however, that the variation in satisfaction with planning for
population growth was less prominent in 2024 than recorded in 2023.

Respondents from Fraser Rise were measurably (5%), and respondents from the Rural
precinct were somewhat (4%) more satisfied than average, and at a “very good” level of
satisfaction.

By contrast respondents from Hillside were notably (5%) and respondents from Melton
precinct (8%) and Melton West (9%) were measurably less satisfied than average, and at

“poor” levels of satisfaction.
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Satisfaction with planning for population growth by precinct
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from 0 (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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It is noted that more than half of the respondents (providing a score) from Fraser Rise, the
Rural precinct, Caroline Springs, and Melton South / Brookfield were “very satisfied” with
planning for population growth, whilst respondents from Harkness, Burnside, Melton West,
and Melton South / Brookfield were notably more likely than average to be “dissatisfied”.

Satisfaction with planning for population growth by precinct [0 Very satisfied (8 - 10)
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Planning and housing development

Satisfaction with aspects of planning and housing development

Respondents were asked:

“On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), please rate your satisfaction with the following aspects of
planning and development in the City of Melton.”

All respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate their satisfaction with two planning and
development outcomes in the City of Melton.

Satisfaction with both the appearance and quality of new developments and satisfaction with
maintaining local heritage and sites of significance remained stable at “very good” levels.

Metropolis Research notes these results reflect many other results in the survey this year,
maintaining satisfaction with Melton City Council at historically high levels.

These results also reflect the change back to trend in terms of new residents moving into the
municipality in the post-pandemic era. This change in the period of residence structure of
the sample will likely be a contributing factor in the higher satisfaction with these two aspects.

This is due to the fact that newer residents tend to report higher satisfaction with planning
and development aspects, whilst longer-term residents tend to report lower satisfaction.

Satisfaction with aspects of planning and development
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve:
scale from O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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Consistent with the results recorded last year, more than half of the respondents providing a
satisfaction score were “very satisfied” with these two planning and development outcomes,
whilst three percent or less were “dissatisfied”.
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Satisfaction with aspects of planning and development [ Very satisfied (8 - 10)
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The following graph provides a comparison of these results against the metropolitan
Melbourne, growth areas, and western region councils, as sourced from the 2024 Governing
Melbourne research, conducted independently by Metropolis Research using the same door-
to-door, in-person method. It is noted that satisfaction with maintaining local heritage was
measurably higher in the City of Melton, whilst satisfaction with the appearance and quality
of new developments was notably (3%) higher than the metropolitan Melbourne average.

Satisfaction with aspects of planning and housing development
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
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Importance of and satisfaction with Council services

Respondents were asked:

“On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), please rate the importance to the community, and your
personal level of satisfaction with each of the following Council provided services?”

Respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate first the importance of each of 31 included
Council services and facilities to the community, and then asked to rate their personal
satisfaction with each service and facility.

Respondents were specifically asked to rate how important they considered each service and
facility was to the community, rather than to them as individuals. This is important as it
provides insight into the priority that the community actually places on the broad range of
services and facilities provided by Melton City Council.

Respondents were then asked to rate satisfaction with each of the 13 core services and
facilities about which all members of the community should have a view, and then their
personal satisfaction with each of the 18 client-based services and facilities that they or
members of their household had used in the last 12 months.

Importance of Council services and facilities to the community

The following table displays the average importance of each of the 31 included Council
services and facilities, with the metropolitan Melbourne average as recorded in the 2024
Governing Melbourne research conducted independently by Metropolis Research in January
2024 using the same door-to-door, in-person interview methodology.

The table provides the average importance score, as well as the 95% confidence interval
around each average score. This is the range within which it is 95% certain the true average
is located.

The table also includes the last three years’ results.

At the left-hand side, the table refers to whether the individual services and facilities were of
average importance (i.e., within the confidence interval of the average of all services and
facilities), or whether the service or facility was of measurably higher or measurably lower
importance.

The average importance of the 31 included services and facilities was 9.1 out of 10 this year,
up one percent on the 2023 average importance of 9.0.

Importance varied from a high of 9.5 for the regular garbage service, to a low of 8.5 for
Council’s printed newsletter Moving Ahead.

It is noted that this was a similar range of average importance as recorded last year.
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This result highlights the fact that the community consider all the services and facilities
provided by Council to be important (8.5 or higher), although the waste and recycling services,
roads and traffic, parks and gardens, and footpaths, as well as health and human services,
tended to be the most important to the community.

The arts and cultural services and facilities, some of the communication services (Moving
Ahead), and parking enforcement were less important than other services, although
important none-the-less.

Importance of selected services and facilities

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and index score scale 0 - 10)

. o 2024 2024

Service/facility Number 2023 2022 2021 .
Lower Mean Upper Metro.
é Regular garbage collection 797 9.5 9.5 9.6 9.4 9.3 9.4 9.1
5 E Regular recycling 796 9.5 9.5 9.6 93 9.3 9.4 9.1
g E Green waste collection 794 9.4 9.5 9.6 9.3 9.2 93 8.9
2 ; Maintenance and repair of sealed local roads 796 9.3 94 95 9.0 9.0 9.1 9.0
8 5 Provision and maintenance of parks and gardens 795 93 93 94 90 90 91 8.9
® |Local traffic management 784 93 93 9.4 8.9 89 9.1 8.8
Footpath maintenance and repairs 796 9.2 9.3 9.4 8.9 89 9.0 8.8
Services for seniors 736 9.2 9.3 9.4 9.2 9.2 9.0 89
Services for people with disability 744 9.2 9.3 9.4 9.2 93 9.1 8.9
Services and programs for children 737 92 93 93 92 91 9.0 8.9
Health services for babies, infants and toddlers 755 92 92 93 92 92 91 n.a.
Hard rubbish collection 781 9.2 9.2 93 9.1 9.0 9.0 8.9
Services for young people 731 9.1 9.2 9.3 9.2 9.0 9.0 8.8
» Parking enforcement 784 9.1 9.2 9.3 8.6 8.2 8.4 8.5
E Public toilets 763 9.1 9.2 9.3 9.0 8.9 9.0 8.7
§ Provision and maintenance of street trees 797 9.1 9.2 93 8.9 8.9 8.8 8.7
3 |Melton Recycling Facility 769 91 92 92 91 91 91 88
g Library services 773 9.1 9.1 9.2 9.1 8.8 9.1 8.8
§ Animal management 759 9.0 9.1 912 8.9 8.8 8.9 8.7
Council activities promoting local business growth 741 9.0 9.1 9.1 8.8 8.6 8.8 8.4
Provision and maintenance of playgrounds 778 9.0 9.0 9.1 9.0 9.1 9.0 8.7
Public Spaces 762 859 9.0 9.1 8.8 87 na. n.a.
Council's website 767 89 9.0 9.1 838 87 89 8.6
Sports grounds and associated facilities 779 8.9 9.0 9.0 89 9.0 9.0 8.7
Access services through digital or online channels 709 8.8 89 9.0 8.7 8.7 8.8 n.a.
On and off road bike and / or walking paths 711 8.8 8.9 9.0 8.8 8.9 9.0 8.6
Recreation and Leisure Centres 765 8.8 8.9 9.0 9.0 8.9 9.0 8.6
Community centres / Neighbourhood houses 722 8.7 8.8 89 8.8 8.8 8.8 8.5
Provision of cultural events 689 8.4 85 8.7 8.7 8.6 8.6 8.4
Provision of community events and festivals 700 8.4 8.5 8.6 8.7 8.6 8.6 8.4
Moving Ahead (Council's printed newsletter) 704 8.4 8.5 8.6 83 7.7 8.4 8.1
Average importance of selected services 9.0 9.1 9.2 9.0 8.9 8.9 8.7

(*] 2024 metropolitan Melbourne average from Governing Melbourne
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Change in importance between 2023 and 2024

Of the 31 included services and facilities, the average importance of 22 increased, six
remained stable, and the average importance of three declined.

Most of these variations were not statistically significant or notable, however, attention is
drawn to the following:

e Measurably / notably more important in 2024 than in 2023 — included parking enforcement
(up 6%), footpath maintenance and repairs (up 4%), the maintenance and repair of sealed
local roads (up 4%), and local traffic management (up 4%).

e Marginally less important in 2024 than in 2023 — included the provision of community events
and festivals (down 2%), the provision of cultural activities (down 2%), and recreation and
leisure centres (down 1%).

Metropolis Research notes that these results confirm a relatively stable importance for most
of the services and facilities provided by Melton City Council this year, consistent with
previous years.

Comparison to metropolitan Melbourne average

Of the 31 services and facilities included in the survey this year, 28 were included in a format
that allowed for comparison to the metropolitan Melbourne average importance, as recorded
in the 2024 Governing Melbourne research.

The metropolitan Melbourne average importance of these 28 services and facilities was 8.7,
notably lower than the average importance of these 28 services and facilities in the City of
Melton (9.1).

The average importance of all 28 of these services and facilities was higher in the City of
Melton, , with attention drawn to the following:

e Measurably more important in the City of Melton than the metropolitan average — included
parking enforcement (7% higher), Council activities promoting local business growth (6%),
green waste collection (6%), provision and maintenance of street trees (5%), local traffic
management (5%), public toilets (5%), footpath maintenance and repairs (5%), and the
provision and maintenance of parks and gardens (5%).

Satisfaction with Council services and facilities

The following table displays the average satisfaction with each of the 31 included Council
services and facilities, with the metropolitan Melbourne average as recorded in the 2024
Governing Melbourne research conducted independently by Metropolis Research in January
2024 using the same door-to-door, in-person interview methodology.
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The table provides the average satisfaction score, as well as the 95% confidence interval
around each average score. This is the range within which it is 95% certain the true average
is located. The table also includes the last three years’ results.

At the left-hand side, the table refers to whether the individual services and facilities received
an average satisfaction score (i.e., within the confidence interval of the average of all services
and facilities), or whether the service or facility received a measurably higher or measurably
lower satisfaction score than the average of all 31 services and facilities (7.6 out of 10).

Satisfaction with selected Council services and facilities
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and index score scale 0 - 10)

. - 2024 2024
Service/facility Number 2023 2022 2021 .

Lower Mean Upper Metro.

- Green waste collection 793 8.7 8.8 8.9 8.5 8.5 8.7 8.1
2 g |Regular garbage collection 799 8.6 8.7 8.8 8.7 8.6 8.6 8.2
é E Regular recycling 774 8.5 86 87 8.6 8.6 8.6 8.2
CJ ] Library services 322 83 85 87 8.4 8.6 8.7 8.2
Hard rubbish collection 405 8.0 82 83 8.0 7.8 7.8 8.0
Provision of community events and festivals 191 7.8 80 83 7.9 7.4 7.8 7.9
Melton Recycling Facility 374 79 8.0 82 8.1 7.5 7.5 7.7
Provision of cultural events 176 7.6 7.9 8.1 7.7 7.3 7.6 7.9
Community centres / Neighbourhood houses 198 7.6 7.8 8.1 7.7 7.7 7.9 7.8
Sports grounds and associated facilities 338 7.6 7.8 8.0 7.8 7.7 7.9 79
Services for young people 109 7.5 7.8 8.1 7.0 6.8 7.5 7.5
Council's website 371 7.6 7.8 8.0 7.7 7.4 7.6 7.6

% Services for seniors 93 73 7.8 8.2 7.2 6.2 7.9 7.7
,ﬁ Animal management 643 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.8 7.4 7.6 7.7
; Access services through digital or online channels 255 75 7.7 79 7.5 7.4 7.9 n.a.
ﬁ Recreation and Leisure Centres 271 7.4 76 78 7.5 7.2 7.6 7.7
'3' Services for people with disability 67 7.0 75 81 6.5 6.3 73 7.4
S |provision and maintenance of playgrounds 381 7.3 7.5 7.7 7.4 7.4 7.7 7.8
Services and programs for children 129 7.2 7.5 7.8 7.5 7.0 8.2 7.6
Public Spaces 715 7.3 7.5 7.6 7.6 7.2 na. n.a.
Health services for babies, infants and toddlers 151 7.1 7.5 7.8 71 6.8 82 n.a.
Moving Ahead (Council’s printed newsletter) 559 7.3 7.4 7.6 7.5 6.7 7.2 7.5
Provision and maintenance of parks and gardens 772 7.2 7.3 7.5 7.2 7.2 7.5 7.9

On and off road bike and / or walking paths 284 7.1 7.3 7.5 7.6 7.3 7.6 7.4
Council activities promoting local business growth 605 7.1 7.2 7.4 7.4 6.8 7.1 7.4
Parking enforcement 745 7.0 7.1 7.3 7.3 6.5 6.9 7.2
Provision and maintenance of street trees 790 6.9 71 7.2 7.2 6.6 7.2 7.4
Footpath maintenance and repairs 788 6.8 69 7.1 7.0 6.4 6.7 7.3
Maintenance and repair of sealed local roads 797 6.7 68 7.0 6.8 6.0 6.4 7.0
Local traffic management 774 6.4 6.5 6.7 6.9 6.3 6.7 7.2
Public toilets 284 6.1 63 66 6.8 5.9 6.6 6.9
Average satisfaction with selected services 7.4 7.6 7.8 7.5 7.2 7.6 7.6

(*) 2024 metropolitan Melbourne average from Governing Melbourne
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The average satisfaction with the 31 included services and facilities was 7.6 this year, up one
percent on the 7.5 recorded last year, but similar to the result recorded in 2021 and 2020.

This remains a “very good” level of average satisfaction.

By way of comparison, the metropolitan Melbourne average satisfaction with services and
facilities remained stable this year at 7.6 out of 10, as recorded in the 2024 Governing
Melbourne. The western region councils’ average was also 7.6 out of 10 this year.

Metropolis Research notes that the average satisfaction with services and facilities tends to
remain relatively stable over time at a “very good” level. This reflects a strong finding that
the community (across metropolitan Melbourne) remains satisfied with the performance of
local government providing important services and facilities.

Naturally, within this relatively stable average satisfaction, the satisfaction with individual
services and facilities can vary significantly, both across metropolitan Melbourne as well as
within a municipality over time.

Average satisfaction with Council services and facilities
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
scale from 0 (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)

9
———
8 Western, 7.6
Melton, 7.6
Metro., 7.6
7 —_—
6
5
4
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It is noted that all but four of the 31 services and facilities recorded an average satisfaction
score that was higher than the satisfaction with Council’s overall performance (7.0), which
reflects well on the performance of Council providing most services and facilities.

The four services and facilities that recorded a satisfaction score equal to or lower than the
overall satisfaction with Melton City Council included public toilets (6.3 down from 6.8), local
traffic management (6.5 down from 6.9), the maintenance and repair of sealed local roads
(6.8 stable), and footpath maintenance and repairs (6.9 down from 7.0).
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Comparison to metropolitan Melbourne average

Of the 31 services and facilities included in the 2024 City of Melton survey, 28 were included
in a format that allowed for comparison to the metropolitan Melbourne results as recorded
in the Governing Melbourne research. Of these 28 services and facilities, 11 recorded higher
satisfaction in the City of Melton, four recorded identical, and 13 recorded lower satisfaction.

The following statistically significant variations were noted:

Measurably higher satisfaction in the City of Melton than metropolitan average — included
green waste collection (6% higher in City of Melton), regular recycling (4%), and the regular

garbage collection (4%).

e Measurably lower satisfaction in the City of Melton than the metropolitan average —
included local traffic management (7% lower in City of Melton), public toilets (6%), the
provision and maintenance of parks and gardens (5%), and street trees (4%).

Percentage difference between Melton and metropolitan Melbourne average
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Percentage increase / decrease)
-60% -40% -20% 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Green waste collection 6%
Regular recycling 4%
Regular garbage collection 4%
Services for young people 3%
Library services 3%
Melton Recycling Facility 3%
Council's website 2%
Hard rubbish collection 2%
Provision of community events and festivals 2%
Community Centres / Neighbourhood Houses 1%
Services for people with disability 1%
Services for seniors 0%
Provision of cultural events 0%
Animal management 0%
Council's printed newsletter 0%
Sports grounds and associated facilities -1%
Services and programs for children -1%
Parking enforcement -1%
Recreation and Leisure Centres -1%

On and off road bike and / or walking paths -1%
Maintenance and repair of sealed local roads -2%
Council activities promoting business growth -2%

Footpath maintenance and repairs -3%
Provision and maintenance of playgrounds -3%
Provision and maintenance of street trees -4%
Provision and maintenance of parks and gardens -5%
Public toilets -6%

Local traffic management 7%
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Change in satisfaction between 2023 and 2024

Of the 31 included services and facilities, 16 recorded an increase in satisfaction this year, six
recorded stable satisfaction, and nine recorded lower satisfaction this year.

Most of these variations were not statistically significant or notable, however attention is
drawn to the following notable or measurable variations this year:

e Notably higher satisfaction this year — included services for people with disability (up 11%),
services for young people (up 8%), and services for seniors (up 6%). These increases were not
statistically significant given the relatively small sample size for these services.

e Measurably lower satisfaction this year — included public toilets (down 4%), and local traffic
management (down 4%).

Percentage change in satisfaction 2023 to 2024
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

(Percentage increase / decrease)
-60% -40% -20% 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Services for people with disability T 0 11%
Services for young people l ] 8%
Services for seniors -j 6%
Health services for babies, infants, toddlers l 0 3%
Green waste collection -:I 2%
Provision of cultural events -J 2%
Access services through digital or online channels -] 2%
Hard rubbish collection -] 2%
Provision of community events and festivals T o2
Community Centres / Neighbourhood Houses l 1%
Provision and maintenance of parks and gardens l 1%
Council's website T 1%
Provision and maintenance of playgrounds | 1%
Recreation and Leisure Centres | Bt
Maintenance and repair of sealed local roads 1 1%
Library services l 1%
Regular recycling T 0%
Regular garbage collection T 0%
Sports grounds and associated facilities 0% 1
Services and programs for children 0% ]
Council's printed newsletter 0% l
Melton Recycling Facility 0% |
Footpath maintenance and repairs -1% T
Provision and maintenance of street trees -1% ]
Parking enforcement -1% [
Animal management -1% i
Public Spaces -2% i
Council activities promoting business growth -2% i
On and off road bike and / or walking paths -3% E-
Local traffic management -4% I:
Public toilets -4% E
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Change in satisfaction between 2015/17 and 2024

The following graph provides a longer-term view of change in satisfaction with Council
services and facilities.

The graph provides the percentage change in satisfaction between the three-year average
from 2015 to 2017 compared to the 2024 results.

Over this longer-term, it is noted that there were significant improvements in satisfaction
with hard rubbish (up 9%), the recycling facility (up 5%), the provision of community events
and festivals (up 5%), Moving Ahead (up 4%), and footpaths (up 4%).

Satisfaction with the services for babies, children, and seniors all remain lower than the 2015
to 2017 average (although not measurably lower). Satisfaction with public toilets (down 4%)
has declined measurably from the 2015 to 2017 average, all due to the decline this year.

Percentage change in satisfaction 2015-2017 t0 2024
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Percentage increase / decrease)
-60% -40% -20% 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Hard rubbish collection ] 1 9%
Melton Recycling Facility -:I 5%
Provision of community events and festivals .j 5%
Council's printed newsletter -] 4%
Footpath maintenance and repairs -:I 4%
Parking enforcement -II 3%
Animal management .] 2%
Provision of cultural events -] 2%
Council activities promoting business growth | 2%
Council's website ] 2%
Green waste collection ] 1%
Provision and maintenance of street trees ] 1%
Provision and maintenance of playgrounds ] 0%
Community Centres / Neighbourhood Houses 0% 1
Regular recycling 0% ]
Services for young people -1% 1
Maintenance and repair of sealed local roads -1% [
Regular garbage collection -1% 1
Provision and maintenance of parks and gardens -1% 1
Local traffic management -1% [
Services for people with disability -1% [
On and off road bike and / or walking paths -2% [
Library services -2% [
Recreation and Leisure Centres -3% E
Sports grounds and associated facilities -3% E
Public toilets -4% E
Services for seniors -4% E
Services and programs for children -6% IZ
Health services for babies, infants, toddlers -8% I:
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Percentage satisfaction results

The following table provides a breakdown of these results into the proportion of respondents
(providing a score) who were “very satisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at eight or more out of
10), those who were “neutral to somewhat satisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at five to seven),
and those who were “dissatisfied” (i.e., rated satisfaction at less than five).

Metropolis Research draws attention to the fact that more than half of the respondents who
provided a score were “very satisfied” with all but six of the 31 services and facilities.

Satisfaction with selected Council services and facilities

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)

‘ - Neutral to Very Can't
Service/facility Dissatisfied somewhat o Total
satisfied satisfied  say

Green waste collection 1% 17% 82% 8 801
Regular garbage collection 2% 17% 81% 2 801
Regular recycling 1% 21% 79% 27 801
Library services 1% 21% 78% 1 323
Hard rubbish collection 3% 25% 72% 5 409
Melton Recycling Facility 3% 26% 71% 2 377
Provision of community events and festivals 2% 29% 69% 6 197
Council's website 4% 30% 66% 3 374
Provision of cultural events 5% 30% 65% 2 178
Sports grounds and associated facilities 5% 32% 63% 2 340
Services for seniors 7% 31% 62% 0 93
Health services for babies, infants and toddlers 9% 30% 61% 6 157
Services for people with disability 9% 31% 60% 2 69
Animal management 4% 37% 59% 158 801
Recreation and Leisure Centres 5% 37% 58% 2 273
Community centres / Neighbourhood houses 2% 41% 57% 3 201
Provision and maintenance of playgrounds 7% 36% 57% 3 384
Access services through digital or online channels 3% 40% 57% 2 257
Services for young people 3% 40% 57% 4 113
Services and programs for children 4% 40% 56% 1 130
Moving Ahead (Council's printed news|etter) 6% 42% 52% 242 801
Public Spaces 6% 42% 52% 86 801
Provision and maintenance of street trees 12% 38% 51% 11 801
Provision and maintenance of parks and gardens 8% 42% 51% 29 801
Parking enforcement 10% 40% 50% 56 801
On and off road bike and / or walking paths 7% 44% 49% 3 287
Council activities promoting local business growth 8% 44% 49% 196 801
Footpath maintenance and repairs 13% 40% 47% 13 801
Maintenance and repair of sealed local roads 14% 41% 45% 4 801
Local traffic management 15% 48% 37% 27 801
Public toilets 18% 48% 34% 2 286
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More than three-quarters of respondents were “very satisfied” with the green waste
collection (82%), regular garbage collection (81%), regular recycling (79%), and library services
(78%).

There were six services and facilities with which 10% of more of those providing a score were
“dissatisfied”, including public toilets (18% up from 14%), local traffic management (15%),
maintenance and repair of sealed local roads (14%), footpath maintenance and repairs (13%),
street trees (12%), and parking enforcement (10%).

Satisfaction by respondent profile

The following table provides the average satisfaction with all 31 services and facilities by
respondent profile, including age structure, gender, and language spoken at home.

Whilst there was variation in satisfaction for individual services and facilities observed by
respondent profile (as discussed in more detail in the following individual services section), in
general terms the following was observed:

e Age structure —young adults (aged 18 to 34 years) and to a lesser extent senior citizens (aged
75 years and over) tended to be more satisfied than average, whilst middle-aged adults (aged
45 to 59 years) tended to be marginally less satisfied than average.

e Gender - female respondents tended to be marginally more satisfied than male respondents.

e language spoken at home — respondents from multilingual households tended to be notably
more satisfied than respondents from English speaking households.
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Average satisfaction with selected Council services and facilities
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

(Number and index score scale 0 - 10)

Servi il Young Adult M'dd;e' Older Senior Mole F / English  Multi-
ervice/facility adults "' udge” adults citizens 0 oo speaking lingual
aaulits

Maintenance & repair of sealed local roads 7.2 6.8 6.3 64 7.0 6.9 6.8 6.5 7.2

Footpath maintenance and repairs 73 69 64 6.6 6.6 7.0 6.9 6.6 7.2
Regular garbage collection 85 87 85 9.0 9.0 8.7 8.7 85 89
Regularrecycling 86 86 85 B89 8.9 8.6 8.6 8.4 8.9
Green waste collection 88 88 86 838 89 88 87 85 9.0

Provision & maintenance of parks & gardens 7.6 7.1 70 73 79 7.3 7.4 7.2 7.5
Provision and maintenance of street trees 74 71 6.5 6.8 6.7 7.1 7.0 7.0 7.2

Parking enforcement 74 70 6.8 7.3 75 7.2 7.1 6.9 7.4
Local traffic management 6.9 6.4 6.1 6.7 6.3 6.5 6.6 6.4 6.7
Animal management 7.9 7.5 7.5 7.7 7.5 7.7 7.7 7.6 7.8

Moving Ahead (Council's printed newsletter) 76 75 70 76 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.2 7.7
Council activities promoting business growth 7.4 7.2 6.8 7.1 7.4 7.1 7.3 6.9 7.5

Public Spaces 76 7.2 75 786 7.5 7.4 7.5 73 7.9
Council's website 81 7.7 7.5 7.6 8.0 7.7 7.8 7.6 8.0
Access services via digital/online channels 81 76 73 6.8 7.8 76 7.7 7.4 79
Libraryservices 8.5 8.5 8.4 83 8.6 8.5 8.6 83 8.7
Melton Recycling Facility 8.3 79 8.0 7.7 8.0 7.9 8.2 7.9 8.2
Hard rubbish collection 83 381 83 80 8.2 81 8.2 81 83
Public toilets 6.7 6.1 59 64 6.6 6.5 6.2 6.3 6.4
Recreation and Leisure Centres 7.6 7.7 7.4 7.3 79 76 7.7 75 7.7
Sports grounds and associated facilities 80 76 79 76 8.0 7.6 8.0 7.9 7.8

Provision and maintenance of playgrounds 7.9 7.2 7.6 6.9 83 7.4 7.6 7.4 7.6
Community centres / Neighbourhood houses 8.2 7.8 7.6 7.3 7.3 7.5 8.1 7.7 8.0
Health services for babies, infants, toddlers 7.7 7.2 75 83 8.0 7.7 7.3 7.2 7.6

Services and programs for children 80 7.1 65 73 7.7 7.4 7.5 7.4 7.5
Services foryoung people 7.9 7.7 8.0 7.2 6.9 7.7 7.9 7.7 7.9
Services forseniors 86 75 71 7.1 8.0 8.0 7.6 74 8.1
Services for people with disability 78 71 71 74 8.1 73 7.7 75 7.4
On and off road bike and / or walking paths 7.4 7.3 6.9 7.1 7.4 7.2 7.4 7.2 7.3
Provision of cultural events 8.1 7.6 7.7 7.9 8.2 7.5 8.3 7.7 7.9

Provision of community events and festivals 81 80 79 8.1 8.4 8.0 8.1 7.9 8.1

Average satisfaction 79 75 74 75 7.7 76 7.7 74 7.8

Total respondents 273 267 117 89 55 389 407 396 397
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Importance and satisfaction cross tabulation

The following graph provides a cross-tabulation of the average importance of each of the 31

include

d Council services and facilities against the average satisfaction with each service.

Services and facilities located in the top right-hand quadrant are therefore more important
than average, and of higher-than-average satisfaction. Conversely services in the bottom
right-hand quadrant are those of most concern as they are of higher-than-average
importance but received lower than average satisfaction scores.

Some k

ey points of interest in the graph include the following:

Kerbside collection services — all four kerbside collection services reported significantly higher
than average satisfaction scores, and all were of above average importance.

Community services — all five of these community services (services for babies, children,
youth, seniors, and persons with disability) were of higher-than-average importance and all
received an average, or higher-than-average satisfaction, which was a notable improvement
on recent years results.

Library services — consistent with results observed elsewhere over numerous years,
satisfaction with the library services was measurably higher than the average satisfaction,
although the local library services were of only somewhat higher than average importance.

Arts, culture, recreation, and leisure — both of these services and facilities were of slightly
lower than average importance but received higher than average satisfaction scores.

Communication services — two of the three communication services were of lower-than-
average importance, which was consistent with results observed elsewhere over an extended
period, however, the website was of higher-than-average importance. All three
communication services received average or slightly higher-than-average satisfaction scores.

Transport related services — both traffic management and roads were of higher-than-average
importance, but both received notably than average satisfaction scores. Traffic management
and road maintenance and repairs remain again this year within the top three issues
nominated by respondents to address the City of Melton ‘at the moment’.

Services and facilities of most concern — the services and facilities of most concern in 2024
were public toilets, local traffic management, roads, footpaths, street trees, and parking
enforcement. Of note was that the community services (discussed above) were no longer
services of concern, recovering ground lost in recent years.
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Importance of and satisfaction with Council services
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Index score scale 0 - 10)

9.0
8.8 N Green wastey
Recycling4Garbage
Libra
85 %
8.3 1 Hard rubbish
80 Community events:. Recycling Facility
Cultural eventsa Comm. centies Sports grounds ;(outh services .
7.8 + “Website aSeniors services
c Online channels AAnimal mgt
-%, Recreatio Disability services
g3 Newsletter Public Spacds - Children¥alth services
= 73 Bike paths g Services  +parks
(%] - L
Business growth ¢ parking enforcement
7.0 Street trees
’ mFootpath
+Roads
6.8 .
65 i Traffic mgt
Public toilets
6.3 -
6.0
8.0 83 8.5 8.8 9.0 9.3 9.5 9.8

Importance

Satisfaction by broad service areas

The breakdown of services and facilities into these broad service areas is as follows:

e Infrastructure — includes provision and maintenance of street trees, and public toilets.

e Waste and recycling services — includes regular garbage collection, regular recycling, green
waste collection, Melton Recycling Facility, and hard rubbish collection.

e Recreation and culture services — includes public spaces, library services, recreation and
leisure centres, sports grounds and associated facilities, provision and maintenance of
playgrounds, community centres / neighbourhood houses, provision of cultural events, and
provision of community events and festivals.

e Community services — includes health services for babies, infants and toddlers, services and
programs for children, services for young people, services for seniors, and services for people
with disability.

e Enforcement —includes parking enforcement, and animal management.

e Communication — includes Moving Ahead {Council’s printed newsletter), Council’s website,
and access services through digital or online channels.
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e Transportinfrastructure —includes the maintenance and repair of sealed local roads, footpath
maintenance and repairs, local traffic management, and on and off-road bike and / or walking
paths.

e Parks and gardens — include the provision and maintenance of parks and gardens.

e Business growth — includes Council activities promoting local business growth.

The average satisfaction with five of the nine broad service areas increased this year, with a
notable increase for community services (up 6%).

This increase in satisfaction with the community services was a standout positive result from
the survey this year, with increases in satisfaction for services for people with disahility (up
11%), services for young people (up 8%), health services for babies, infants, and toddlers (up
3%), the four largest increases in satisfaction with any of the 31 included services and facilities
this year.

There were small declines in satisfaction with infrastructure (down 3%), which was mostly the
four percent decline in satisfaction with public toilets.

Satisfaction by broad service areas
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from 0 (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)

10

MmiE
., —— [l

7.4 37
I@

20232024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024

Waste and | Recreation | Communi- |[Community Enforcement Parks and | Business
recycling |and culture| cation services

The following graph provides a comparison of satisfaction with these nine broad service areas
against the metropolitan Melbourne average, as recorded in the 2024 Governing Melbourne.

e Higher satisfaction in the City of Melton — included waste and recycling (4% higher),
recreation and culture (1% higher), and communication services (1% higher).

e Lower satisfaction in the City of Melton — included parks and gardens (6% lower),
infrastructure (6% lower), transport infrastructure (3% lower), business growth (2% lower),
and enforcement (1% lower).
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Satisfaction by broad service areas

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

scale from 0O (very dissatisfied) to 10 (very satisfied)
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Importance of and satisfaction with Council services
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
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Satisfaction by Council service groupings

The following section of the report provides a more detailed examination of the results for
each of the 31 included services and facilities, grouped into the three Council divisions of
Community Services (12 services and facilities), Corporate Services (7), and Planning and
Environment (12).

Satisfaction with Community Services continued to increase again this year, from the
unusually low 7.1 out of 10 recorded in 2021 during the pandemic, to 7.7 this year.

Satisfaction with the Corporate Services (down 1%) and the Planning and Environment (down
1%) services and facilities both remained essentially stable this year, and at “very good” levels.

Satisfaction by Coundil division
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from 0O {very dissatisifed) to 10 (very satisfied)

10
9
B 5 0 B gy B 6 ) g B
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
NES | 20ss | |21 | 2022 | 2o | |20 | 022 | a0 |
2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024
Community services Corporate services Planning and Environment

Current issues for the City of Melton

Respondents were asked:

“Can you please list what you consider to be the top three issues for the City of Melton at the
moment?”

Respondents were againin 2024, asked to nominate what they considered to be the top three
issues for the City of Melton ‘at the moment’.

A little less than two-thirds (60% down from 65%) of respondents nominated an average of
approximately two issues each.
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It is important to bear in mind that these responses are not to be read only as a list of
complaints about the performance of Council, nor do they reflect only services, facilities, and
issues within the remit of Melton City Council.

Many of the issues nominated by respondents were suggestions or preferences for future
actions rather than solely complaints about prior actions, and many were issues that were
principally the responsibility of the state government. These results are important as they
highlight areas for potential increased advocacy efforts on behalf of the community.

Metropolis Research also notes that some of the issues nominated by respondents were
broader social, economic, and environmental issues existing in the broader (beyond Melton)
community.

For example, issues around the cost of living have become more notable in results in several

municipalities this year, and these issues can often result in lower general sentiment in the
community, which can impact on overall satisfaction with Council.

Cleaning and maintenance

Development

EV charging points

Parks and gardens

Health and medical
Dumped rubbish

Infrastructure | Park| n
Bike and walking paths
Sports and recreation
Public toilets

Streecjn:mjg;:e““’é“é"gﬁg.tes
Safety_and crime
Waste Road

Children's activities

Education

Community services

Street cleaning

Metropolis Research notes that the most common issues to address for the City of Melton
this year largely remain consistent with those from previous years, including traffic
management, street trees, road maintenance and repairs, parks and gardens, safety, policing,
and crime, rubbish and waste issues, and public transport related issues.
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Top three issues for the City of Melton at the moment

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

(Number and percent of total respondents)

Issue 2024 2023 2022 2021 2024

Number Percent Metro.*

Traffic management 142 18% 25% 26% 22% 14%
Street trees 76 9% 5% 4% 4% 6%
Roads (including roadworks) 61 8% 13% 13% 10% 7%
Parks, gardens and open space 59 7% 12% 9% 7% 6%
Safety, policing and crime 52 6% 8% 9% 6% 2%
Footpath maintenance and repairs 44 5% 5% 5% 4% 4%
Rubbish and waste issues incl. garbage 43 5% 4% 2% 4% 6%
Public transport 42 5% 3% 1% 3% 1%
Parking 34 4% 4% 5% 5% 7%
Health and medical services 30 4% 6% 7% 3% 1%
Children's activities and facilities 18 2% 3% 2% 2% 1%
Street cleaning and maintenance 17 2% 2% 1% 1% 3%
Council rates 16 2% 3% 2% 2% 6%
General infrastructure (e.g. internet, electricity) 16 2% 2% 4% 1% 1%
Public toilets 16 2% 1% 1% 1% 0%
Education and schools 15 2% 4% 3% 0% 0%
Communication and provision of information 14 2% 2% 4% 2% 2%
Street lighting 14 2% 4% 3% 4% 2%
Cleanliness and general maintenance of area 13 2% 3% 6% 3% 3%
Hard rubbish collection 10 1% 1% 2% 2% 1%
Shops, restaurants and entertainment venues 10 1% 2% 1% 2% 1%
Animal management 7 1% 1% 1% 1% 2%
Cycling and walking paths and tracks 7 1% 0% 3% 1% 1%
EV charging points 6 1% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Nature strip issues 6 1% 1% 1% 1% 0%
Sports, recreation facilities 6 1% 1% 3% 3% 1%
Beautification of area / liveability 5 1% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Building, planning, housing and development 5 1% 1% 2% 3% 2%
Elderly services and facilities 5 1% 1% 2% 1% 2%
Ilegal rubbish dumping 5 1% 1% 1% 2% 1%
Community services quality and provision 4 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Drains maintenance and repairs 4 0% 1% 1% 1% 1%
More resources to older / rural areas 4 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Recycling collection 4 0% 0% 1% 1% 1%
Upkeep of private property 4 0% 0% 0% 0% 1%
All other issues (29 separately identified issues) 0% 8% 10% 6% 14%
Total responses 814 1,042 1,158 905 765
Respondents identifying at least one issue 479 521 536 482 391
(60%) (65%) (70%) (60%)  (50%)

(*) 2024 metropolitan Melbourne average from Governing Melbourne
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Change in issues between 2023 and 2024

The following variations of note were observed between 2023 and 2024:
s Notable increase in 2024 — included street trees (9% up from 5%).

e Notable decrease in 2024 — included traffic management (18% down from 25%), road
maintenance and repairs including roadworks (8% down from 13%), and parks, gardens, and
open spaces (7% down from 12%).

Metropolis Research draws particular attention to the issue of traffic management, which
despite a significant decline this year, remains notably above the metropolitan Melbourne
average, and the highest result recorded by Metropolis Research for any municipality this
year.

Metropolis Research notes that with the exception of the City of Melton, the proportion of
respondents nominating traffic management has not returned to pre-pandemic levels.

Traffic management related issues remain the most significant issue for the City of Melton
community and appears to be the largest single issue negatively impacting on community
satisfaction with the overall performance of Melton City Council.

Respondents who nominated traffic managementissues were, on average, seven percent less
satisfied with Council’s overall performance than the municipal average (6.3 compared to
7.0). This negative impact was compounded by the fact that 142 of the 801 respondents
nominated the issue.

Comparison to the metropolitan Melbourne average

When compared to the results from the 2024 Governing Melbourne research, which was
conducted independently by Metropolis Research in January 2024, the following variations of
note were observed:

e Notably more prominent in Melton — included traffic management (18% compared to 14%),
street trees (9% compared to 6%), safety, policing, and crime (6% compared to 2%), public
transport (5% compared to 1%), and health and medical services (4% compared to 1%).

e Notably less prominent in Melton — included parking (4% compared to 7%) and Council rates,
fees, and charges (2% compared to 6%).

Metropolis Research draws particular attention to the higher proportion of respondents
nominating safety, policing, and crime issues in the City of Melton, which has been observed
in several other municipalities across metropolitan Melbourne this year.

MW% Page 71 of 84

Page 280



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL 21 OCTOBER 2024

ltem 12.2 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
Appendix 1 Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Findings Report

Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

Perception of safety in the public areas of the City of Melton

Respondents were asked:
“On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), how safe do you feel?”

Respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate how safe they felt in 10 situations and
locations across the City of Melton.

This was a return to the full suite of perception of safety variables, after the 2023 survey
included only the two core measures, covering the perception of safety in the public areas

The average perception of safety in all situations and locations remained essentially the same
as the 2022 average, up one percent from 7.0 to 7.1 out of 10.

There was significant variation in the perception of safety observed across the 10 situations
and locations, with respondents reporting a measurably higher than average perception of
safety in the public areas of the municipality during the day, at home alone after dark, and at
local community events.

Respondents felt measurably less safe than average in the public areas of the municipality at
night, as well as at Lake Caraline at night.

These results were consistent with results recorded in previous surveys.

Perception of safety in public areas
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from O (very unsafe) to 10 (very safe)
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The following graph provides a breakdown of these results into the proportion of respondents
who felt “very safe” (i.e., rated safety at eight or more), those who felt “neutral to somewhat
safe” (i.e., rated safety at five to seven), and those who felt “unsafe” (i.e., rated safety at less

than five).
Perception of safety in public areas [ Very safe (8 - 10)
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey [ Neutral to somewhat safe
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It is noted that more than half of the respondents providing a safety score felt “very safe” in
the public areas of the City of Melton during the day, at local community events, in and around
Caroline Springs shopping centre, in and around Melton Town Centre, at home alone after
dark, and in and around their local shopping area.

By contrast, 23% of respondents felt “unsafe” in the public areas of the City of Melton at night.

The following graph provides a comparison of the perception of safety in public areas of the
municipality during the day, at night, in and around local shopping area, and travelling on /
waiting for public transport against the metropolitan Melbourne average, as recorded in
Governing Melbourne.

Governing Melbourne was conducted independently by Metropolis Research using the same
door-to-door, in-person methodology in January 2024.

Metropolis Research notes that the perception of safety in all four of these situation and
locations was measurably lower in the City of Melton than the metropolitan Melbourne and
growth area councils’ average.

The perception of safety in all four locations and situations was somewhat to notably lower
in the City of Melton than the western region councils’ average, again as recorded in
Governing Melbourne.
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The difference in the perception of safety in the City of Melton compared to the metropolitan
Melbourne average was largest in relation to the perception of safety in public areas at night,
which was 10% lower in the City of Melton.

Perception of safety in public areas of the City of Melton
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
scale from O (very unsafe) to 10 (very safe)
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Reasons for feeling less safe:

There were 164 comments received from respondents who felt “unsafe” in the public areas
of the municipality, up from the unusually low 125 received last year.

These comments have been broadly categorised as outlined in the following table, with the
most common concerns this year being focused on the perception of crime, including theft,
robbery, and violence).

Metropolis Research notes the increase in concern around property crime this year, and the
decline in concerns around various types of people.

This trend has been observed in several other municipalities across metropolitan Melbourne
this year, which appear to reflect crime statistics which do show an increase in property
related crime, as cost-of-living pressures appear to have increased.
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Reasons for feeling unsafe in public areas of the City of Melton
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of responses from respondents rating safety less than five)

Reason 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Number Percent

Crime (theft, robbery, violence, etc) / incidents 98 60% 48% 18% 36% 19%
Concerns about various types of people 22 13% 13% 29% 23% 23%
Drug and alcohol issues 13 8% 7% 3% 5% 13%
Lighting 12 7% 10% 8% 9% 14%
Image / feel of place and news reports 6 4% 2% 6% 5% 2%
Police presence 4 2% 4% 21% 15% 14%
Public transport safety 4 2% 3% 3% 1% 2%
Traffic related 3 2% 5% 2% 2% 2%
General safety 2 1% 8% 8% 5% 10%
Other 0 0% 0% 2% 1% 2%
Total 164 100% 125 227 200 111

Sense of community

Respondents were asked:

“On a scale of O (strongly disagree) to 10 (strongly agree) where 5 is neutral, please rate your
agreement with the following statements regarding the local community.”

Respondents were again in 2024, asked to rate their agreement or disagreement with
statements about the local sense of community, Council engagement with the community,
and some aspects relating to public transport.

The average and percentage agreement with the statements are summarised in the following
graphs, and then discussed in detail in the following sections.

The average agreement with the 18 statements remained stable this year at 7.6 out of 10.
This maintains the significant five percent increase recorded last year. This result of the
maintenance of improvements recorded last year was consistent with the general theme
developed throughout this report, that being stable satisfaction with Melton City Council at

historically high levels.

The average agreement with these statements varied from a low of 6.8 out of 10 for “there is
public transport that goes where | need to go”, to a high of 8.0 for “the Melton community is
welcoming and supportive of people from diverse cultures and backgrounds”. This basic
pattern of average agreement was consistent with previous years.
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Agreement with selected statements regarding the local communit
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
scale from 0 (strongly disagree) to 10 (strongly agree)
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Metropolis Research also suggests that some of the improvement in the sense of community
in the City of Melton recorded last year (and generally maintained this year) may result from
the improving community sentiment moving away from the COVID-19 pandemic, which may
have resulted in increased community engagement through 2023, as well as the higher
proportion of newer residents in the sample this year, reflecting new housing development
across many parts of the municipality after COVID-19.

Overall, these results certainly suggest a strong and generally stable sense of community in
the City of Melton, which is a positive result for a growth area municipality experiencing
significant population growth.

The following graph provides a breakdown of these results into the proportion of respondents
who “strongly agreed” (i.e., rated agreement at eight or more), those who were “neutral to
somewhat agreed” (i.e., rated agreement at five to seven), and those who “disagreed” (i.e.,
rated agreement at less than five).

It is noted that approximately half or more of the respondents providing a score “strongly
agreed” with each statement, with 45% strongly agreeing that public transport goes where
they need it to go, and 46% strongly agreed that it’s an active community.

It is noted that 14% of respondents “disagreed” that public transport goes where they need
it to go, 12% disagreed that there are the local health services they need available locally, and
10% disagreed that there is access to affordable and efficient public transport.
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Agreement with selected statements regarding the local community

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Percent of respondents providing a response)
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Of the 18 statements included in this section of the survey this year, seven were included in
Governing Melbourne was conducted
independently by Metropolis Research in January 2024, using the same door-to-door, in-

the 2024 Governing Melbourne research.

person interview methodology.

The average agreement with five of the six statements was essentially the same as the
metropolitan Melbourne average, although it is noted that agreement that respondents’ feel

part of the local community was measurably (3%) lower in the City of Melton.

Agreement with selected statements regarding the local community
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Surve
scale from 0O (strongly disagree) to 10 (strongly agree)

10
9
s [ b [ B2 ) B2 Gal ] G (] G O e B
L] | L] (] L | [ B n ] n [ ] 2 |
7
6
5 F } $ ¥ y i ¥ 4 ¥ y } ¥ $ ¥ |
4
3
2
1
0 B 3 3 3 B 3 3 3 3 B 3 3
City of | metro. | City of |metro. | City of | metro. | City of | metro. | City of | metro.| City of | metro.| City of | metro.
Melton| Melb. IMelton| Melb. |Melton| Melb. Melton| Melb. |Melton| Melb. |[Melton| Melb. |Melton] Melb.
Welcome Child-friendly' | 'Age-friendly' | Accessible & Could turn Community is |Feel part of the
diverse community community inclusive for |neighbours for vibrant & local
ultures’ peopl people with help engaging community
disability

et

Page 77 of 84

Page 286



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL 21 OCTOBER 2024

ltem 12.2 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
Appendix 1 Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Findings Report

Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

Respondent profile

The following section of this report provides details as to the demographic profile of the
respondents to the survey. These results show that the survey methodology has obtained a
sample of residents that is both highly consistent over time, as well as being reflective of the
underlying population of the City of Melton.

Age structure

The sample of respondents was weighted by age and gender to reflect the 2021 Census
results. Metropolis Research notes that the unweighted sample obtained via the door-to-
door methodology very closely reflected the underlying population, reinforcing the strength
of the door-to-door methodology in representing the views of the Melton community.

Age group
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)

2024 (unweighted) 2024
2023 2022 2021 2020

A
g€ Number Percent (weighted)
Young adults (18 - 34 years) 270 34% 34% 34% 34% 34% 34%
Adults (35 - 49 years) 267 33% 33% 33% 33% 24% 24%
Middle-aged adults (50 - 59 years) 87 11% 15% 15% 15% 24% 24%
Older adults (60 - 69 years) 99 12% 11% 11% 11% 14% 14%
Senior citizens (70 years and over) 78 10% 7% 7% 7% 4% 4%
Not stated 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 801 100% 801 806 800 800 804

Gender

The sample of respondents was weighted by age and gender to reflect the 2021 Census

results.
Gender
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)
2024 (unweighted) 2024
Gender i 2023 2022 2021 2020

Number Percent (weighted)
Man 439 55% 49% 49% 49% 49% 49%
Woman 357 45% 51% 51% 51% 51% 51%
Non-binary 4 0% 1% 1% 0% 0% 0%
Prefer to self-describe 1 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Prefer not to say 0 0 1 1 0 0
Total 801 100% 801 806 800 800 804
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Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander

Consistent with the results recorded in previous years, two percent of respondents identified
as Aboriginal and / or Torres Strait Islander.

Household member identify as Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of respandents providing a response)

2024
Response 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Number Percent
Yes 14 2% 1% 3% 1% 2% 1%
No 738 98% 99% 97% 99% 98% 99%
Not stated 49 12 16 14 22 17
Total 801 100% 806 800 800 804 804

Household member with disability

In 2024, nine percent of respondents were from households with a member with disability.
This result was somewhat lower than the long-term average since 2015 of 12%.

Household member with disability
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)

2024
Response 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Number Percent
Yes 74 9% 8% 16% 12% 17% 12%
No 714 91% 92% 84% 88% 83% 88%
Not stated 13 9 29 15 31 14
Total 801 100% 806 800 800 804 804

Household member identifying as LGBTIQA+

Consistent with historical results, two percent of respondents in 2024 identified as LGBTIQA+.

Household member identifying as LGBTIQA+
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)

2024
Response 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Number  Percent
Yes 16 2% 2% 4% 3% 1% 2%
No 762 98% 98% 96% 97% 99% 98%
Not stated 23 11 35 21 35 22

Total 801 100% 806 800 800 804 804
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Language spoken at home

In 2024, half of the respondents (who provided a response) reported that members of their
household spoke a language other than English at home, up from 40% last year, and above

the long-term average since 2015 of 37%.

Language spoken at home

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)

Response 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Number Percent

English 396 50% 60% 64% 66% 64% 62%
Punjabi 71 9% 7% 3% 3% 2% 3%
Hindi 64 8% 5% 3% 3% 4% 4%
Italian 20 3% 1% 3% 4% 3% 2%
Arabic 19 2% 2% 2% 1% 1% 2%
Tagalog (Filipino) 18 2% 3% 5% 3% 2% 2%
Vietnamese 17 2% 3% 1% 1% 1% 2%
Spanish 14 2% 1% 1% 1% 2% 2%
Maltese 13 2% 1% 3% 3% 3% 2%
Urdu 12 2% 2% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Sinhalese 10 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Tamil 10 1% 0% 0% 0% 1% 1%
Greek 9 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 2%
Persian 9 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Teluga 8 1% 1% 1% 1% 0% 0%
Malayalam 7 1% 0% 1% 1% 0% 0%
Mandarin 6 1% 0% 1% 1% 0% 1%
Nepali 6 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Bengali 5 1% 1% 0% 0% 1% 1%
Croatian 5 1% 0% 0% 2% 1% 1%
Macedonian 5 1% 1% 2% 1% 1% 2%
Samoan 5 1% 1% 1% 1% 0% 1%
French 4 1% 0% 0% 1% 1% 0%
Gujarati 4 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Maori 4 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Polish 4 1% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0%
Turkish 4 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 0%
Cantonese 3 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 1%
Chinese, n.f.d 3 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Ambharic 2 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Dutch 2 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
German 2 0% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0%
Tongan 2 0% 0% 0% 0% 1% 0%
Multiple 3 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 3%
All other languages 30 4% 3% 8% 7% 12% 9%
(30 separately identified)
Not stated 5 5 13 13 23 8
Total 801 100% 806 800 800 804 804

Page 80 of 84

/W%\/gz

Page 289



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL

ltem 12.2

2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

21 OCTOBER 2024

Appendix 1 Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Findings Report

Melton City Council — 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

Household structure

Consistent with the results recorded in previous years, a little more than half of the
respondents were from two-parent family households, including a mix of families with
children of all ages. The sample also includes 20% couple households without children, nine
percent one-parent families, seven percent sole person households, and six percent group

households.
Household structure
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)
Structure 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Number Percent
Two parent family total 451 57% 56% 57% 56% 58% 52%
youngest child 0 - 4 years 120 15% 18% 12% 16% 16% 15%
youngest child 5 - 12 years 155 20% 16% 19% 18% 18% 16%
youngest child 13 - 18 years 83 11% 10% 9% 12% 11% 10%
adult children only 93 12% 11% 17% 11% 13% 12%
One parent family total 72 9% 10% 9% 6% 8% 9%
youngest child 0 - 4 years 11 1% 2% 1% 2% 1% 2%
youngest child 5 - 12 years 5 1% 3% 1% 2% 2% 2%
youngest child 13 - 18 years 21 3% 2% 1% 1% 2% 2%
adult children only 35 4% 4% 5% 2% 3% 4%
Group household 45 6% 7% 7% 6% 4% 9%
Sole person household 52 7% 7% 6% 9% 8% 9%
Couple only household 161 20% 19% 19% 21% 20% 21%
QOther 9 1% 1% 1% 1% 2% 0%
Not stated 11 23 31 29 43 5
Total 801 100% 806 800 800 804 804

Business owner

Consistent with the 2023 result, seven percent of respondents were from households with a
member who owned or managed a business in the City of Melton.

Household member own / manage a business in the City of Melton

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)

2024
Response 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Number Percent
Yes 56 7% 7% 13% 13% 14% 9%
No 722 93% 93% 87% 87% 86% 91%
Not stated 23 16 42 30 42 8
Total 801 100% 806 800 800 804 804
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Housing situation

Consistent with the long-term average since 2017, approximately half (50% down from 54%)
of respondent households owned their home outright. There was a decrease this year in the
proportion of mortgagor households, and there were more rental households.

The housing situation is a factor in average satisfaction with Council, with rental households
measurably more satisfied with Council, and mortgagor households measurably less satisfied,
which is the case this year, with this factor a positive influence on overall satisfaction.

Housing situation

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)

2024
Situation 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Number  Percent

Own this home 392 50% 54% 45% 48% 39% 52%

Mortgagor (paying-off this home, 176 23% 26% 41% 39% 42% 32%

Renting this home 158 25% 19% 14% 11% 16% 16%

Insecure housing 14 2% 1% 0% 2% 3% 1%

Not stated 21 13 46 37 50 8

Total 801 100% 806 800 800 804 804
Period of residence

Consistent with the results recorded last year, a little less than two-thirds of the respondents
had lived in the City of Melton for less than 10 years, and 40% for 10 years or more.

Period of residence can be a small factor in overall satisfaction, as new residents report higher
levels of overall satisfaction with Council than long-term residents of 10 years or more.

Period of residence in the City of Melton

Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey
(Number and percent of respondents providing a response)

2024
Period 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Number Percent

Less than 1 year 94 12% 9% 2% 1% 2% 7%
1toless than 5 years 198 25% 30% 7% 9% 12% 19%
5 to less than ten years 187 24% 26% 23% 21% 21% 17%
Ten years or more 316 40% 35% 68% 69% 65% 57%
Not stated 6 4 26 24 35 1

Total 801 100% 806 800 800 804 804
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General comments

Respondents were asked:

“Do you have any further comments you would like to make?”

A total of 165 general comments were received from respondents to the survey this year, up
substantially on the unusually low 93 received last year.

The general comments have been broadly categorised, as outlined in the following table, with
the verbatim comments following in the main table.

Consistent with the results in previous years, the most common issues raised by respondents
in the general comments related to roads and traffic (18% of comments).

There were also comments received around a variety of specific Council services and facilities
(15%), safety, policing, and crime issues (7%), and waste management and cleanliness

comments (7%).

Summary of general comments
Melton City Council - 2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey

(Number and percent of total responses)

Comment 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Number Percent

Traffic and roads 30 18% 26% 14% 11% 10%
Council services and facilities 25 15% 11% 11% 18% 19%
Safety, policing and crime 12 7% 13% 7% 9% 3%
Waste management and cleanliness 11 7% 5% 10% 7% 10%
Parks, gardens and open spaces 10 6% 9% 9% 5% 6%
Public transport 10 6% 3% 6% 7% 6%
Schools / education 8 5% 0% 1% 0% 0%
Council governance and performance 7 4% 1% 3% 3% 4%
General positive 7 4% 5% 3% 7% 2%
Footpaths 6 4% 1% 3% 2% 7%
Rates 6 4% 3% 3% 3% 5%
Support for business 6 4% 0% 2% 0% 4%
Animal management 5 3% 0% 1% 2% 2%
Communication, consultation, responsiveness 5 3% 4% 7% 5% 2%
Tree maintenance 5 3% 4% 2% 4% 4%
Parking 4 2% 0% 6% 4% 4%
Comments on the survey 2 1% 2% 2% 2% 2%
General negative 2 1% 3% 0% 0% 0%
Cost of living 1 1% 3% 0% 0% 0%
Lighting 1 1% 0% 2% 1% 3%
Other 2 1% 2% 2% 7% 3%
Total 165 100% 93 126 256 124
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Appendix One: survey form
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'H

Melton City Council /]7 '
2024 Annual Community Satisfaction Survey WS "

Hi my name is from Metropolis Research and | am here on behalf
of Melton City Council.

Council is required, under government regulations to conduct a community
satisfaction survey every year, and we would welcome your feedback on the
performance of Council.

We are wondering if there is someone in your household who can
participate in the survey.

The survey will take approximately 15 mins to complete, is completely
confidential and voluntary.

Have you contacted Melton City Council in the last 12 months?

Yes (continue) 1 No (go to Q.4) 2
When you last contacted the Council, was it? (Please circle one only)

Visit in person 1 Website 6

Telephone (during office hours) 2 Social media 7

Telephone (after hours service) 3 Visitor Information Centre / Pop-Up 8

Mail 4 Community Portal 9

Email 5

On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), how satisfied were you with the following
aspects of service when you last contacted the Melton City Council.

1. Provision of information on the
Council and its services

2. Speed and efficiency of service 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99

3. Courtesy and professionalism of
staff

4, Access to relevant officer / area 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99

5. Satisfaction with the final outcome 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
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On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), please rate the importance to the community, and
your personal level of satisfaction with each of the following.
1. Maintenance and repair of Importance | O | 1 | 2| 3 | 4|5 /|6 |7 | 8|9 10|39
sealed local roads Satisfacon | 0 | 1 | 2 |3 | 4|5 |6 |7 |89 |10]ss
2. Footpath maintenance and Importance 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
repairs Satisfacion | 0 | 1 | 2 |3 | 4|5 |6 |7 |89 ]|10]9
Importance 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
3. Regular garbage collection
Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
Importance 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
4. Regular recycling
Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
Importance 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
5. Green waste collection
Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
6. Provision and maintenance Importance 0 1 213|456 7 89|10 9%
of parks and gardens Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
7. Provision and maintenance | !Mmportance | O | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |5 |6 |7 8| 9|10 9
of street trees Satisfaction | O | 1 | 2 |3 | 4|5 |6 |7 |8]| 9|10 99
Importance 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
8. Parking enforcement
Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 99
Importance 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
9. Local traffic management
Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 | 99
Importance 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 99
10. Animal management
Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 99
11. Moving Ahead (Council’s Importance 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 99
printed newsletter)
Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
12. Council activities Importance 0 1 2 3|4 |56 |7 |8]|9|10]|9
promoting local business
growth and development Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 99
13. Public Spaces (i.e., Melton | |mportance 0 1 2|3 4|56 |7 |89 |10] 9
amphitheatre, town centre,
outdoor built public spaces) Satisfaction 0 1 2 |34 |5|6 |7 |8 9|10 9
On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), please rate the importance of the following services
to the community, followed by your personal level of satisfaction with only the services you
or a family member has used in the past 12 months?
(Survey note: Ask importance, then use, then satisfaction only if service has been used in last 12 months)
Impartance 0 ‘ 1 ‘ 2 ‘ 3 | 4 ’ 5 6 ’ 7 ‘ 8 ‘ 9 ‘ 10 ‘ 99
1. Council’s website Used Yes No
Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 | 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
Import. 99
2. The ability to access Council mportance 0 ! 2 3 4 > 6 ’ 8 9|10
services through digital or Used Yes No
online channels Satisfaction | 0 ‘ 1 ‘ 2 ‘ 3| 4 ‘ 5| 6 ‘ 7 ‘ 8 ‘ 9 ‘ 10 ‘ 99
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Importance 0 ‘ 1 | 2 ‘ 3 ‘ ‘ 5 6 ‘ 7 ‘ 8 ‘ 9 | 10 ‘ 99
3. Library services Used Yes No
Satisfaction 0 1 | 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
Importance 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10| 99
4. Melton Recycling Facility Used Yes No
Satisfaction 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10| 99
Importance 0 1 | 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
5. Hard rubbish collection Used Yes No
Satisfaction 0 1 | 2 5 6 7 8 = | 10 | 99
Importance 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
6. Public toilets Used Yes No
Satisfaction 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10| 99
. ) | t 01 | 2 5/6 |7 8|9 | 10 | 99
7. Recreation and Leisure meerance
Centres (including Melton Used Yes No
ol satisfaction | 0 | 1 | 2 s|6|7 |89 | 10 | 9
Importance 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
8. Spgrts grou‘n'd's and Used Yes No
associated facilities
Satisfaction 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10| 99
Importance 0 1 | 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
9. Provision and maintenance
Used Yes No
of playgrounds
Satisfaction 0 1 | 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 99
Importance 0 1 2 5 6 7 b3 9 10 | 99
10. Community Centres /
Used
Neighbourhood Houses * Yes No
Satisfaction 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10| %9
Importance 0 1 | 2 5 6 7 g8 |9 | 10 | 99
11. Health services for babies, - Yes No
infants and toddlers
Satisfaction 0 1 | 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
12. Council provided services | Importance | 0 | 1 | 2 516|789 |10 9
and programs for chﬂdren Used Yes No
(e.g. Playgroups, Family Day
Care, Vacation Care) Satisfaction 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 | 10| 99
13. Council provided services | 'mpertance | 0 | 1 | 2 S|6 |78 |9 1009
fnr'young people {e.g. school Used Yes No
holiday programs, music & dance
events, youth sport) Satisfaction 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
14. Services for seniors Importance | O | 1 | 2 5| 6|78 9|10 9
(e.g. Planned Activity Group
programs, Seniors Clubs/ Used Yes No
activities, personal care or
don"lest‘ic assistance, property Satisfaction 0 1 2 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
maintenance, Men’s shed)
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15. Services for people with | Importance 1 ’ 2 ‘ 3 ‘ 4 | 516 ‘ 7 ‘ 8 | 9 ’ 10 | 99
dlSE!blht\/ (e.g. respite care, .- Yes No
holiday programs, support
services) Satisfaction 1 2 3 4 | 5 6 7 8 | 9 [ 10| 99
Importance 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
16. On and off road bike and /
or walking paths Used Yes No
(including shared pathways)
Satisfaction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
Importance 1 2 3 4 | i 6 7 8 | 9 10 | 99
17. Provision of cultural
events (e.g. NAIDOC, Harmony Used Yes No
Day, IDAHOBIT)
Satisfaction 1 2 3 4 | 5 6 7 8 | 9 10 | 99
Importance 1 /2|3 |4 |5|6/|7|8|9|10]|9
18. Provision of community
events and festivals (e.g. Used Yes No
Djerriwarrh Festival, Pop Culture) . .
Satisfaction 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
18a. How satisfied are you with the
representation of culture and diversity in 1 (2|3 |4, 5|6|7|8|9|10]|9
Council events
On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), can you please rate your satisfaction with the
following aspects of Council’s governance and leadership?
1. Council meetlpg its responsibilities 11213 a 5 7 g 9 |10/ 99
towards the environment
2. Counu! s performance in community 11213 a 5 7 8 o |10/ 99
consultation and engagement
3. Council’s representation, lobbying and
advocacy on behalf of the community with 11213l a 5 7 8 9 | 10| 99
other levels of government and
private organisations on key issues
4. Advocacy on behalf of the community
for local educational opportunities (e.g., 112(3]| 4 5 7 8 9 | 10| 99
local schools, TAFES, universities)
5. The re§p0n51veness of Council to local 1lalsl a - - 3 g | 10| 92
community needs
6. Council’s performance in maintaining
the trust and confidence of the local 112|345 7 8 |9 |10 99
community
7. Council making and implementing
decisions in the interests of the 1(2 |3 4 5 7 8 9 |10 | 99
community

Can you please rate your satisfaction with the performance of Council across all areas of

responsibility?

1. Performance of Council across all areas
of responsibility

10

cE)

If overall satisfaction less than 5, why do you say that?
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Can you please list what you consider to be the top three issues for the City of Melton at
the moment?

Issue One:

Issue Two:

Issue Three:

On a scale of 0 (strongly disagree) to 10 (strongly agree), please rate your agreement
with the following statements about the Melton City Council.

Strangly Neutral Strongly can't

Statement .
disagree agree say

1. Council infrastructure is equitable,

. i . 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 | 99
inclusive and accessible

If rated less than 5, why do you say that?

2. Melton is a City that encourages and
enables people to work, shop and spend 0 1 2 3 4 |5 |6 |7 |8)|9) 10| 9%
time locally

If rated less than 5, why do you say that?

3. Council is efficient and well run ‘ 0 ‘ 1 | 2 | 3 ‘ 4 ‘ 5 ‘ 6 ‘ 7 ‘ 8 ‘ 9 llo‘ 99

If rated less than 5, why do you say that?

Have you participated in any community engagement consultation activities in the past
12 months? (please select as many as appropriate)

Accessed Melton conversations 1 Completed a Council survey 3

Attended a consultation workshop 2 Other : 4

The State Government has planned for the population of the City of Melton to double in
size to more than 300,000 over the next 20 years.

The responsibility for providing services, transport infrastructure, and facilities rests with
both Council and the State Government.

On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), can you please rate your satisfaction with?

1. Planning for population growth 0 | 1 ‘ 2 ‘ 3‘ 4 ‘ 5 | 6 ‘ 7 ‘ 8 ‘ 9 ‘10‘ 99

If you rated satisfaction less than 5, what
concerns you most about population
growth?
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On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), please rate your satisfaction with the following
aspects of planning and development in the City of Melton.

1. The appearance and quality of new

. o|1|2|3|4|5|6 7|8 )|9|10|9%9
developments in your area

If rated less than 5, please identify the developments OR reasons for concern:

2. Council’s performance maintaining local
heritage and sites of significance

On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), please rate the importance to the community,
and your personal level of satisfaction with each of the following.

Importance 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | 99
1. Local job opportunities

Satisfaction 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 | 99
2. Accessibility of local Importance | O | 1 | 2 | 3| 4|5 |67 |8| 9 10)9
education Satisfaction 0 1 2 (3|4 |5|6 |7 |8 9|10 9

On a scale of 0 (lowest) to 10 (highest), how safe do you feel?

;LI:nZutzILcda;’:as of the City of Melton 0 1 2 3 2 5 6 | 7 s 9 | 10 | 99
;Ierllzl:‘ea[tn;?éi;tareas of the City of 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
3. Travelling on / waiting for P/T 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 | 7 8 9 |10 | 99
4. In and around local shopping area 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
5. In and around WoodGrove S.C 0| 1] 2 3 4 | 5 6 | 7| 8|9 |10 99
6.In and around Melton Town Centre | 0 | 1 | 2 3 4 | 5 6 | 7 8 9 (10 | 99
7. In and around Caroline Springs SC 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
8. At local community events 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
9. At home alone after dark 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 | 7 8 9 | 10 | 99
10. At Lake Caroline at night 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 | 99

If rated less than five, why do you say that?

If you are employed, on average how long does it take in total to travel both to and from
work each day (combined total two-way)?

Less than 30 minutes 1 One hour to less than 90 minutes 3

30 minutes to less than one hour 2 90 minutes or more 4
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On a scale of 0 (strongly disagree) to 10 (strongly agree) where 5 is neutral, please rate

your agreement with the following statements regarding the local community.

1. My / our neighbourhood has a distinct
character, it's a special place

2. It's an active community, people do
things and get involved in local issues

3.1/ we feel part of the local community 0 1 2 3|4 |5|6 |7 8|9 10| 99

4. In times of need, I/we could turn to the
neighbours for help

5. Most people in my local community can
be trusted

6. Melton is an “age-friendly” community 0 1 2 | 3/4|5 6|7 )|8|9 10 9

7. Melton is accessible and inclusive for
people with disability

8. Melton is a “child-friendly” community 0 1 2 3|4 |5|6 |7 8|9 10| 99

9. The Melton community is welcoming
and supportive of people from diverse 0 1 2 | 3/4|5 6|7 |89 106 9%
cultures and backgrounds

10. Melton City Council respects, reflects,
and is inclusive of our diverse community

11. The Melton community is welcoming
and supportive of LGBTIQA+ people

12. There are adequate opportunities to
socialise and meet people in the local area

13. Melton City Council respects, reflects
and is inclusive of Aboriginal and/or Torres| 0 1 2 3|4 |5|6 |7 8|9 10| 99
Strait Islander persons

14, The Melton community is vibrant,
accessible and engaging

15. There is access to affordable and
efficient public transport

16. There is public transport that goes
where | need to go

17. The health services | / we need are
available locally

18. The statement “| feel a sense of
optimism about the future”

In the past 12 months, were there any times that your household ran out of food and
couldn’t afford to buy more?

Never 1 Monthly or almost every month 4

Once 2 More than once a month

w

A couple of times Can’t say 9
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On a scale of 1 (disagree) to 3 (agree), please rate your agreement with the following

statements.
Statement Disagree  Neutral Agree Can’t say
1. Family violence is common in our community 1 2 3 9
2. Family vio_\ence can be excused if, afterwards, the violent 1 2 3 B
person genuinely regrets what they have done
3. Family violence can be excused if it is acceptable in the 1 2 3 G
persons’ culture
4. Men make better political leaders 1 2 3 9
5. Men should take control in relationships and be the head of
the household 1 2 3 ?
6. Women prefer a man to be in charge of the relationship 1 2 3 9
Do you or a member of your household volunteer regularly?
Yes - locally 1 No 4
Yes - non-local 2 Can’t say
Please indicate which of the following best describes you?
15 - 24 years 1 50 - 59 years 4
25 - 34 years 2 60 - 69 years 5
35 - 49 years 3 70 years or over 6
What is your gender identity?
Man 1 Prefer to self-describe:
Woman 2 4
Non-binary 3 Prefer not to say 9

Do any members of this household identify as Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander?

Yes 1 No 2
What are all the languages spoken in this household?

English only 1 Other (specify)._____ 2
What is the structure of this household?

Two parent family ({youngest 0 - 4 yrs) 1 One parent family (youngest 13-18yrs) 7

Two parent family (youngest 5 - 12 yrs) 2 One parent family (adults only) 8

Two parent family (youngest 13 - 18 yrs) 3 Group household 9

Two parent family (adult child only) ) Sole person household 10

One parent family (youngest 0 - 4 yrs) 5 Couple only family 11

One parent family (youngest 5 - 12 yrs) 6 Other (specify): 12
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Do any members of this household identify as having disability?

Yes 1 No 2

Do any members of this household identify as LGBTIQA+?
Yes 1 No 2

27 Which of the following best describes the current housing situation of this household?

Own this home 1 Renting this home 3

Mortgage (paying-off this home) 2 Insecure housing (e.g., couch

, 4
surfing, homelessness)

Do you or members of this household own or manage a business operating in the City of
Melton?

Yes 1 No 2

How long have you lived in the City of Melton?
Less than 1 year 1 5 to less than 10 years 3

1 to less than 5 years 2 10 years or more 4

Do you have any further comments you would like to make?

THANK YOU FOR YOUR TIME AND PARTICIPATION

A summary of these results will be published on Council’s website
at the conclusion of the project

Council may invite some respondents to a session to provide additional feedback on any
issues raised in the survey. Would you be interested in potentially being invited to
attend a session?

‘Yes ‘ 1 ‘ No 2

If Yes, please leave your email address and first name;

Email address:

First name:

© Metropolis Research Pty Ltd, 2024
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12.3 LETTERS AWARDED UNDER THE COMMON SEAL OF COUNCIL

Author: Renee Hodgson - Senior Coordinator Governance
Presenter: Emily Keogh - Head of Governance

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To award letters under the Common Seal of Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
That Council:

1. Award letters under its Common Seal to the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, and Councillors who
have chosen not to stand for re-election or who are not re-elected at the 2024 Local
Government Elections, in recognition of their service to the community.

2. Present the letters under Seal at its first Council Meeting of the new 2024-2028 Council term,
scheduled for Monday 25 November 2024.

Motion
Crs Ramsey/Vandenberg.
That Council:

1.  Award letters under its Common Seal to the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, and Councillors who
have chosen not to stand for re-election or who are not re-elected at the 2024 Local
Government Elections, in recognition of their service to the community.

2. Present the letters under Seal at its first Council Meeting of the new 2024-2028 Council term,
scheduled for Monday 25 November 2024.

For: Crs Abboushi, Carli, Majdlik, Ramsey, Shannon, Turner and Vandenberg
Against: Nil
Abstained: Nil
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

REPORT

1. Executive Summary

Council’'s Purchase of Outgoing Mayoral Gifts Policy states that both the Mayor and Deputy
Mayor will be provided with a Letter Under Seal of Council as a part of their gift at the end of
their term of office.

In addition, it is proposed that all outgoing Councillors are provided with a Letter Under Seal
of Council in recognition of their contribution to the City of Melton community.

The Letters Under Seal will be presented at the first Council Meeting of the 2024-2028
Council Term, which is scheduled for Monday 25 November 2024.
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2,

Background/Issues

The Local Government Act 2020 (s.14(1)(b)) prescribes that a Council must have a common

seal.

(a)

(b)
(c)

Section 14(2) says the common seal of a Council must—

bear the name of the Council and any other word, letter, sign or device the Council
determines should be included; and

be kept at the Council office; and

be used in accordance with any applicable local law.

Council’'s Purchase of Outgoing Mayoral Gifts Policy states that both the Mayor and Deputy
Mayor will be awarded a Letter Under Seal of Council as a part of their gift at the end of their
term of office.

In addition, it is recommended that all outgoing Councillors are awarded a Letter Under Seal
of Council in recognition of their contribution to the City of Melton community.

It is proposed to present the Letters Under Seal at the first Council Meeting of the 2024-2028
Council Term, which is scheduled for Monday 25 November 2024.

Council and Wellbeing Plan Reference and Policy Reference
The Melton City Council 2021-2025 Council and Wellbeing Plan references:

6. A high performing organisation that demonstrates civic leadership and organisational
excellence

6.3 An organisation that demonstrates excellence in civic leadership and governance.

Financial Considerations

There are no financial considerations relating to the use of the Council Seal.

Consultation/Public Submissions
Not applicable.

Risk Analysis

Ensuring that the Council Seal is only affixed in accordance with a resolution of Council
controls the potential risk of the Seal being incorrectly affixed to a document.

Options
Not applicable.

LIST OF APPENDICES

Nil
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

REPORTS FROM DELEGATES APPOINTED TO OTHER BODIES
AND COUNCILLOR REPRESENTATIONS AND
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Councillor Abboushi, on behalf of the Councillor group, presented a gift to Council’s

Mayor, Councillor Majdlik, in acknowledgement of her service as Mayor for the 2023-24
municipal year.

Reports received from Crs Abboushi, Carli, Shannon, Vandenberg, Turner, Ramsey and
Mayor Majdlik.

Councillor Majdlik, on behalf of Council, presented Council’'s Deputy Mayor, Councillor
Abboushi, in acknowledgement of his service as Deputy Mayor for the 2023-24 municipal
year.

NOTICES OF MOTION

Nil.

COUNCILLOR’S QUESTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE
Nil.

URGENT BUSINESS

Nil.

CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

Nil.

CLOSE OF BUSINESS

The meeting closed at 7.48pm.

Confirmed
Dated this

................................................................... CHAIRPERSON
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